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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
R

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Beijing
Capital Land Ltd. ("BCL" or the "Company”; together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the Group's
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2014.

During the first half of 2014, the world economy witnessed
a sustainable recovery, with United States, Japan and the
European Union experiencing varying levels of economic
growth. Meanwhile, due to structural adjustment and
optimization in emerging economies, rapid growth momentum
tended to decline. China has entered a crucial phase of
economic transformation and structural optimization, in which
growth is tending to level off.

Due to the interplay between the real estate market and
China’s macro-economy, economic development is an
important indicator of conditions in China's real estate industry.
Affected by the slowdown in the macro-economy and the
disequilibrium of demand and supply, in the first half of
2014, the private-sector property market has experienced a
simultaneous downturn in both transaction volume and price.
This intensified differentiation among urban markets. To solve
this problem, the central government develops specific policies
for different market conditions such as loosening restrictions
in sluggish markets and curbing speculations in hot markets.
Under these circumstances, local governments leaned to more
frequent policy adjustments, loosening purchase restrictions on
buyers that met certain requirements. They provided support
through credit loans and housing funds, encouraging demand
from owner-occupiers. These were breakthroughs for cities,
facing risk of a sales meltdown.

Overall, the Central Government regulations has switched
focus from short-term adjustments to long-term fundamentals
which required the formation of the housing system. However,
marketization and demand-driven urbanization are leading to a
new market dynamics, accompanied by greater decentralization
and loosening of restrictions. Taking into consideration
of structural demand in China’s property market, the
fundamentals support of the market remained its vast potential,
and is nowhere near any kind of turning point.
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In the first half of 2014, the Group responded to property
market easing measures by rebuilding its land reserves and
timely adjustment of sales strategies for reasonable sales
performance with contracted sales area aggregating 731,000
sq.m. and contracted sales amounted to RMB6.77 billion,
up 2.8% from the same period last year. In the first half of
2014, the Group has completed a preliminary formation of
its new customer value service platform of “Affordable Life”,
prepared to establish Capital Property Management Company,
and will actively explore e-marketing channels to offer more
value-added service via online-to-offline applications. Given
our ample supply of inventory and innovative customer service
platform, the Group is confident in achieving our 2014 sales
target and keep momentum for rapid growth.

Under our new five-year strategic plan, the Group has remained
its focus on traditional and growing regions and core business
in 2014. The Group has acquired 2.78 million sq.m. in Gross
Floor Area (GFA) of premium land plots in Beijing, Tianjin,
Chongging and Chengdu. These are zoned mainly for owner-
occupier residential properties and urban core complexes. The
new land banks have significantly improved our land reserve
and laid a solid foundation for sustainable growth.

The Group has rapidly explored its business opportunities
internationally. In June 2014, it held a press conference and
groundbreaking ceremony for a new “Sino-French Economic
and Trade Cooperation Zone" in Chateauroux, France, in the
official launch of the project, with a GFA of 470 hectares in its
first stage. In early July, the Group also successfully cooperated
with a local developer to develop a residential project in Sydney,
Australia, and the project has been launched for sale. Overseas
business is offering new opportunities for the Group to gain
more experience in operating international projects and to offer
a more diversified investment portfolio to mainland customers.
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During the period, the Group obtained significant success
in its “Residence + Outlets” business. The Sunken Plaza in
Fangshan, Beijing was officially opened during the period and
stimulated overall turnover of Beijing Fangshan Outlets. The
Hainan Capital Outlets Integrated Project had a successful
trial opening, attracting 30,000 visitors on the first day.
Development and early investment promotion for the Kunshan
Capital Outlets Integrated Project went well. The “Residence +
Outlets” business line benefited from value-adding synergies
between commercial outlets and residential properties. As a
result, the Beijing Novotown and Kunshan-Capital Novotel
projects saw positive sales performance. The “Residence +
Outlets” business line will enter into more markets of targeted
cities, increasing product differentiation, which is shaping the
Group’s core competencies.

During the period, against a context of tightening credit
policies and liquidity, the Group has obtained new source of
financing and successfully established the USD1 billion medium
term note and perpetual securities programme. Under the
programme, the Group has issued two tranche of guaranteed
medium term senior notes in an aggregate amount of RMB3.25
billion, including an RMB3 billion three-year note at a coupon
rate of 5.75%. There is a breakthrough for the Group in
exploring new financing channels including property fund and
insurance fund. As at 30 June 2014, the Group had a cash
balance of RMB11,673,497,000 and the debt ratio remained
stable.

During the period under review, the Group had sales
revenue of RMB4,519,333,000, down 8% vyear on year. Net
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
RMB661,130,000, up 18% year on year. The Board resolved
not to declare any interim dividend for the six months ended 30
June 2014.

In the second half of 2014, the Group will pursue
implementation of its new five-year strategic plan. On behalf
of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, business partners and clients for their
continuous support. The Group will endeavor to pioneer new
and innovative businesses to achieve win-win cooperation with
all of you.

Liu Xiaoguang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 August 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

During the first half of 2014, the Group's revenue amounted to
RMB4,519,333,000, down 8% from the same period last year.
Operating profit rose 20% year-on-year to RMB1,307,827,000.
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company increased
18% year-on-year to RMB661,130,000 . Earnings per share
(basic) were RMB33 cents, representing an increase of 18%
compared to the first half of 2013. The Board resolved not to
declare any interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June
2014.

PROPERTY SALES PERFORMANCE

During the first half of 2014, in view of an overall slowdown
in property market, the Company based on its strategic
positioning to focus on small-and medium-sized units with high
turnover, while standardizing project design and development
processes. The company also promoted its customer value
service platform of “Affordable Life” together with new
e-marketing channels. These strategies achieved stable growth
in sales.

In the first half of 2014, the total contracted sales areas of
the Group, together with its joint ventures and associates
companies amounted to approximately 731,000 sgq.m, up 1.1%
from the same period last year, of which contracted sales area
of residential properties aggregated approximately 652,000
sq.m. Total contracted sales amounted to approximately
RMB6.77 billion, up 2.8% from the same period last year, of
which approximately RMB5.91 billion was generated from sales
of residential projects. Geographically, Beijing, Tianjin, Chengdu
and Chongging accounted for 73% of the contracted sales,
reflecting the effectiveness of the Company’s focused strategy.
Of which, Beijing and Tianjin accounted for 56% of sales, up
7 percentage points when compared with that of the same
period last year and Tianjin accounted for 32% of sales, up
12 percentage points when compared with that of the same
period last year.

During 2013 and the first half of 2014, the Company
significantly increased its investment in land, which mainly
developed into high-turnover, owner-occupied residential
projects, to be scheduled to begin selling in the second half of
2014, and will provide ample stock for sales. The Company will
strive to achieve full year sales target of RMB28 billion.
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Contracted Contracted
Contracted Average Sales
Sales Area Selling Price Revenue
Project HEEH HEMmE SHEHYE HESH
(sq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) (000 RMB)
(AR®E/
(FFHK) FHK) (ARBFIT)
Residential (Beijing and Tianjin) FE#2 (FEHE) 317,609 11,142 3,538,670
The Reflections, Beijing Tt RE&ERE 1,597 63,748 101,806
Ealing, Beijing b R FAARED 14,739 20,027 295,174
Beijing Ballet Town It REBER-HE 344 33,497 11,523
Beijing Novotown 3k TR B 40,815 21,616 882,264
Beijing Landscape Villa 16 FOR & L 5,415 17,853 96,675
Tianjin Noble City KIEZIEE 11,027 9,382 103,460
Tianjin Fortune Class KiEm@se Il 9,079 17,560 159,427
Tianjin Landing House RERFWE 3,985 11,271 44,915
Tianjin International Peninsula KEHBRFE 168,082 7,502 1,260,973
Tianjin Mangrove Bay K AT e 7,953 8,502 67,616
Tianjin Eco Village K3 S TN 32,293 8,992 290,366
Tianjin Cambridge County KEFEBED 19,034 9,702 184,661
Tianjin Xuan Community KB [= 3,246 12,264 39,810
Residential (excluding FEEHS
Beijing and Tianjin region) (FEUIMEE) 335,690 7,061 2,370,312
Chengdu First City Pk EB B B 35 321 9,336 2,997
Chengdu Citt4 Villa X EBER A JT 392 6,316 2,476
Chengdu Wanjuanshan X #B& 5 L 7,713 5,257 40,548
Chengdu A-Z Town X & A-Z TOWN 945 8,243 7,790
Shenyang First City B B 2,706 6,220 16,830
Shenyang Eco Village V2[5 ¢ IR 5,659 5,634 31,881
Wuxi Gentle House EHEAIEN 3,056 7,774 23,757
Wuxi Joyous House E35 B BT 9,440 8,378 79,085
Jiangyin Auspicious House pRE=Relby 2,785 7,359 20,495
Xi‘an First City 70 % B R 3k 31,636 6,954 219,985
Chongging Hong'en International ~ EEREBK £ )/5E
Living District 66,251 7,743 512,967
Chongging Eco Village B E S 39,641 5,581 221,252
Zhenjiang Joyous House SEOT B AR T 16,532 4,561 75,412
Hainan Capital Outlets Integrated &/ BIFHKHT4R 4 B2
Project 16,247 9,422 153,085
Qingdao Central Park No. 1 = =UNERE 26,291 7,089 186,375
Qingdao Sunny Xiangmi Lake S EENXEEM 16,616 7,630 126,788
Yantai Sunny Chief Yard BaGYXEk 29,163 6,699 195,361
Huzhou Joyous House i N=R IR 6,346 8,144 51,679
Kunshan Capital Outlets Integrated B I BIFHHT 4R 4 B2
Project 49,126 7,142 350,855
Kunshan Eastern Mystery BB @ -RAFWIE 4,824 10,509 50,694
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Contracted Contracted

Contracted Average Sales

Sales Area Selling Price Revenue

Project HEEH HEMmE SHEHYE HESH

(sgq.m.) (RMB/sg.m.) (000 RMB)

(AR

(FFFHAK) FHA) (AREFT)

Commercial/Office B¥E BRFERD 54,782 13,873 759,973

Beijing Xanadu LR E B 1,680 100,135 168,226

Wuxi Gentle House i HASR 574 7,085 4,067

Chengdu Wanjuanshan Bk #B & %5 L 2,062 4,393 9,058

Chengdu Citta Villa P EBER A TT 3,846 8,299 31,919

Chengdu First City P &P B B 35 2,361 7,200 17,000

Shenyang First City V& 55 B R o 8,160 9,741 79,484

Xi'an First City 78 22 B R K 3,525 6,715 23,669

Chongging Eco Village BE R 12,800 13,024 166,710
Chongging Hong'en International ~ EEREBHE AR

Living District 8,857 17,067 151,160

Qingdao Airport International Centre & & 28 /& B FE A 0 9,189 9,903 91,002

Qingdao Sunny Xiangmi Lake SEEABTEMN 171 11,977 2,048

Yantai Sunny Chief Yard EeGitER 1,557 10,039 15,630

Car Park Space ==X 22,912 4,492 102,928

Total ast 730,993 6,771,883
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Geographical distribution of property sales performance in 1H of 2013 and 1H of 2014
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COMMERCIAL PROPERTY

During the first half of 2014, the commercial property business
of the Company has achieved remarkable results. The Sunken
Plaza in Fangshan, Beijing was officially opened during the
period and stimulated overall turnover of Beijing Fangshan
Outlets. In June 2014, the trial operation of the Hainan Capital
Outlets Integrated Project attracted 30,000 visitors on the first
day. Currently, the project ranks first in Hainan Province in
terms of scale and the number of global brands. Outlet projects
in Kunshan, Jiangsu Province and other places are speeding
up construction work and leasing activities. The “Residence +
Outlets” business will enter into more markets of the targeted
cities to accelerate its expansion nationwide.

HOTEL OPERATIONS

During the period, the Group’s Holiday Inn Central Plaza
has achieved a stable operation performance by improving
service quality and expanding client base. As at 30 June
2014, the Group recorded revenue from hotel operations of
RMB42,804,000 and average occupancy rate of 72% was
basically the same with the same period of last year.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In the first half of 2014, the Group, together with its joint
ventures and associate companies, has completed construction
of projects with aggregate GFA of approximately 920,018 sqg.m,
including Beijing Landscape Villa Project Third Phase, Kunshan
Jinxi Project First Phase, Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Project First
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Phase, Chengdu Wanjuanshan Project Second and Third Phase,
Shenyang First City Project Fourth Phase and Xi‘an First City

Project Sixth Phase.

Projects Completed in first half of 2014

51920,018F F K »

Approximate

R-E-—NFLE¥FERZEREAR

Completed Attributable
GFA Interest
No. Project Type B ERK HAIEX
FFe% HEBEER MEER HMEEER Bz
(sq.m)
(F75K)
1 Beijing Landscape Villa Project Residential 19,853 100%
Third phase
EFOREILIE R = 5 F=
2 Kunshan Jinxi Project First phase Residential/Commercial 86,061 51%
IR EER —H (BRSSP S
3 Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Project Residential 98,565 100%
First phase
EEGXERER —H F=
4 Chengdu Wanjuanshan Project Residential/Commercial 323,369 55%
Second phase and Third phase
&S ILIER — =5 (BRSSP SE S
5 Shenyang First City Project Fourth Residential 101,259 30%
phase
& 15 BB 18 B PO HA F=
6 Xi'an First City Project Sixth phase Residential/Commercial 290,911 40%
P BRI IE B /< Hf (BRSSP S
Total & &t 920,018
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LAND BANK

In 2014, the Group strategically focused on five core cities,
namely Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin, Chengdu and Chongging
and actively expanded its overseas business. In the first half of
2014, the Group took advantage of the cooling-off period of
property market and acquired several land plots to restore its
land bank. The Group acquired three projects in Zhaoquanying,
Shunyi District, Beijing, and other three projects, namely
Beijing Pinggu Daxingzhuang Project, Tiangjin Beiyunhe Phase
Two Project, and Chongqing Jialingchang Project, adding
aggregate GFA of approximately 1.88 million sg.m. to the land
bank. In July, the Group acquired the Longhua District Project
in Chengdu, the Fangshan Gaojiao Park Project in Beijing,
the lJialing District Industrial Zone Project in Shanghai and
successfully cooperated with a local developer to develop a
residential project in Sydney, Australia, adding aggregate GFA
of approximately 0.92 million sq.m. to the land bank.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group’s land bank had an aggregate
GFA of 11.17 million sgq.m., and a total above-the-ground
GFA of 9.22 million sg.m. (of which, the above-the-ground
GFA attributable to the Company’s equity interests was 6.42
million sg.m). Of the total GFA of land bank, approximately
78% was for residential projects, 20% was for commercial and
office, and 2% was for hotel. The existing land bank is of the
optimum scale and sufficient for development in the next three
to four years.
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Hotel Property
Total
Above-the-
Attributable  Total GFA of Ground GFA
No. Project Location Type Interest Land Bank of Land Bank
TibfEE TG
Fi#  EHBEER BN E MmEER R BEEER BHE®
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHK) (F7K)
1 Holiday Inn Central Plaza Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 100% 50,712 50,712
FRERERE T RTENE BIE
2 InterContinental Financial Xicheng District, Beijing Hotel 34% 58,161 42,900
Street Beijing
SRENRBE T RTENE BIE
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Total
Above-the-
Attributable  Total GFA of Ground GFA
No. Project Location Type Interest Land Bank of Land Bank
T A TiRE
Fi#  EEAR WENE NERR i BEEEE BEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F5#) (E5K)
3 Beijing Capital Outlets Fangshan District, Beijing Commercial 100% 170,651 130,751
R ERI BRI IERME L E EES
4 Huzhou Capital Outlets Taihu National Tourism and Commercial 100% 185,146 175,400
Holiday Zone, Jiangsu Province
N E B RS LEE BN AR IRER BE EES
5 Hainan Capital Outlets Liji Town, Wanning, Hainan Province Commercial 55% 103,180 100,879
B EE RBRA BREEETRILA BE
6 Kunshan Capital Outlets Eastern Part of New Town, Kunshan Commercial 100% 101,300 101,300
District, Jiangsu Province
BRI RBHA ITERE TR A BE
7 Xi'an Capital Outlets Xi'an Economic & Technological Commercial 40% 50,000 50,000
Development Zone, Shaanxi Province
i Ly REEERTEERMFER BE
8 Sunshine Building Xicheng District, Beijing Commercial/Office 35% 52,095 34,163
ERBARE ERmEEE BE/BFE
Property Development BRYE
Total
Above-the-
Attributable  Total GFA of ~ Ground GFA
No.  Project Project name Location Type Interest  Land Bank of Land Bank
it TR
F# HEBER REER WELE nERR EfEE AREER BEER
(sq.m.) (sg.m.)
(FF5x) (FF5K)
9 Beijing Yuyuantan Project The Reflections Haidian District, Beijing Residential 100% 7,224 6,942
TRENEEE 3 ERmERE FE
10 Beijing Hujialou Project Xanadu Chaoyang District, Beijing Apartment 100% 29,521 21,495
ERFREER Bhn# tRm#AGR B
11 Beijing Huang Xin Zhuang Project Ealing Fangshan District, Beijing Residential 95% 234,981 230,155
EREFHER {FHE ERTELRE =
12 Beijing Miyun Project Beijing Landscape  Miyun District, Beijing Residential 100% 159,719 148,262
Villa
EREZER B ERTEER =
13 Beijing Changyang Town Project Ballet Town Fangshan District, Beijing Residential 100% 6,375 5833
IREGRER BER ERTRELE FE
14 Beijing Changyang Land No.4 Project Novotown Fangshan District, Beijing Residential 18% 28,319 25,888
T REBATHIER i LRMELR FE
15 Lize Financial Business District Project Fengtai District, Beijing Office/Commercial/Apartment 449,293 384,648
BECREHRER ERTERE BFE/HE/ DB
16 Beijing Daxing Village Project Daxing District, Beijing Residential 100% 129,338 110,721
AEENER ERTARR FE
17 Beijing Zhaogquanying Project Shunyi District, Beijing Residential/Commercial/School 100% 506,614 401,241
ERE2EER LRMIERR e/ EE/ B0
18 Beijing Pinggu Daxingzhuang Project Pinggu District, Beijing Residential/Commercial 10% 192,779 150,537
ERFAREIER ERTFAR i/ H%
19 Tianjin Banshan Project Tianjin First City Tanggu District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial 55% 29,591 6,957
KEHINER REEEIERS RETELR ffz/E%
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Total
Above-the-
Attributable Total GFA of ~ Ground GFA
No.  Project Project name Location Type Interest ~ Land Bank of Land Bank
TiRE TiRE
FH# EBER ERER WEAE NEER EiEEs BREEE BEEE
(sq.m.) (sg.m.)
(F7HAK) (FFHHK)
20 Tianjin Huaming Project Noble City Dongli District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial 40% 89,462 89,462
REERER R RETRER ffz/Em%
21 Tianjin Xiging Project Landing House Xiging District, Tianjin Residential/Office 40% 24,860 24,860
KEBEER EERE KXETEER ffz/87E
22 Tianjin Shuanggang 121 Project Fortune Class Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial 55% 103,221 103,221
KEEBE121EE EaRL XETZER ffz/Em%
23 Tianjin Shuanggang 122 Project Tianjin-A-Z Town Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 55% 68,817 45,983
KE®HE12288 KEAZ Town XEMEHR =z
24 Tianjin Wuging Project International Wuging District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial/ 100% 612,841 602,005
Peninsula Office/Hotel
RERBEER AR+ RETRER I/ B/ RTE/BE
25 Tianjin Mangrove Bay Mangrove Bay Binhai New District, Tianjin Residential 100% 15,691 15,691
REHERA REMEENE tE
26 Tianjin Eco-city Project Cambridge County  Binhai New District, Tianjin Residential 100% 138,252 86,847
REERBIRR GRS REMEENE tE
27 Tianjin Hongni River Project Tianjin Eco Village  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial 18% 555,469 445,469
RELRARE KA RETRHE ffE/H%
28 Tianjin Lishuang Road Project Xuan Community  Jinnan District, Tianjin Residential 100% 238,834 195,124
RENERIER BiE RETRHE tE
29 Tianjin Beiyunhe Project Hebei District, Tianjin Residential/Commercial 100% 331,850 231,850
RELEFIER REMALE fx/BE%
30 Shenyang Shenying Road Project Shenyang First City ~ Hunnan New District, Shenyang,  Residential/Commercial 30% 99,049 58,898
Liaoning Province
BEELKER EHEARRN  EERARBETEENE fie/m%
31 Shenyang Yinhe Wan Project Qipan Hills First Qipan Shan District, Shenyang, ~ Residential/Commercial 50% 471,063 427,342
Villa Liaoning Province
EERTERA B BRELRETHEBILE ffE/H%
32 Shenyang Shenzhong Street Project Shenyang Eco Hunnan New District, Shenyang,  Residential/Commercial/Office 100% 631,345 542,073
Village Liaoning Province
BEERAEEE btk BEERETERITN ffz/Ex/87E
33 Chengdu Shengli Village Project Chengdu First City ~ Chenghua District, Chengdu, Residential/Office 100% 28,254 13,011
Sichuan Province
RBBFINIRR E E AR mlERBTRER ffe/B¥E
34 Chengdu Beiquan Road Project Cittd Villa Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Residential/Commercial/Office 55% 63,243 2,462
Sichuan Province
AL RHER RAT migR#BHESER ffz/Ex/87E
35 Chengdu SCE Project Wanjuanshan Longquanyi District, Chengdu, Residential/Commercial/Office 55% 171,768 69,177
Sichuan Province
)18 AR B L]l mles BT ER ffe/EE/87E
36 Xi'an Feng-cheng Road Project Xi'an First City Xi'an Economic and Technological - Residential/Commercial/Office/ 40% 319,258 170,121
Development Zone, Shannxi Hotel Apartment
Province
AZEHERE BEREEERN  HREAARTHERGREE H%/B%/378/BELS
37 Chongging Hongensi Project Hong'en Jiangbei District, Chongging Residential/Commercial 50% 299,861 167,495
International
Living District
EEREFER BRARLER EEMILE fx/BE%
38  Chongging Xiyong Project Chongging Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/Commercial 29% 349,271 247,126
Eco Village
BEFAER F EEMHITERE fz/Em%
39 Chongging Jialingchang Project Shapingba District, Chongging Residential/Commercial/Apartment/ 29% 848,041 654,909
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Total
Above-the-
Attributable Total GFA of ~ Ground GFA
No. Project Project name Location Type Interest Land Bank of Land Bank
TiRE TiRE
FH EBER i £ WEAE NERY BihER SREER BEEE
(sq.m.) (sg.m.)
(F5K)  (FHH)
40 Shanghai Songjiang Project Songjiang District, Shanghai Residential/Commercial 100% 149,102 124,597
LBIRIER LETIRIER frz/E%
41 Wuxi Dongting Town Project Gentle House Xishan District, Wuxi, Residential/Commercial 100% 32,235 19,342
Jiangsu Province
EHRTRER BEIE IHEESTHLE TE/H%
42 Wuxi Jichang Road Project Joyous House Wuxi New District, Residential/Commercial 100% 46,467 27,240
Jiangsu Province
EHRSRER BEIBAT IHEESTHE frz/E%
43 Zhejiang Huzhou Taihu Project Huzhou Capital Taihu Tourist Resort, Huzhou, Residential/Commercial/Hotel 100% 648,554 598,466
Outlets Integrated ~ Jiangsu Province
Project
HLMMAMER IR IHREONTANRERRE f%/B%/BE
AR
44 Huzhou Ren Huang Shan Project Joyous House Ren Huang Shan District, Residential 55% 42,947 33,700
Huzhou, Jiangsu Province
BHEEW HEIGR IHEMTCRILE =z
45 Zhenjiang National University Science Joyous House Zhenjiang Technological Residential/Commercial 100% 118,621 118,621
Park Project Development Zone,
Jiangsu Province
HIBERKZ BEIBAT IHERITRITFEE frz/E%
RERR
46 Jiangsu Jiangyin Yuyue Project Auspicious House Yushan Bay, Jiangyin, Residential/Commercial 100% 163,634 145,049
Jiangsu Province
TETEHNER BEITRT THEIRMRLE frz/E%
47 Kunshan Jinxi Project Kunshan Eastern Jinxi Town, Kunshan City, Residential/Commercial/ 51% 352,348 352,348
Mystery Jiangsu Province Hotel/Office
RILHERER BH-RAWE IHERLITHEZE Tx/ B/ BE/BTE
48 Kunshan Capital Outlets Kunshan Capital Eastern Part of New Town, Residential/Commercial 100% 872,516 691,188
Integrated Project Outlets Integrated  Kunshan District,
Project Jiangsu Province
BRI B AR R R RERE THERLTRPIH TE/H%
GABER AR
49 Hainan Wanning Project Hainan Capital Outlets Liji Town, Wanning, Residential/Commercial/ 252,636 252,636
Integrated Project Hainan Province Hotel Apartment
BHETER B RERET BHEBETREHE TE/ B/ BERE
AR
50  Qingdao Central Park No. 1 Project Qingdao Central Chengyang District, Qingdao, Residential 100% 31,446 23,084
Park No. 1 Shandong Province
BEEREIRIER RENH LREEETHEGE FE
51 Qingdao Qiangianshu Project Sunny Xiangmi Licang District, Qingdao, Residential/Commercial 100% 20,012 20,061
Lake Shandong Province
EETTH GRAEEH WREEETZER ffz/E%
52 Qingdao Yangbuzhai Project Chengyang District, Qingdao Residential 100% 32,366 32,366
Shandong Province
EBBERER LREEETHEGE FE
53 Yantai Sunny Chief Yard Project Sunny Chief Yard Fushan District, Yantai, Residential 100% 277,503 280,095
Shandong Province
EabBrakhEg BEk LREEETRLE =z
54 Qingdao Chengyang Project Airport International -~ Qingdao, Shandong Province Office/Commercial 100% 127,765 127,765
Centre
EBHGER ZEEBRS L LREEST BFR/HE
Total & & 11,173,601 9,218,468

13



14

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2014

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
o BHL i i i A 3 B

Geographical distribution of total site area of land bank are as follows:
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at June 30, 2014, the Group had a professional team
of 1,630 staff with an average age of 32.5. In terms of
educational level, 72% of employees were graduates with
bachelor degrees or above, of which 10.5% had a master’s
degree or above. Employees at the intermediate to senior levels
accounted for 24%.

In 2014, as an essential part of its strategy, the Group adjusted
its organizational structure to reinforce its role as a strategic
headquarter, enhance operational efficiency, strengthen
integrated financial intelligence, and expand growth. To meet
the goal of strategic reform, the Group reinforced a progressive
corporate culture among all staff to lead the transformation
of becoming a first-class management and organization in
the property sector. The Group also renovated its human
resources management and adopted competitive selection,
term of service, referrals and other human resource measures
to strengthen overall capabilities and competiveness in the
market. Special training programs have been launched for
employees with mid-high level management position to foster
leadership and innovation breakthrough, helping to foster
human talent in line with the Group’s strategic objectives.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ANALYSIS OF THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

Overview of China’s Property Market

During the first half of 2014, China’s economy underwent
structural changes, with a moderate leveling off of growth. For
the first six months of 2014, China experienced a year-on-year
growth of GDP by 7.4%, reflecting the “new normal pattern”.
Under these circumstances, Central Government’s adjustment
policy will put more emphasis on long-term mechanism in the
property sector, formalizing the policy of “two-way control”.
The significance of this policy is to allow flexibility in applying
tightening measures for the property market, with first-tier
cities maintaining tight controls while second- and third-tier
cities are able to adjust policies to local conditions in order to
maintain growth for China property market.

In the first half of 2014, the overall performance in property
market was more sluggish. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China from January to June in 2014,
investment in China property development in nominal terms
increased by 14.1% (13.1% after adjusting for inflation) to
RMB4,201.9 billion, of which, investment in residential property
development was up 13.7% to RMB2,868.9 billion, a decline
in growth rate of 0.9 percentage points, accounting for 68.3%
of total investment in property development. In the first six
month GFA under construction of all property developers was
6,114.06 million sgq.m., with a year-on-year growth of 11.3%.
Of the total GFA, 801.26 million sq.m was for new property
developments, down 16.4% year-on-year. In the first half,
property developers purchased land of 148.07 million sg.m,
down 5.8% year-on-year.

In the first half of 2014, a total GFA of 483.65 million sgq.m.
in commodity housing was sold, down 6.0% year-on-year, of
which, GFA sold in residential property sales declined by 7.8%,
while GFA sold in office properties declined by 2.8%, and GFA
sold in retail commercial properties rose by 7.7%. Sales of
commodity housing was RMB3,113.3 billion, down by 6.7%,
of which, sales of residential properties declined by 9.2%,
sales of office properties declined by 12.1% and sales of retail
commercial properties increased by 9.8%.

o BRI ok i A o3 AT
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Looking back at the first half of 2014, in view of the overall
slowdown in growth of the property industry, the sales
performance gap among different enterprises widened.
Property companies with strong fundamentals, well-founded
strategies as well as products that suit the market needs still
obtained significant sales growth. Companies have to meet
even higher standards to reach the top tier in the industry.
Products targeting first-time home buyers and home buyers
looking for upgrades remained popular and accounted for more
than 70% of total product sales on the market. Meanwhile,
first- and second-tier cities were the main target markets due to
their strong resistance to price declines, while less effect was on
the third- and fourth-tier cities.

Looking forward, the macro adjustment policies are likely to
continue. However, the government will pay more attention
on long-term adjustment measures in the basis of on system
building. Under the new system, owner-occupier demand and
investment demand will be treated differently. The government
will also tailor-made some policies based on local conditions.
There will be improvements in the subsidized housing
system in first— and second-tier cities, which will lead to an
increase in pent-up demand. Finally, there may be substantive
breakthroughs relating to the urbanization program, such as
household registration reform and land transfer rights, which
may lead to a further transformation in property market.

In view of domestic social and economic development as well
as government policy trends, the current slowdown in the
property market is not a sign of a fundamental downturn,
but a transitional phase for structural reform. Property market
will continue to be one of China’s pillar industries with vast
potential in future. The economic forces driven by urbanization
and marketization will enable rapid and healthy growth in the
property sector.
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Pan Bohai Rim Region Property Market Overview

The Pan Bohai Rim region is centered on the two major
metropolises Beijing and Tianjin, the Bejing-Tianjin-Hebei
Economic Rim, and the neighboring Shandong and Liaodong
Peninsulas, which is one of the areas with the strongest
economic growth in China. Benefiting from its economic
growth and prime location, the Pan Bohai Rim region, especially
Beijing, continues to attract people from all over China, with
rising demand in the property market. The housing prices of
Beijing have remained high for years.

In the first half of 2014, due to impact from overall property
market increase in housing prices in major cities across the
region kept declining in relative terms, with a sequential decline
in May and June. During the first half of the year, there was
a significant year-on-year decline in the transaction volume
of residential properties in the Beijing core areas. The growth
momentum of housing price in 2013 began to fade and
housing price even had a slightly sequential decline in June.
The robust market that prevailed during 2013 was replaced
by a higher market uncertainty in the first half of 2014. Both
homebuyers and property developers became more cautious in
property purchases.

In long term, the Pan Bohai Rim will remain one of China’s
major economies, and Beijing remains as the national political
and cultural center, attracting people from all over China.
Property demand in the region will remain high. In the first half
of 2014, top leadership of the Central Government encouraged
Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei to build a new “Capital Economic
Rim,” which will provide new development opportunities
for the Pan Bohai Rim property sector. There will be new
breakthroughs in the Beijing and Tianjin property markets,
expanding its influence to the neighboring areas of Hebei. The
Pan Bohai Rim, especially the Beijing and Tianjin areas, will
continue to have the highest growth potential in the property
sector among these areas.
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Yangtze River Delta Region Property Market
Overview

The Yangtze River Delta region is centered on Shanghai, with
cities including Nanjing and Hangzhou providing opportunities
at the periphery. It is one of the most developed and
prosperous areas in China, with the strongest purchasing power
in the country, and cities with distinct and complementary
features. In the long term, the Yangtze River Delta region
becomes one of the most prosperous areas in property sectors
in China.

In the first half of 2014, the property market in the Yangtze
River Delta was the first to experience pricing pressure, while
Hangzhou was the first to cut property prices to promote
sales, and such pressure is gradually expanding to other areas.
In the first half of 2014, the Yangtze River Delta experienced
phasal adjustments. Sales growth rate slowed down as clients
became more cautious. As a result, housing prices in Hangzhou
experienced five consecutive monthly decline while Shanghai
and Nanjing also began to have sequential declines.

With the highly developed business activity and economic
growth in the Yangtze River Delta region, the continuous
development in property sector laid a solid foundation.
Commercial property has become the new focal point of
growth potential. With the rapid economic development in the
Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone, it has become an anchor
of the global economy and the commercial property market is
entering a new stage. Shanghai ranked the first on the list of
“China’s Top 40 Cities for Commercial Property”, published at
the end of 2013. Nanjing and Hangzhou were among the top
10. The rankings reflect the positive impact of these business
centers on the commercial property market. Improvements to
the region’s transportation infrastructure will lead to higher
levels of integration as well as the influence of the core city on
surrounding areas, and a “one hour economic rim” has been
gradually formed. All these factors will turn the region to be
more attractive for commercial property. In the first half of
2014, the Honggiao Business District in western Shanghai saw
its first batch of tenants and a number of facilities started their
operation. Together with the Honggiao transportation hub, the
Honggiao Business District will become the commercial and
transport center of Shanghai and the entire Yangtze River Delta
region.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Mid-South Western Regions Property Market
Overview

The mid-south western regions include the Chengyu Economic
Zone (centered on Chengdu and Chongging) and the
Guanzhong-Tianshui Economic Zone (centered on Xi‘an) and
become the stronger economic regions of western China.
Urbanization has been a driver for local property development,
which though robust are not as developed as eastern China.

This region was affected by national trends in the property
market in the first half of 2014, with customers and property
developers alike displaying a more cautious mood. In Chengdu
and Chongging transaction volume dropped significantly by
20% year-over-year. Transaction prices were flat and suffered
month-over-month declines in May and June. Property
developers were more cautious in their land acquisitions, which
could lead to a future decline in transaction volumes. Both
transaction volume and premium rates fell in comparison with
the same period of last year.

From mid to long term, the property market will have
development potential as the fundamentals supporting the
property market in the region still exist. The core cities in this
region are of vital importance among their peers in China.
Urbanization is relatively underdeveloped in the region, but
over the next five to ten years it is likely to have significant
changes with higher rates of urbanization than elsewhere in
the China, leading to higher demand in the property sector.
The growth plan for cities in the region has been described
in a recent government report, the “Urban Development Plan
of Southern Urban Clusters in the Chengyu Economic Zone
(2014-2020)", published by the General Office of the Sichuan
People’s Government in June 2014. The plan sets out a vision
to build a prosperous society in 2020 and to achieve urban
development with several urban centres. Comprehensive
services available in these cities will be improved to enhance
the community’s life quality. The urbanization ratio will reach
the national average level. A sound mechanism to coordinate
development between the cities and rural areas will be
established.

Despite short-term regulatory restrictions in the property
sector, government will continue to support the healthy and
effective development in the long run. In June, the government
introduced its “22 Measures to Promote Steady Economic
Growth” in Chengdu. The report underlines the importance
by optimizing the property policies to support owner-occupiers
and upgraders. The Housing Fund will improve workflow in
order to accelerate the process of owner-occupiers’ mortgage
application and proactively encourage professionals in housing
consumption.
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PROSPECTS

In the second half of 2014, regulators will continue to promote
long-term fundamentals in the property sector, including
reforms in land and property, the taxation system reforms,
the establishment of property registration system, and the
enhancement of internet information network, while following
the principles of “regulation by categories” and “two-way
control”. The government will continue to support demand
by owner-occupiers through adopting financial measures. It
will attempt to guide market expectations to a reasonable and
stable level. In terms of market trends, most of the property
developers in the second half of 2014 will face pressure from
oversupply, which is expected to last until the end of 2014.

In view of these developments, the Group will implement the
following strategies in the second half of 2014:

o Adhere to the strategy of “Achieving certain scale,
Accelerating turnover, Decreasing inventory and
Adjusting structure”. This strategy aims at providing
more products to meet the increasing demand for
housing, including demand from first time homebuyers
and homebuyers looking for improved living conditions.
Sales of commercial units located on lower levels and
in the basements of commercial buildings, parking
facilities and property investment in non-core regions
are expected to increase. The Group will strive to begin
sales of projects acquired within the first half of 2014.
The Group will delegate more power in decision making
to staff working on the front line to increase flexibility. It
will encourage use of a performance-based assessment
scheme and innovative e-marketing strategies to boost
up sales growth. The Group will commit more efforts to
achieve its annual sales target of RMB28 billion.

o In accordance with the five-year strategic plan, focus
on core regions and main business lines; uphold the
established resource acquisition strategy; and implement
land investment plans in the year. The Group's residential
properties business line will focus on developing
products for owner-occupiers with a high turnover in five
core cities, namely Beijing, Shanghai, Tianjin, Chengdu
and Chongging. The “Residence + Outlets Complex”
business line will expand in selected target regions and
strive for greater expansion within the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Promote its new customer value service platform of
"Affordable Life” and the development of Capital
Property Management Company. The Company
will leverage its integrated community resources on
residence, such as services in daily life, residential and
social services, to develop a one-stop service platform for
residents to enjoy a modern community service system.

Leverage its domestic and overseas financing platforms
to obtain both equity and debt financing. This will allow
the Company to raise ample and long-term funding
at lower cost for its business development, improve its
financial structure, and lower its financial risks.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

1.

Revenue and Operating Results

In the first half of 2014, revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB4,519,333,000 (2013 1H:
RMB4,889,506,000), representing a decrease of 8%
from the first half of 2013. The decrease in revenue was
mainly attributable to the decrease in projects completed
and occupied during the period.

In the first half of 2014, the Group achieved a gross
margin after business tax of approximately 23%,
representing a decrease of 3 percentage point when
comparing with 26% in the first half of 2013, mainly
attributable to an increase in proportion of revenue with
lower gross margin generated in the area other than
Beijing and Chengyu regions when compared with the
first half of 2013.

In the first half of 2014, investment income of the
Group was approximately RMB703,343,000 (2013 1H:
RMB141,792,000), it mainly consisted of the disposal of
Beijing International Centre Project and Bangiao No.3
Land Plot Project.

In the first half of 2014, operating profit of the
Group was approximately RMB1,307,827,000 (2013
1H: RMB1,088,523,000), representing an increase of
approximately 20% compared to the first half of 2013.
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Financial Resources, Liquidity and Liability
Position

During the period under review, the Group maintained a
healthy liquidity position and a reasonable appropriation
of financial resources. As at 30 June 2014, the
Group's total assets were RMB63,083,422,000 (31
December 2013: RMB56,190,688,000) and non-
current assets were RMB7,817,889,000 (31 December
2013: RMB7,308,657,000); and the total liabilities
were RMB44,982,903,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB39,962,204,000) of which, current liabilities
were RMB26,881,141,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB26,465,407,000) and non-current liabilities
were RMB18,101,762,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB13,496,797,000), and the owners’ equity
reached RMB18,100,519,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB16,228,484,000).

The Group is of sound liquidity and solvency. Current
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ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2014 was 2.06 (31 Do REBR T — EE/\H +
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As at 30 June 2014, the Group's cash and cash RZ=Z%F—MN E//f\ H¢E\+ H $
equivalents amounted to RMB11,673,497,000 SERASTERTER/SARE
(31 December 2013: RMB11,339,807,000), which 11,673,497 00075<*-—-—_¢+_
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Bank borrowings and debentures of the Group as RZE—MFERA=1tH A&H

at 30 June 2014 amounted to RMB25,600,895,000
(31 December 2013: RMB20,829,196,000), of which
the long-term borrowings and debentures amounted
to RMB16,833,450,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB12,716,845,000), which were mainly used to
fulfill the capital requirements of the Group’s property
development projects.

As at 30 June 2014, the Company's net gearing ratio
was 77% (31 December 2013: 59%). Net gearing
ratio of the Group is calculated by the borrowings and
debentures payable net of net cash and bank balances
and then divided by total owners’ equity.
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Changes in Major Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

During the period, Beijing Yikaiyou Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(ERHNEEXEEBRAF]), a subsidiary of the Group
was incorporated in February 2014, and 100% of its
equity interest was held by the Group.

During the period, Beijing Guijiamao Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (EREEXEFXABMRAF), a subsidiary of the
Group was incorporated in May 2014, and 100% of its
equity interest was held by the Group.

During the period, Tianjin Xingtai Jihong Real Estate Co.,
Ld (KEEHZH B BEEEBRZAFT), a subsidiary of the
Group was incorporated in June 2014, and 100% of its
equity interest was held by the Group.

During the period, Shanghai Capital Zhengheng Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (LB ERIEEEX AR AA), a
subsidiary of the Group was incorporated in June 2014,
and 100% of its equity interest was held by the Group.

During the period, the Group acquired entire equity
interests in Beijing Chuanghe Youda Shangmao Co., Ltd.
(IkREl&EEHEARBRAT) and its subsidiary Beijing
Lianchuang Shengye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(ERBElIREFEMERZBRAA) .

During the period, the Group disposed 100% equity
interest in its subsidiary, Bantex Investments Limited,
which in turn disposed 50% equity interest in its
subsidiary, Beijing Tian Cheng Yong Yuan Zhi Ye Limited
(dEmRRWAKTTE EBGRAF]) (hereafter “Tian Cheng
Yong Yuan”). Upon Disposal, the Group held 50% of
equity interests in Tian Cheng Yong Yuan. According
to a new Joint Venture Agreement, the Group can still
exercise the control over Tian Cheng Yong Yuan and
classified as subsidiary.

During the period, the Group disposed 100% equity
interest in its subsidiary, Beijing Wan'an huixin
Investment and Management Co., Ltd. (It RELEEZ
BEEEAMR/AE]) and Beijing Jinfu hongxiang Investment
and Management Co., Ltd. (It RIRERAKREEEF
FR2@]) , which in turn disposed 100% equity interest in
its subsidiary, Beijing Huayuan shengxing Real Estate Co.,

Ltd. (IERFEEFHEEXERAA]) .

3.
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During the period, the Group disposed entire equity
interests in its subsidiary, Beijing Litong Shangyi Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (It RFBEEREBRA
al).

During the period, the Group held 10% of the fund
units in Zhuhai Henggin Beijing Capital Land Zizhufang
Equity Investment Centre (R EEREHRIZEXAER
AEFERE 0y ) (Limited Partner) (hereinafter “ZHZZF").
ZHZZF held 100% equity interests in Beijing Taihao
Shengyuan Property Limited (dt RERERIBEEBR A
7)) (hereinafter “Taihao Shengyuan”). According to the
partnership agreement, the Group and other partners
jointly control the investment and operation strategy of
ZHZZF and Taihao Shengyuan, and classified as joint
ventures.

Entrusted Deposits and Overdue Time
Deposits

As at 30 June 2014, the Group did not have any
deposits under trusts in financial institutions in the PRC
and Hong Kong. All of the Group’s cash was held in
commercial banks in PRC and Hong Kong in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations. The Group has no
bank deposits which are not recoverable upon maturity.

Secured Borrowings

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB233,200,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB210,000,000) were pledged by guaranteed deposit.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB3,506,189,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB3,052,133,000) were secured by certain properties
under development.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB136,800,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB367,408,000) were secured by fixed assets and land
use rights.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB 144,000,000 (31 December 2013: Nil) were pledged
by guaranteed deposit and secured by guarantee
provided by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB660,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB1,008,753,000) were pledged by equity interests of
subsidiaries and guaranteed by the Group.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB360,832,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB2,383,125,000) were secured by the guarantee
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB5,007,500,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB2,578,100,000) were secured by guarantee provided
by the Group for its subsidiaries and were pledged by
certain properties under development of its subsidiaries.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB810,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB864,538,000) were secured by the guarantee
provided by the Group for its subsidiaries and secured
by land use rights and buildings in property under
development by its subsidiaries and pledged by its
corresponding income right.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB900,000,000 (31 December 2013: Nil) were secured
by guarantee provided by the Group for its subsidiaries
and were secured by land use right arising from
properties under development, and pledged by its equity
interest.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB1,511,019,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB212,021,000) were pledged by bank deposits of the
Group.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB80,000,000 (31 December 2013: RMB87,500,000)
were pledged by equity interests and income right
arising from primary land development rights of the
Group.

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB206,350,000 (31 December 2013: RMB5,000,000)
were credit loans obtained by the Group.
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As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings of
RMB2,000,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB2,000,000,000) were guaranteed by Capital Group.

As at 30 June 2014, trust loans of RMB1,946,000,000
(31 December 2013: RMB1,946,000,000)
were guaranteed by the Group; trust loans
of RMB790,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB800,000,000) were guaranteed by Capital
Group and the Group for its subsidiaries; trust
loans of RMB1,000,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB1,000,000,000) were guaranteed by Capital Group.

Corporate Bonds

In February 2011, BECL Investment Holding Limited
issued RMB1,150,000,00 bond with maturity of 3 years
and coupon rate of 4.75% guaranteed by the Group and
the bond was fully repaid in February 2014.

In November 2012, Central Plaza Development Ltd.
issued 3-year bond of RMB2,000,000,000 at a coupon
rate of 7.6% per year, guaranteed by certain subsidiaries
of the Group including International Financial Center
Property Ltd.

Medium Term Note

In February 2014, Central Plaza Development Ltd.
established Guaranteed Medium Term Note and
Perpetual Securities Programme (“the Programme”),
guaranteed by International Financial Center Property
Ltd. or, as the case may be, the Company, for
Instruments to be issued. Under the Programme, Central
Plaza Development Ltd. may offer and issue Instruments
of principal amount of up to USD1,000,000,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In February 2014, Central Plaza Development Ltd. carried
a drawdown under the Programme to offer and issue
3-year notes of RMB2,000,000,000 at a coupon rate
of 5.75% and 5-year notes of RMB250,000,000 at a
coupon rate of 6.875%.

In April 2014, Central Plaza Development Ltd. carried
a drawdown under the Programme to offer and issue
3-year notes of RMB1,000,000,000 at a coupon rate of
5.75% to be consolidated and form a single series with
the 3-year notes of RMB2,000,000,000 at a coupon rate
of 5.75% issued on February 2014.

Equity Instrument

In April 2013, Central Plaza Development Ltd. issued
UsSD400,000,000 Senior Perpetual Capital Securities
("Securities”) at an annual rate of 8.375%, guaranteed
by certain subsidiaries of the Group including
International Financial Center Property Ltd. The Securities
have no maturity date and are redeemable at the option
of the Issuer. The Securities are classified as equity in the
financial statements.

In December 2013, Minsheng Royal Asset Management
Co., Ltd. ("Minsheng Royal”) established a Specific
Assets Management Plan and raised an amount
of RMB2,200,000,000, the Group subscribed in
subordinated units for RMB190,000,000. Since the
Specific Assets Management Plan is set up for the
financing need of its subsidiary as a specific purpose
entity so it is consolidated. According to the terms of
the Specific Assets Management Plan, the Group has no
contractual obligations to repay principal or interest to
other investors under the Specific Assets Management
Plan or interest, therefore the investment from Specific
Assets Management Plan complied with definition of
equity instrument. The Group realised minority interest
at RMB2,010,000,000 in its consolidation.
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In June 2014, Minsheng Royal established Gains the
wealth specific capital management plan with an
amount of RMB1,500,000,000. According to the
terms of “Investment Agreement” signed by the
assigned subsidiaries of the Group and specific capital
management plan, the Group has no contractual
obligation to repay the principal or interests to the
Specific Capital Management Plan, therefore the specific
capital management plan complied with the definition
of equity instrument. It would be treated as profit
distribution to shareholders when dividend was declared.
As at 9 February 2014, the Board proposed to distributes
dividends to all shareholders, therefore, according
to the terms of investment agreement, the Group
cannot choose to defer annual bonus amounted to
RMB165,000,000. After deducting the annual dividend
payable, the amount of minority interests recognised
amounts to RMB1,335,000,000.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had arranged bank facilities for certain
purchasers of its properties and provided guarantees to
secure the repayment obligations of such purchasers.
As at 30 June 2014, the outstanding balances of
guarantees amounted to RMB3,462,938,000 (31
December 2013: RMB3,198,457,000).

Such guarantees will terminate upon (i) the issuance of
the real estate ownership certificate which will generally
be available within six months to two years after the
Group delivers possession of the relevant property to
its purchasers; (ii) the completion of the mortgage
registration; and (iii) the issuance of the real estate
miscellaneous right certificate relating to the relevant
property.

As at 30 June 2014, the Group provided
guaranteed bank borrowings for its subsidiaries
of RMB10,618,332,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB9,580,515,000). As at 30 June 2014, guarantees
provided by a subsidiary of the Group for Central
Plaza Development Ltd. for the issuance of corporate
bond of RMB2,000,000,000, USD400,000,000 Senior
Perpetual Capital Securities and a drawdown of
RMB3,250,000,000 under the MTN Programme. As at 30
June 2014, the Group provided guarantee for Minsheng
Royal management plan of RMB3,700,000,000. Except
for the above, the Group had no other material external
guarantee.
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LATEST INFORMATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AND MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 30 June 2014, there was a total issued share capital of
2,027,960,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
include:

S5t 9 e A R 00 o 2 A

RN

AABPN _ZE—NFENA=THHDET
A% 7K &2,027,960,0000% A% 10 - B G 45 -

Approximate
Number of percentages
Shares of share capital

R 8B RABNE G

Domestic Shares W& % 649,205,700 32.01%
Non-H Foreign Shares FEHRRINE AR 357,998,300 17.65%
H Shares HA% 1,020,756,000 50.34%

2,027,960,000 100%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES

So far as is known to any directors of the Company, as of
30 June 2014, the following parties (other than the directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

FTERRERER

ARFR-E—MEAAZ+A  HEAE
EHA THAL (FHARAZEEAS
BERAR)RAR AR AR P
BARBES R E HOIXVE BRI
B AR A2 R AR

Approximate percentages Approximate percentages
in relevant class of shares (%) in total issued share capital (%)
EERERRRG 2 BAEDL(%) EEBERTRAZBHEIH(%)
Number
of Shares
directly and  Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held ~ Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
HEREE
RRER BEZRBEE  ROER ERER HEER BHAY ERER BEES ERAY
Capital Group 924,441,900"  Non-listed Shares 64.46 27.33 91.78 32.01 13.57 4558
TREHEEERERAR #EmRH (long position)  (long position) (long position)  (long position)
(#F#8) (#7%8) (1F8) (#F#8)
Beijing Sunshine Real 275,236,200%  Non-listed Shares - 27.33 27.33 - 13.57 13.57
Estate Comprehensive kLR (long position) (long position)
Development Company (fF8) (fF8)
tRBrEHESGSE
REAT
Beijing Capital Sunshine 275,236,200%  Non-listed Shares - 27.33 27.33 - 13.57 13.57
Real Estate Development kLR (long position) (long position)
Co., Ltd. (#7%8) (###)
tREEBEE
BREFRAF
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Approximate percentages

in relevant class of shares (%)

ERRERRS ZBOE D (%)

Approximate percentages

in total issued share capital (%)

EEHERTRAZBENED (%)

Number
of Shares
directlyand  Class of Direct Indirect Aggregate Direct Indirect Aggregate
Name of shareholders indirectly held Shares interests interests interests interests interests interests
EERBE
RRER BEZRBHAE R4 &R BEER BiEER BREY HiEER BEER ERay
China Resource Products 275,236,200 Non-listed Shares 27.33 - 27.33 13.57 - 13.57
Limited FEmki (long position) (long position)
HENEERAA (48) (f12)
Yieldwell International 82,762,100 Non-listed Shares 8.22 - 8.22 4.08 - 408
Enterprise Limited # LR (long position) (long position)
BEERCEERAT (#8) (f12)
Fexi Holdings Limited 82,762,100%  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4.08 408
E Rl <) (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (f18)
Brocade City Holdings Limited 82,762,100°  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4.08 408
BRIERERAF ¥ EmRA (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (f12)
Ngai Shu Susanna 82,762,100©  Non-listed Shares - 8.22 8.22 - 4.08 408
e # LR (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (f12)
Reco Pearl Private Limited 165,070,000 H Shares 16.17 - 16.17 8.14 - 8.14
HE% (long position) (long position)
(48) (f12)
Recosia China Pte Ltd. 165,070,000 H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Hix (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (f18)
Recosia Pte Ltd. 165,070,000®  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Hix (long position) (long position)
(fF8) (f18)
Government of Singapore 165,070,000%  H Shares - 16.17 16.17 - 8.14 8.14
Investment Corporation Hi% (long position) (long position)
(Realty) Pte Ltd. (##2) (#18)
Templeton Asset Management 102,238,000 H Shares 10.02 - 10.02 5.04 - 5.04
Limited HE% (long position) (long position)
(48) (f72)
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Notes:

Of these 924,441,900 Shares, 649,205,700 Shares are directly held
by Capital Group, the remaining 275,236,200 Shares are deemed
corporate interests under the SFO indirectly held through Beijing
Sunshine Real Estate Comprehensive Development Company,
Beijing Capital Sunshine Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and
China Resource Products Limited.

275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the
SFO indirectly held through Beijing Capital Sunshine Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. and China Resource Products Limited.

275,236,200 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through China Resource Products Limited.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited
and Fexi Holdings Limited.

82,762,100 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Yieldwell International Enterprise Limited,
Fexi Holdings Limited and Brocade City Holdings Limited.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited and Recosia China
Pte Ltd.

165,070,000 Shares are deemed corporate interests under the SFO
indirectly held through Reco Pearl Private Limited, Recosia China Pte
Ltd. and Recosia Pte Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, as
of 30 June 2014, none of the parties (other than the directors
or chief executives of the Company) had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

35 01 B A 1E e A 3 B R

B 3 :

1. 1£924,441,900/% I 17 & 9 - 649,205,700
BBRHBIEREMEEERMERAAEE
A H#:275,236,2000 D IR IEEH &
HEGAIERIEREZE#EZ  DHiBEBRILRG
REMEFREHAEAR LR EAG X Ei
EEREMLRE RPEMEFRARME
BA-

2. 275,236,200 I 1 1R 15 & % & BR & {6 0 48
BIEREEREZ BBt REEIB X EiH
EEREFTARLKTEYMESRARME
A

3. 275,236,2000% B& 15 1R 15 75 7 & HR & 1601 4%
BlEREEEZR  EBTEYEBRAR
Faﬁ%%ﬁrﬁ”

4. 82,762, 100% A& 7 1R 15 3 5 I BR & 1511547
EREEERS  NERBRERBCEERA
BIfERA -

5. 82,762,100 A& (1 1R 15 B 55 I BR & 15 HI 448
EREEEZ  NEREBERBEEERA
7] M Fexi Holdings Limited@#Z 54 ©

6. 82,762,100 17 1R 5 38 75 M I B (R DI 4R
ERZEER DEBBERBRLERRA
7]~ Fexi Holdings Limited & 883 12 % B BR 22
AEERE -

7. 165,070,0000% A% 17 15 15 75 % I B & 1601 4%
BAIEAREEREZ - ThiB BReco Pearl Private
Limited @ 45 5 ©

8. 165,070,0008% A% 7 15 15 75 % I BR & 14 0] 1%
RAIERABE#EZ - T BReco Pearl Private
Limited % Recosia China Pte Ltd.BE 4+ H -

9. 165,070,0000% i% {5 45 15 75 % & HA & 15651 48
RIEAEBEZ - Jhi8 BReco Pearl Private
Limited * Recosia China Pte Ltd.}Recosia
Pte Ltd.fE ¥ H -
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

As at 30 June 2014, none of the directors, supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers. None of the directors, supervisors and chief executives
of the Company or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities
of the Company or had exercised any such rights during the
period.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
the changes in information of directors of the Company
subsequent to the date of the 2013 Annual Report is set out
below:

Mr. Ng Yuk Keung, an independent non-executive director of
the Company is a director of Cheetah Mobile Inc. which was
listed on New York Stock Exchange (NYSE: CMCM) on May
2014,

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial report matters,
including the review of the unaudited interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2014.
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Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the six months ended 30 June 2014, the Company had
not redeemed any of its shares. Neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period.

Long Term Incentive Fund Scheme

On 27 September 2007, the Company had adopted the
long term incentive fund scheme (the “Scheme™) which was
subsequently amended on 25 September 2009 and 14 March
2014. The Scheme is proposed to encourage the directors,
supervisors, senior management and core staff members of
the Company for closer ties of their personal interests with the
interests of the Company and of the shareholders, as well as for
alignment of their personal goals with the common goal of the
Company.

As at 30 June 2014, the Company had through the trustee
purchased 15,300,000 H shares, representing 1.5% of H shares
and 0.75% of the entire issued share capital of the Company.
Up to the date of this report, the shares purchased have been
held in trust by the trustee.

Corporate Governance

During the period from 1 January 2014 to 30 June 2014, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
"Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” as set out in Appendix 14 to the “Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited” (the “Listing Rules”).

Compliance with the Code for Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted a code which is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and the company code throughout
the period.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

—FE—ENA=1H (BEFFE) £8BEMBARKTT)
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
REE i REET BE
—E-E :g—:i —E-mE —T—=F
~E=1H Jr:HE%*H ~A=+A +ZA=t+—H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
i3 & =i AH AR
(Restated) (Restated)
ltem EH (&) (L&)
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand gBES 5(1) 11,673,497 11,339,807 1,423,502 800,899
Financial assets at fair value WARBETERHZS
through profit or loss STAEHEREN
%ﬁﬂéfé 52) - 43,728 - -
Notes receivable ERE & 1,181 1,714 - -
Accounts receivable FEUER 3 5(3)(@) 718,137 486,714 160 160
Advances to suppliers BNFE 5(4) 162,467 133,999 279 4,460
Interest receivable JE Y| B, 3,431 3,893 - -
Dividends receivable JE U B 5(5) 238,447 97,247 - 12,400
Other receivables i \ﬁﬂﬂﬁlm 5(3)(b) + 14(1) 3,454,427 3,326,858 20,807,603 15,157,523
Inventories 5(6) 37,815,912 29,646,484 44,076 44,076
Current portion of —¢W HEMERSEE
non-current assets 5(14) - 768,512 - =
Non-current assets and assets HEDBEERER
of disposal group FERBEER
classified as held for sale BEDBERFEN
REETNEE 5(7) 9,921 1,902,313 - =
Other current assets HEtmeaeE 5(8) 1,188,113 1,130,762 - -
Total current assets RBEER 55,265,533 48,882,031 22,275,620 16,019,518
Non-current assets FREEE
Available-for-sale EHESHEE
financial assets 5(9) 123,381 149,258 123,381 149,258
Long-term receivables REBEKR 5(14) 300,239 292,380 300,239 292,380
Long-term equity investments ®EARERE 5(10) : 14(2) 2,299,539 2,283,797 3,765,817 3,754,967
Investment properties BRENEE 5(11) 3,962,981 3,488,709 1,958 1,958
Fixed assets EE&E 5(12) 495,886 503,635 62,016 64,285
Intangible assets EVEE 5(13) 59,066 52,017 - =
Goodwill S 5(15) 172,137 72,137 - -
Long-term prepaid expenses RBGEER 69,422 43,451 - =
Deferred tax assets BEFEHER 5(29)(c) 325,343 323,273 22,818 42,844
Other non-current assets Hit R EE 9,895 = - =
Total non-current assets FRBEEST 7,817,889 7,308,657 4,276,229 4,305,692
TOTAL ASSETS BEMG 63,083,422 56,190,688 26,551,849 20,325,210
Current liabilities nBAE
Short-term borrowings HEET 5(17) 4,314,733 1,374,915 200,000 =
Notes payable ENZE 54,674 35,734 - =
Accounts payable E%ﬁ?lﬁ?ﬁ 5(18) 3,422,104 3,803,396 12,471 16,282
Advances from customers AR 5(19) 7,231,690 7,001,853 807 807
Employee benefits payable JERTES T 5 5(20) 87,951 137,911 63,644 82,577
Taxes payable EXHE 5(21) 1 14(3) 2,037,683 2,519,036 30,798 50,638
Interest payable FERFIE 178,712 105,161 62,604 29,229
Dividends payable JE £ R 5(22 684,626 288,527 142,825 =
Other payables E TR 5(23) 4,416,256 3,583,466 17,166,956 10,925,860
Current portion of —FRIHANERHAR
non-current liabilities 5(24) 4,452,712 6,737,436 999,355 997,755
Liabilities of disposal group HEAD ABAERFENRE
classified as held for sale HrmaE 5(25) - 877,972 - -
Total current liabilities RBAEE 26,881,141 26,465,407 18,679,460 12,103,148
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
i OF B v & E AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

—EmENA=TH (BHFEH) 2EELBAREFT)

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
REEG LES REEH L&
“E-lF “T-=% —E-lmF “T-=F
ARAEZTHE ftZA=f-8 AA=+A f+ZA=+—H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
i3 =R =i AF AF]
(Restated) (Restated)
Item EH (&) (&)
Non-current liabilities krBaE
Long-term borrowings REBER 5(26) 11,639,800 10,739,313 3,210,000 3,210,000
Debentures payable [ERES 5(27) 5,193,650 1,977,532 - =
Long-term payables REBEIR 5(28) 650,000 = - —
Deferred tax liabilities EEMEHAR 5(29)(c) 618,312 779,952 - =
Total non-current liabilities FRBaEa 18,101,762 13,496,797 3,210,000 3,210,000
Total liabilities BESH 44,982,903 39,962,204 21,889,460 15,313,148
Owners' equity EY §+
Paid-in capital BAx 5(30) 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960 2,027,960
Capital surplus BARTE 5(31) 1,490,042 2,112,388 1,303,430 1,322,838
Surplus reserve BHNE 5(32) 341,768 341,768 341,768 341,768
Undistributed profits AN B 5(33) 4,434,550 4,219,571 989,231 1,319,496
Difference on translation of INERRTEZ
foreign currency
financial statements 6,790 6,053 - =
Total equity attributable to BERENARRER
equity holders of =5
the Company 8,301,110 8,707,740 4,662,389 5,012,062
Minority interest SERR R 5(34) 9,799,409 7,520,744 - =
Total owners’ equity RREREE 18,100,519 16,228,484 4,662,389 5,012,062
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SERRRERA
OWNERS' EQUITY 63,083,422 56,190,688 26,551,849 20,325,210

The accompanying notes on page 43 to 246 are an integral &It B43 8 | F246 8 K B 75 K M & A B
part of these financial statements. &R E o

)
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY INCOME STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BlIF = F—PFEN A=+ HiE A B (B85 2 BB B ARKFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
REET REET
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013
HEZ-Z-mF HE-T-=F BE-Z-NF HE-T-=F
~A=tH ~NAZTH ~A=TH ~NA=tH
EREASME LA EASE LAEABE  LEAEASE
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item HH i3 =Xiid =i AF NG|
Revenue 0N 5(35); 14(4) 4,519,333 4,889,506 48,423 46,598
Less: Cost of sales BRI 5(35); 14(4) (3,224,685) (3.316,699) - (78)
Taxes and surcharges 2ERS RN 5(36) (304,076) (423,679) (5,763) (9,226)
Selling and distribution HEERM
exXpenses 5(37) (201,726) (124,675) - =
General and administrative EEER
expenses 5(37) (192,731) (128,635) (60,084) (46,119)
Financial income/(expenses) MBEBA/ (BR)
- net ] 5(38) 131,869 (117,342) (78,463) 52,855
Asset impairment losses BERERE 5(39) (48,004) (31,184) - =
Add: (Losses)/gains arising from 77 DA BEE
changes in fair value (B%) /& 5(41) (75,496) 199,439 - =
Investment income REKE 5(42); 14(5) 703,343 141,792 252,758 17,558
Including: Share of Hb:Haehs
profit/(loss) of MBS R EH
joint ventures and KB W
associates (E#R) 14(5) 89,691 48,306 12,758 (484)
Operating profit BEAE 1,307,827 1,088,523 156,871 61,588
Add: Non-operating income 0 EEMRA 2,883 13,010 - —
Less: Non-operating expenses R EENT 5(40) (32,686) (28,475) - (362)
Total profit FBaE 1,278,024 1,073,058 156,871 61,226
Less: Income tax expenses A EHER 5(43) (270,235) (315,735) (40,985) (16,421)
Net profit i) 1,007,789 757,323 115,886 44,805
Attributable to equity holders of ~ FER &2 AR R AFF1H
the Company 661,130 562,161 N/A T f N/A 1@
Minority interest LERRER 346,659 195,162 N/A R ER N/A 7
Earnings per share for profit SRUR (ETER
attributable to the equity REBAFERR
holders of the Company RRAHZFE) 5(44)
— Basic earnings per share EAgkYE
(RMB Yuan) (AR®T) 033 0.28 N/A FER N/A T3 3
- Diluted earnings per share mESRIE
(RMB Yuan) (AR%T) 033 0.28 N/A FER N/A T3 5
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

Bl F = F—9FE XA =+ AN A B (BRI S £ E B AREFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
REET REEA
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013
HE-Z-mF HE-ZT-=F BPE-Z-NF HE-T-=F
~AAZTH ~NA=1H ~A=TH ~NAZTH
IEAEAME  WEAEASE EAEASE  LENEALE
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH i3 =R =i A AR
Other comprehensive income ~ HttG 8RB NBRAEHFE
after deducting income BNREE
tax effects
Other comprehensive income e BRERERTE
may be reclassified to profitor ~ EHEBEHEERE
loss thereafter when specific MR Y
preconditions are met
- Changes in fair value of ~HNESREE
available-for-sale NABEE
financial assets (19,408) (10,837) (19,408) (11,007)
~ Recycling of changes in A AR AR S
fair value of previously Wiz s é‘ tEHE
investment properties RREEEY
recognised in other g HEn
comprehensive income 531)(b) (657,714) - - -
— Foreign currency translation —NERBRENEER
differences of financial
statements 737 31,110 - -
Total comprehensive income  SREKELE 331,404 777,596 96,478 33,798
Total comprehensive (losses)/ HSERENARROGE
income attributable to equity (B1B)/ M8
holders of the Company (15,255) 582,434 N/A R N/A TE
Total comprehensive income RO EREH
attributable to minority interest 4R A A% 346,659 195,162 N/A R iE B N/A REF
The accompanying notes on page 43 to 246 are an integral B Rt s AR

part of these financial statements.

&M 43 E 25246
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
A DF B 2y i) Bl 4 i m AR

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BlIF = F—PFEEN A= BN AR (BR8N £ 8B BARETFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
REET REET
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013
“E-ME HEZT-=F “EZ-WE HEZT-ZF
~AAZ=1H ~NA=TA ~AA=1H ~NA=tH
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH i3 =L =i AH AR
Cash flows from BETHELNESRE
operating activities
Cash received from sales of goods A&/ M ~ IR & 15U EI&
or rendering of Re
services 4,820,559 4,397,595 48,423 46,598
Cash received relating to B AR E B A M
other operating activities B 1,985,922 1,096,042 6,611,904 3,623,380
Sub-total of cash inflows BEEBRERANG 6,806,481 5,493,637 6,660,327 3,669,978
Cash paid for goods and BERm BXBHBIAN
services R (11,713,587) (6,040,934) (45) (78)
Cash paid to and on behalf of TEBRINRAR I
employees B 5(20) (206,962) (186,952) (46,433) (80,758)
Payments of taxes and surcharges X (R BB & (1,138,323) (687,480) (50,105) (1,315)
Cash paid relating to other TR M EE B BN
operating activities RBe (1,744,725) (237,894) (6,382,890) (3,963,729)
Sub-total of cash outflows EETHRESRE G (14,803,597) (7,153,260) (6,479,473) (4,045,880)
Net cash flows from CETHELNRLRE
operating activities B 5(46)(a) (7,997,116) (1,659,623) 180,854 (375,902)
Cash flows from investing REEDELNRERE
activities
Cash received from disposal of ~ BEREKEINRE
investments - 48,162 - 10
Cash received from returns BEREEMKEINRS
on investments 12,400 772 24,308 772
Net cash received from REEEEE BREEMN
disposal of fixed assets, Hit R AEKEA
intangible assets and ReFE
other long-term assets 4,898 624 74 -
Cash received from disposal of ~ BEFARMEIRHEFE
subsidiaries 333,269 191,354 240,000 -
Cash received relating to WE| B R B S E R
other investing activities Be 2,065,394 17,270 427,570 17,270
Sub-total of cash inflows RETHRERADE 2,415,961 258,182 691,952 18,052




HRAIERRDARAR % AP

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
S W ONGE RSl .3
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BlIF = F—PFEEN A= BN AR (BR8N £ E M BARETFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
REET REET
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended

30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013
BE-_Z-DmE HE_T-=F EZ-E-NE BHE_T-=F
~AAZTH ~NA=TRH ~A=1H ~NA=TH

Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH i3 =L &t AH AF]
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, ERETEE BFEEMN
intangible assets and other HitRAEES M
long-term assets B (397,664) (259,681) (693) (49)
Cash paid to acquire investments &% HHH & (81,000) (181,570) (10,000) (80,000)
Net cash paid to acquire BETARMAMEEEN
subsidiaries and other operation X fTHIR & F 58
unit - (53,165) - -
Cash paid relating to other TR AR AR E) B R
investing activities B (172,388) (269,440) - (117,570)
Sub-total of cash outflows REZTBRELRE it (651,052) (763,856) (10,693) (197,619)
Net cash flows from REEBHELN
investing activities REREFHE 1,764,909 (505,674) 681,259 (179,567)
Cash flows from financing EETHELNRERE
activities
Cash received from capital R E W E| R 3R 2
contributions 1,500,000 2,437,439 - -
Including: Cash received from Hf: FARETAR
senior perpetual KEFEF M
securities issued by Iﬁi
subsidiaries - 2,437,439 - =
Cash received from FARBMBER
specific capital BREKIM
management plan Be 5(34)(c) 1,500,000 = - =
Proceeds from disposal of RE N alRER
shares of subsidiaries and PERENEINE S
minority shareholders 1,049,087 - - -
Cash received from borrowings ~ BVSEZKEIHNE S 7,910,501 2,962,258 200,000 1,000,000
Cash received from other u&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ/ﬁﬂﬁ@aﬁ’\]
financing activities Be 650,000 = - =
Sub-total of cash inflows BEEHRERANG 11,109,588 5,399,697 200,000 1,000,000
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2014

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
A PF B A W) B A i AR
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BlIF = F—FEN A= BB (BR8N 2B BARETFT)

Unaudited Unaudited
REET REE
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013 30 June 2014 30 June 2013
ZE-MF BE-T--£ BE-E-WE HE-T-=F
~A=ZTH ~NA=TA ~A=ZTH ~NA=1H
Note Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH i3 R =i AR AR
Cash repayments of borrowings ~ BEEE T FHEE (4,528,179) (2,987,440) - (78,000)
Cash payments for interest DEIRA FMEXEFTE
expenses and distribution of YRR
dividends or profits (1,344,096) (981,875) (434,300) (290,373)
Cash paid for purchasing share BB T ARV ERRIIES
in subsidiaries from minority DEEkA
shareholders - (36,267) -
Sub-total of cash outflows BEZDRESRE NG (5.872,275) (4,005,582) (434,300) (368,373)
Net cash flows from EETHELNELRE
financing activities FE 5,237,313 1,394,115 (234,300) 631,627
Effect of foreign exchange EXZHHRENTE
rate changes on cash 1,179 (218) (5,210) (3,344)
Net (decrease)/increase B¢ (RY)/ B
in cash 5(46)(b) (993,715) (771,400) 622,603 72,814
Add: Cash at beginning of - BNREHE
period 5(46)(b) 10,487,655 8,076,268 800,899 400,751
Cash at end of period HAREHE 5(46)(b) 9,493,940 7,304,868 1,423,502 473,565
The accompanying notes on page 43 to 246 are an integral & M #t 5543 E 2| 246 B A B 15 TR R M it & BF
part of these financial statements. BT B AR E D o
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S PP R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY
‘o B A o i 58 B %

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

B BZ =T —ENA =11 R (BRI 28 E B ARKETFr)
Unaudited
REHFH
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BREABARRRER
Difference on
translation of
foreign
currency Total
Paid-in Capital Surplus  Undistributed financial Minority owners’
Note capital surplus reserves profits statements interest equity
HERR SRR BET 3
Item EH i3 BA EADE BHAR  RAEFE FEEE i 3 &t
Balance at 1 January 2013 “E--E-B-RHIKBE 2,027,960 2,226,409 341,768 3,022,039 (1,615) 2,386,450 10,003,011
Movement for the six months ended ~ HZ=Z—-=FxA=THL
30 June 2013 AEARBEALBE
Comprehensive income malngE
Net profit E - - - 562,161 - 195,162 757,323
Other comprehensive (losses)/income A (BB) k565 = (10,837) = = 31,110 = 20,273
Total comprehensive (losses)/income Ra (BE) /e
@East = (10,837) = 562,161 31,110 195,162 777,59
Capital contribution and withdrawal RERARHSER
by owners, including- Heh:
Others Hfty - (16,040) - - - (375,448) (391,488)
Capital contribution by equity owners Eaftds 5(34) (a) = = = = = 2,333,945 2,333,945
Profit distribution to equity owners HRROAE 5(33) = = = (324,474) = = (324,474)
Balance at 30 June 2013 “E-=FXA=1H
BRGHE 2,027,960 2,199,532 341,768 3,259,726 29,495 4,540,109 12,398,590
Balance at 1 January 2014 “E-ME-F-ABUSE 2,027,960 2,112,388 341,768 4,219,571 6,053 7,520,744 16,228,484
Movement for the six months ended ~ HZ-F-MEXA=THL
30 June 2014 ,\mmrwmm&
Comprehensive income Salinss
Net profit FH - - - 661,130 - 346,659 1,007,789
Other comprehensive (losses)/income A (BR) /s 549 - (677,122) - - 737 - (676,385)
Total comprehensive (losses)/income R4 (BB) /e
BEA - (677,122) - 661,130 737 346,659 331,404
Capital contribution and withdrawal by~ BRRJEAFFLEA
owners, including- Hepi:
Capital paid-in BRBAER = = = = = 994,311 994,311
Investment absorbed from FARETEEEE
specific capital management FHERY AR E
plan issued by subsidiaries 5(34) (c) - - - - - 1,335,000 1,335,000
Others £ty 4(4) - 54,776 - - - - 54,776
Profit distribution to equity owners HRRHAE 5(33) = = = (446,151) = (397,305) (843,456)
Balance at 30 June 2014 “E2-mEXRAZTA
HRBE 2,027,960 1,490,042 341,768 4,434,550 6,790 9,799,409 18,100,519

The accompanying notes on page 43 to 246 are an integral

part of these financial statements.

&M EEA3E 2|5 246F
BB RR A AR AR ©

BB HA M E R Y
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BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY

INTERIM REPORT 2014

2 ) i SR i e B ¢

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (All amounts in thousands of units of RMB unless otherwise stated)

BlE = F—PIFE N A= 1A AR (BRI RS 2 SRE BARETFT)

Unaudited
REET
Total
Paid-in Capital Surplus  Undistributed owners'
Note capital surplus reserves profits equity
RRES
Item ER MizE S - E N BEHAR KABAE At
Balance at 1 January 2013 ~®2-Z¥-A-H
BOHE 2,027,960 1,332,831 341,768 1,677,410 5,379,969
Movement for the six months HE-E--EXA=t1H
ended 30 June 2013 EAAAHEERS DR
Comprehensive income RAlEEE
Net profit i - - - 44,805 44,805
Other comprehensive loss Ly - (11,007) - - (11,007)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income g8 (BR) /s
gEas - (11,007) = 44,805 33,798
Profit distribution to equity owners  HRRAHE 533) = = = (324,474) (324,474)
Balance at 30 June 2013 ZE-ZFXA=tH
BARBE 2,027,960 1,321,824 341,768 1,397,741 5,089,293
Balance at 1 January 2014 ~2-m¥-A-H
BOHE 2,027,960 1,322,838 341,768 1,319,496 5,012,062
Movement for the six months HE-Z-MEXA=TH
ended 30 June 2014 LAEASEEREDE
Comprehensive income GalnEs
Net profit A - - - 115,886 115,886
Other comprehensive loss LG AEE - (19,408) - - (19,408)
Total comprehensive (loss)income &4 (BB) /W&
gEas - (19,408) - 115,886 96,478
Profit distribution to equity owners  HRRAHE 533) - - - (446,151) (446,151)
Balance at 30 June 2014 “E-MERAZTH
HRBE 2,027,960 1,303,430 341,768 989,231 4,662,389

B EEASE R E246 A WM BB MK TR Y
MR AR AR ©

The accompanying notes on page 43 to 246 are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B4 755 ¥ e Bt

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BHFIZHS) £ EBARETFT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Capital Land Ltd. (hereinafter “the
Company”) was established by seven companies
on 23 July 2002, namely Beijing Capital Group Ltd.
(hereinafter “Capital Group”), Beijing Sunshine
Real Estate Comprehensive Development Company
(hereinafter “Sunshine Comprehensive”), Beijing
Capital Sunshine Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Capital Sunshine”), Beijing Capital
Technology Investment Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Capital
Technology”), Beijing Capital Hangyu Economic
Development Co., Ltd. (change to “Beijing Capital
Development Co., Ltd.” afterwards, hereinafter
“Capital Development”), China Resource Products
Limited (hereinafter “China Resource”) and Yieldwell
International Enterprise Limited (hereinafter
“Yieldwell International”) (hereinafter “the
promoters”).

The Company was registered on 5 December 2002 in
Beijing with total share capital of RMB1,100,000,000
at RMB1 per share. The Company issued
513,300,000 shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“H-shares”) in June
2003. And 51,330,000 shares were transferred to
public by some promoters from state-owned shares
and state-owned entities shares.

On 27 January 2005, the Company placed
112,926,000 H-shares (RMB1 per share), of which,
102,660,000 shares were newly issued, and
10,266,000 shares were transferred to public by
some promoters from state-owned shares and state-
owned entities shares.

On 26 October 2006, the Company placed
343,200,000 H-shares (RMB1 per share), of which,
312,000,000 shares were newly issued, and
31,200,000 shares were transferred to public by
some promoters from state-owned shares and state-
owned entities shares.

On 30 December 2008, Capital Sunshine, one of the
Company's promoters, disposed 14.11% share of the
Company to Capital Group. After the transaction,
Capital Group directly holds 15.34% interests of the
Company.

DRAEEEFR

BRIEXRDERDA (A THEIAR
ADR-_FF-_FHA-+t=HAELR
EHAIXEBERLQR (A THEIEHA
S8 LtRGHREHMESRERERDR
(AT EE]) EREEIEK
FHEBRSERR (VA THE[E RIS
K1) ERFERZREBR AR (JA
TR EREERFEE
HRARLDA (RERA/ [IEREEIER
BRRAR ATHEIEAIZRKR]) FE
MEBRDRA (ATREHEYE]) -
BEBRREXERAR (A THEEE
B LR ARHESEEA (AT
[EAEAL) BRI

—EE_F+-ARB - ARNARIER
MeEM A e R R RIR IR AR AR S A
R #1,100,000,0007T - X EE A R
1M R _EBEE=ZFRNA ARAESR
BEIREBEITHRIN ETAHRE (AT TH
B%1)513,300,0008% * [FIEF « B2 B AE A
BRREEFENBRRBKEEEBE AR
51,330,0008% 3 #F W (L AHR H &4
RNF - EMHBRERBHALSHMERA
Al ke

“EERF—A -+t H ARAEE
112,926,000 (B lREE A REI1T)
BOHRR - B /B #7382 97102,660,000
B BB AR A E D B AREIRE
WHAREEBRRRKREBEEGE AR
10,266,0000% °

“EERFEFTA-+ANE ARAIEE
343,200,000 (B lREEAREIT)
BOHRR - B AR #7382 97312,000,000
Gl S NN = B SN =B - e i
WHARBEBRRKREBEEE AR
31,200,000/% °

—EENEFEFTH=TH AARER
AZ—HBEEIGXBERENARF
14 1M %M EEEL BRI S E 8
% BHEISRBEEERFEANRRF5.34%H
B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
$UA 755 i Wi

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2= FE—FENA =1 H UM REE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

On 8 May 2014, Capital Technology, Capital
Development and Capital Sunshine, the Company’s
promoters, disposed 8.48%, 5.85% and 2.34%
share of the Company to Capital Group. After the
transaction, Capital Group directly holds 32.01%
interests of the Company.

The parent company and the ultimate parent
company of the Company is Capital Group.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the real estate
development and investment, commercial real estate
operation, hotel operation and property consulting
services in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

These interim financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors on 11 August 2014. The
interim financial statements were unaudited.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(1). Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared
in accordance with the Basic Standard
and specific standards of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises issued
by the Ministry of Finance on 15 February
2006, and the Application Guidance for
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises,
Interpretations of Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises and other relevant
regulations issued thereafter (hereafter
collectively referred to as “the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises” or “CAS").

NEIEERER (2)

—E-—NFRANB  ARRERLAE
BRI HAIBRMEAIB D g H
EHBAR R F8.48% * 5.85%M2.34%
R EE RO HAIER  EFE a5
B EEEFAE AR R32.01%H) B -

ARRNE R MKREERARARE
ISR

ARARTAAATARIAEE])
TENEEMENERRE HEME
BB EE RN R E R B R
%o

AMBBRRAARBEZEN TN
FNA+—BH#E NPAHPFHERRERKR
SR

TESBEMNE A

(1). MBHRRNOmEHER

7 B 75 3 5% e PR o R B BRI —
ZERF_A+HBARRERHR
B E) (R AR —ERE
A) MARE LR dXEF
EREMER CESEAR
BAREMEBHRE (ATEHE
[EEREER)HER-



HAERRMARAR ZF PR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEABRE (BHFIZHS) 2 EBARETFT)

TESBEME A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(1).

(2).

(3).

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Ministry of Finance newly issued CAS No.
39 — Fair value measurement, CAS No. 40 —
Joint arrangements, CAS No. 41 — Disclosure
of equity in other entity and revised CAS
No. 2 — Long-term equity investment, CAS
No. 9 — Employee benefits, CAS No. 30 -
Financial statement presentation and CAS
No. 33 — Consolidated financial statements in
2014. These new and amended standards are
effective on 1 July 2014 and overseas listed
companies are encouraged to early adopt
them. As the Company is listed in Hong Kong,
it has decided to early adopt these new and
amended standards in preparing the interim
financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2014. Management of the Company
has assessed that these developments have no
significant effect on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group, except for the effect
of applying the revised CAS No. 30 — Financial
statement presentation and CAS No. 39 — Fair
value measurement (Note 2(31)).

Statement of compliance with the
Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises

The financial statements of the Company for
the six months ended 30 June 2014 are in
compliance with the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises, and truly and
completely present the financial position of the
Consolidated and the Company as of 30 June
2014 and of their financial performance, cash
flows and other information for the six months
then ended.

Accounting year

The accounting year starts on 1 January and
ends on 31 December.

(%)

(1.

(2).

(3).

PHIE MR A B B (4F)

MEHBR - —mEED (X
SR ERE3K -2 A EEE
£) (EESHERFLR -5
L) (xR ERFA
S-EEMERTRERAEEE)
AR ERTRE (EEREFTERE
R -—REERERE) (bXEg
PRI B T HBM)
X5t ZE305% — M HKR T
H) (EEGHELEIZR-—6
HHMBHREK) - LMERH G T
—FLA— BT B
Sh E AR R R A ETT ° AR A
SHE LT AR B ARRE R
RIERA Bt 2 RR S — T — N 4F
PRI SRR K ARAERE
AHE - BRERME=QN)ELREA
REBERI&RN (BEEFELSE
305 — M IEMRFIER) (XS
AHERIFE3GR - A BENE)
MFEIN KA LA ERIWRA
BAKE A G IRREEEM
BER¥E-

BREREXSTEANESR

KRR ZE—NFENA=THHD
HEBRRFEEESTERNE
KoBEE - mEMKRBTAQR
T-MENA=THEHHAHEA
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= tHRE R A REEKRMN

RenETARBER-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2= FE—FENA =1 H UM REE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(4). Recording currency (4). FCERA{u#*
The recording currency of the Company and RARRKESDF R AEEERA
major subsidiaries is Renminbi (RMB), while the UEEARE  EBRKEEER
recording currency of subsidiaries incorporated BERAB(ATHERKRER
in France, including Datang Weiye Holdings EDEFMEERZ T2 A
(France) Co., Ltd. (“Datang Weiye France”) B 50 BR AN AL ¥ A BT - 85 K B BB
is Euro (EUR), and the recording currency TR AR AT (LA T (8 K
Juda International Holdings Limited (“Juda B ETRAMGLERAME &5
International”) is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD). o

(5). Business combinations (5). LESH/
(a) Business combinations involving (a) BE—ZEHTHLESH

enterprises under common control

The consideration paid and net assets eI E Y E
obtained by the absorbing party in a ERENFEEARKRK
business combination are measured at HAEEFE-AHFTERE
the carrying amount. The difference WFEEREEERESN
between the carrying amount of the WEHEEREEENE
net assets obtained and the carrying B -HABREAAE (BRA
amount of the consideration paid w®E) BARRE (RAE
for the combination is treated as an 8) N AR A - #3228
adjustment to capital surplus (share Fi s o

premium). If the capital surplus (share
premium) is not sufficient to absorb
the difference, the remaining balance is
adjusted against retained earnings.

Costs directly attributable to the
combination are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

RETEREAMHELENE
ERBEARELERA
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BHFIEHS) £ ELBARETFT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(5). Business combinations (Continued) (5). XS (&)

Business combinations involving
enterprises not under common
control

The cost of combination and identifiable
net assets obtained by the acquirer in a
business combination are measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. Where
the cost of the combination exceeds
the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets,
the difference is recognised as goodwill;
where the cost of combination is lower
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair
value of the acquirer’s identifiable net
assets, the difference is recognised in
profit or loss for the current period.

For a business combination achieved
in stages on the separate financial
statements, the initial cost shall be
the summation of the book value of
the previously held interest before the
acquisition date and the additional
investment cost at the acquisition
date. On the consolidated financial
statements, the previously held interest
is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date and the gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement.
When control is obtained, reserves held
in equity that related to the previously
held interest would be recognised in
the investment income for the current
period. The excess of the consideration
transferred from the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity in the acquiree, over
the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Costs directly attributable to the
combination are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

FE—EZHTHEXE 6
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE AR (B HFZ8) 2 BE B AREFT)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(6).

Preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control and are de-
consolidated from the date that such control
ceases. For a subsidiary that is acquired in a
business combination involving enterprises
under common control, it is included in the
consolidated financial statements from the
date when it, together with the Company,
comes under common control of the ultimate
controlling party. The portion of the net
profits realised before the combination date
is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, where the accounting policies
and the accounting periods are inconsistent
between the Company and subsidiaries,
the financial statements of subsidiaries are
adjusted in accordance with the accounting
policies and accounting period of the
Company. For subsidiaries acquired from a
business combination involving enterprises not
under common control, the individual financial
statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted
based on the fair value of the identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date.

All significant inter-group balances,
transactions and unrealised profits are
eliminated in the consolidated financial
statements. The portion of a subsidiary’s
equity and the portion of a subsidiary’s
net profits and losses for the period not
attributable to the Company are recognised
as non-controlling interests and presented
separately in the consolidated financial
statements within equity and net profits
respectively.
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TESBEME A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(7). Cash

Cash comprise cash on hand and deposits that
can be readily drawn on demand.

(8). Foreign currency translation

(a) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into RMB using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into RMB using the spot
exchange rates on the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from
these translations are recognised in
profit or loss for the current period,
except for those attributable to foreign
currency borrowings that have been
taken out specifically for the acquisition
or construction of qualifying assets,
which are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Nonmonetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that
are measured at historical costs are
translated at the balance sheet date
using the spot exchange rates at the
date of the transactions. The effect
of exchange rate changes on cash is
presented separately in the cash flow
statement.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(8).

(9).

Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(b)

Translation of foreign currency
financial statements

The asset and liability items in the
balance sheets for overseas operations
are translated at the spot exchange
rates on the balance sheet date. Among
the owners’ equity items, the items
other than “undistributed profits” are
translated at the spot exchange rates
on the transaction dates. The income
and expense items in the income
statements of overseas operations are
translated at the spot exchange rates on
the transaction dates. The differences
arising from the above translation are
presented separately in the owners’
equity. The cash flows of overseas
operations are translated at the spot
exchange rates on the dates of the
cash flows. The effect of exchange rate
changes on cash is presented separately
in the cash flow statement.

Financial instruments

(a)

Financial assets

(i) Classification of financial

assets

Financial assets are classified
into the following categories
at initial recognition: financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss, receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and
held-to-maturity investments.
The classification of financial
assets depends on the Group's
intention and ability to hold the
financial assets. The financial
assets of the Group are mainly
comprised of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss,
receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). €@I A (&)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) =WEEE)

(i) Classification of financial (i) ERMEESHE
assets (Continued) (&
Financial assets at fair value NAREETER
through profit or loss HE Bt AEHE

EHNERMEE

Financial assets at fair value LAnBEFTER
through profit or loss include HE Bt AEHE
financial assets held for the ENEREERRE
purpose of selling in the short REBNRRER
term. HENEREE-
Receivables FE W sk E
Receivables are non-derivative fE W FRIE B IR E
financial assets with fixed or Bhis R AR
determinable payments that are B Bl &5 EFE K
not quoted in an active market. AHEENIETESR
Available-for-sale financial AHHESHEE
assets
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE
are non-derivative financial assets B 35 ) 45 T 3R By B
that are either designated in WIRERAELE
this category or not classified in NEPTEERMEE
any of the other categories at RN E 5 RHEA
initial recognition. Available-for- HNEeMEE-BE
sale financial assets are included EBEXRABBI12ME
in other current assets on the R A& & a4t
balance sheet if management TESRMEETE
intends to dispose of them within EBEXRTITAE
12 months of the balance sheet B mE & E -
date.
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BE—F—

2.

BYE7X A =+ B L1 A B (A B BE5) £ AR E L B AR For)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(9).

Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised at
fair value on the balance sheet
when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument.
Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets are included
in their initial recognition
amounts.

Available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at
fair value, and they are measured
at cost when they do not have a
quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.
Receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gain or loss arising from change
in fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets is recognised
directly in equity, except for
impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses arising
from translation of monetary
financial assets. When such
financial assets are derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised directly into
equity is recycled into profit or
loss for the current period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) (9. E®MIEH (&)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SWEEE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) EREERE

The Group assesses the carrying
amounts of financial assets other
than those at fair value through
profit or loss at each balance
sheet date. If there is objective
evidence that a financial asset
is impaired, the Group shall
determine the amount of
impairment loss.

Objective evidence indicating
impairment of financial assets
refers to the matter that actually
occurs after the initial recognition
of financial assets, it will affect
estimated future cash flows of
financial assets, and its impact
can be reliably measured.

When an impairment loss on
a financial asset carried at
amortised cost has occurred,
the amount of loss is measured
at the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of its estimated
future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have
not been incurred). If there
is objective evidence that the
value of the financial asset
recovered and the recovery is
related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is
reversed and the amount of
reversal is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €@I A (&)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) =WEEE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) EREERE
(Continued) (&
Objective evidence of impairment KPR HEEER

on available-for-sale investments
includes that the fair value
of those equity instruments
is exposed to significant or
prolonged decline. The Group
assesses the carrying amounts
of available-for-sale equity
instruments separately at each
balance sheet date. If the fair
value of the equity instrument
falls below 50% (included) its
initial investment cost or the
decline lasts more than one
year (included), the impairment
occurs; if the fair value of the
equity instrument declines more
than 20% (included) but not
beyond 50%, the Group will
take other relevant factors into
consideration, such as price
fluctuations to judge whether the
impairment occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) (9. E®MIEH (&)
(a) Financial assets (Continued) (a) SREE#Z)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) EREERE

(Continued) (&
In the case of a significant or tHESmEE
prolonged decline in the fair BAERER RE
value of an available-for-sale B AREEZER
financial asset, the cumulative HAAnBETER
loss arising from the decline CE)RETHE R T A
in fair value that had been B I E AR E B
recognised directly in equity Ko WEBRRERE
is removed from equity and KA SRR
recognised in impairment loss. TERE HEAR
For an investment in an equity BELEAEETA
instrument classified as available- IRER M2

for-sale on which impairment
losses have been recognised,
the increase in its fair value in a
subsequent period is recognised
in equity directly.

Derecognition of financial
assets

A financial asset is derecognised
when any of the below criteria
is met: (i) the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from
the financial asset expire; (ii)
the financial asset has been
transferred and the Group
transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset to the transferee;
or (iii) the financial asset has
been transferred and the Group
has not retained control of the
financial asset, although the
Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Derecognition of financial

assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and
the cumulative changes in fair
value that had been recognised
directly in equity, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are majorly comprised of other
financial liabilities, including payables,
borrowings and debentures payable.

Payables include accounts payables
and other payables which are initially
recognised at fair value and recorded at
amortised cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement.

Borrowings and debentures payable
are initially recognised at fair value
less trading expenses and recorded at
amortised cost using effective interest
rate in subsequent measurement.

Other financial liabilities with repayment
period within 1 year (including 1 year)
are stated as current liabilities; other
financial liabilities with repayment
period over 1 year but repayment date
within 1 year from balance sheet date
are stated as current portion of non-
current liabilities; others are stated as
non-current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(9). Financial instruments (Continued) 9). €I A (&)

(b) Financial liabilities (Continued) (b) =Z=@EEE(£Z)

A financial liability is derecognised or
partly derecognised when the current
obligation is discharged or partly
discharged. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
or the derecognised part of the financial
liability and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Determination of fair value of
financial instrument

The fair value of a financial instrument
that is traded in an active market is
determined at the quoted price in
the active market. The fair value of a
financial instrument that is not traded
in an active market is determined by
using a valuation technique when it
is applicable under current conditions
and there are enough available data
and other information to support. The
valuation technique mainly includes
market approach and income approach,
etc. The valuation technique used
should maximise the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimize
unobservable inputs. Those inputs
should be consistent with the inputs
a market participant would use when
pricing the asset or liability.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(9).

Financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Offsetting of financial assets and
liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities should be
presented separately in balance sheet.
A financial asset and a financial liability
should be offset when, and only when,
both of the following conditions are
satisfied: (i) The Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts and the legal
enforcement is now executable. (ii) The
Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(10). Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable
and other receivables. Accounts receivable
arising from sale of goods or rendering of
services are initially recognised at fair value of
the contractual payments from the buyers or
service recipients.

Receivables that are individually significant are
subject to separate impairment assessment.
if there is objective evidence that the group
will not be able to collect the full amount
under the original terms, a provision for
impairment of that receivable is established at
the difference between the carrying amount
of that receivable and the present value of its
estimated future cash flows.

Receivables with amounts that are not
individually significant and those receivables
that have been individually assessed for
impairment and have not been found
impaired are classified into certain groupings
based on their credit risk characteristics. The
provision for bad debts is determined based
on the historical loss experience for the
groupings of receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics, taking into consideration of the
current circumstances.

EEEBRME AT
(4#)

9. €@I A (&)

(d SREENSHMAENME
B

CRMEENCREERES
EEERBEBEXRAD A
R~ NMEHREEEBE
(R 655/ & T 51 R 1 9 - B
EUREEHERNFRE
BERBERAIIR: (1)K
SEAGAHCHRETE
R EREMN BxERE
RRBRE~ZANITA (2)
REBEEAOFRESR
% E R Z S R E EAN

BEZERAE-

(10). EEWFRIE

& Ui 7R TR B ¥ R R R EL A
Wk E - NREBE I HER ML
TR 55 75 712 X RO B WORR 3R 12 4t
BETHBEBEIZTRKNE R
HiHpFREROR AR BEESSA
AT

HNEBESREANBWHIA
BEREETRENR EFERE
7B 1R R BN AR B B R IR R UK
TH ) R A R UL B FROR B AR IR
HEFAKRREREREERNE
FREEENER  HBRRER-

HRERSBEIFEANELRRK
T8 - B EE R SR KR E Y B
WO IR — R 1R (5 A B R 8 D
RETHA BREAMFERZ
B BLUE /R R 1 0 e UK
HAESHMERBRXSER &
BHRRIEAETE BT IRAIERE
e



HAERRMARAR ZF PR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 i Wi

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEABRE (BHFIZHS) 2 EBARETFT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(11). Inventories 11). #8
(a) Classification (a) 78
Inventories include properties under FEBEREKRA RAE
development, properties held for EmEIRME -EE
sale, chemical raw materials, work in o M EE K e AR AR 5 FE

progress, finished goods and low-cost
consumables, and are measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Measurement of inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at
the actual costs. The costs of properties
under development and properties
held for sale comprise land cost,
construction cost, capitalised borrowing
costs, and other direct and indirect
fees incurred during the development
period. On completion, the properties
are transferred to completed properties
held for sale at the actual costs. For
land use rights that are developed for
subsequent sales, the cost paid for land
use rights are classified and accounted
for as part of the costs of properties.

Public ancillary facilities comprise
government-approved public ancillary
projects, i.e. roads. The relevant costs
are recognised under the properties
under development, and are recorded
by each cost items, the cost paid
for land use rights are classified and
accounted for as part of properties
under development.

Cost of chemical raw materials,
work in progress and finished goods
are determined using the weighted
average method. The cost comprises
raw materials, direct labour and
systematically allocated production
overhead based on the normal
production capacity.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(11).

(12).

Inventories (Continued)

(c) Measurement of net realisable value
and provisions of inventories

Provisions are determined at the excess
amount of the carrying value of the
inventories over their net realisable
value. Net realisable value is determined
based on the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs to completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the
sale and related taxes.

(d) The Group adopts the perpetual
inventory system.

(e) Low-cost consumables are expensed
when issued.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the
Company’s long-term equity investments in
its subsidiaries, the Group's long-term equity
investments in its joint ventures and associates,
as well as the long-term equity investments
where the Group does not have control,
joint control or significant influence over the
investees and which are not quoted in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured.

Subsidiaries are the investees over which the
Company is able to exercise control; joint
ventures are the investees over which the
Group is able to exercise joint control together
with other ventures and the net asset of
which is attribute to the Group; associates are
the investees that the Group has significant
influence on their financial and operating
policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. ETESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). REKRERE (&)

(12). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in
the Company’s financial statements using the
cost method, and are adjusted for preparing
the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. Investments in joint ventures
and associates are accounted for using the
equity method. Other long-term equity
investments, where the Group does not have
control, joint control or significant influence
over the investee and which are not quoted in
an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured, are accounted for using
the cost method.

(a) Measurement of investment cost

For long-term equity investments
acquired through a business
combination: for long-term equity
investments acquired though business
combination involving enterprises under
common control, the investment cost
shall be the absorbing party’s share of
the carrying amount of owners’ equity
of the party being absorbed at the
combination date; for long-term equity
investment acquired through a business
combination involving enterprises not
under common control, the investment
cost shall be the combination cost.

For long-term equity investments
acquired not though a business
combination: for long-term equity
investment acquired by payment in
cash, the initial investment cost shall
be the purchase price actually paid; for
long-term equity investments acquired
by issuing equity securities, the initial
investment cost shall be the fair value of
the equity securities issued.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). REKRERE (&)

(12). Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement and
recognition of investment income
and loss

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the cost method,
they are measured at the initial
investment costs, and cash dividends
or profit distribution declared by the
investees are recognised as investment
income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the equity method,
where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds
the Group’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets
at the acquisition date, the long-term
equity investment is measured at the
initial investment cost; where the initial
investment cost is less than the Group’s
share of the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date, the difference is included in profit
or loss and the cost of the long-term
equity investment is adjusted upwards
accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. ETESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). REKRERE (&)

(12). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)
(b) Subsequent measurement and (b) RBRETEREZEIRAE
recognition of investment income (#&)

and loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments
accounted for using the equity method,
the Group recognises the investment
income according to its share of net
profit or loss of the investee. The Group
discontinues recognising its share of
net losses of an investee after the
carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment together with any long-
term interests that, in substance, form
part of the investor's net investment
in the investee are reduced to zero.
However, if the Group has obligations
for additional losses and the criteria
with respect to recognition of provisions
under the accounting standards on
contingencies are satisfied, the Group
continues recognising the investment
losses and the provisions. For changes
in owners’ equity of the investee other
than those arising from its net profit or
loss, the Group records its proportionate
share directly into capital surplus,
provided that the Group’s proportion
of shareholding in the investee remains
unchanged. The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the Group’s
share of the profit distribution or cash
dividends declared by an investee.
The unrealised profits or losses arising
from the intra-group transactions
amongst the Group and its investees are
eliminated in proportion to the Group's
equity interest in the investees, and
then based on which the investment
gains or losses are recognised. For the
loss on the intra-group transaction
amongst the Group and its investees
attributable to asset impairment, any
unrealised loss is not eliminated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(12). REKRERE (&)

(12). Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

Definitions of control, joint control
and significant influence

Control is the power over the investee
when the investor is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investees, and
has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investees.

Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require
the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

Impairment of long-term equity
investment

The carrying amounts of long-term
equity investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are reduced
to the recoverable amounts when the
recoverable amounts are below their
carrying amounts (Note 2 (19)).

For other long-term equity investments
which are not quoted in an active
market and whose fair values cannot
be reliably measured, the excess of
their carrying amounts over the present
values of future cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market yield rate for
similar financial assets is recognised as
impairment loss and cannot be reversed
once recognised.
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TESBEME A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(13).

(14).

Jointly controlled operations

Jointly controlled operations are operations
with a contractual arrangement, whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity without the establishment
of a corporation, partnership nor any other
kinds of separate financial or legal structure.
These operations are subject to joint control
and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.
In respect of its interest in jointly controlled
operations, the Group recognises in the
financial statements: (a) assets and liabilities
that the Group controls and incurs. (b) the
expenses that the Group incurs and its share
of the income that it earns from the sale of
goods or services by the operations.

Investment properties

Investment properties, including land use
rights that have already been leased out,
buildings that are held for the purpose of
leasing and buildings that is being constructed
or developed for the purpose of leasing
in future, are measured initially at cost.
Subsequent expenditures incurred in relation
to an investment property is included in
the cost of the investment property when
it is probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and their
cost can be reliably measured; otherwise, the
expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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(13).

(14).

HEZEHEE

HREZEHEEREAEBERR
SEMEESEMEEEIRE
Ht a8 HRAET —BEERE
B THAZBRARXBEOEY
% AR E B B B FL R o FE A
Rl ¥ I &2 & 1 - ANR B iRl AT I
HE AR EREREENEE R
BEMRE R AREZRS
LERABEROEANREEE
B AR B 1) BE e R L [R5 AR
BB A AU DA e B A ) 2 o4
LHBOKAER -

REMREME

REUFEHESFECLHEN LTI
EREMALESB NHEEY
AR IEE &R BREP KK
AR ZEY  URAETT
MNipstE-BREUFHER
MR B S - FE AR A 0 AR A 25
RATBEMAARNEE B E K AEE S
AEMFTER FFAREBLERE
ERA: BRI RBERAZSH

IS
B

65



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
$UA 55 A Wi

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(14). REMFEHE (&)

(14). Investment properties (Continued)

The Group adopts the fair value model for
subsequent measurement of investment
properties. Investment properties are measured
at fair value model when the following
conditions are met:

(a) There is an active property market
where the investment property locates.

(b) The Group can obtain the market price
and the relevant information regarding
the same type of or similar property
market, so as to reasonably estimate the
fair value of the investment property.

Depreciation or amortization will no longer
be provided for in the Group’s accounts for
investment properties measured at fair value.
Investment properties will be valued as at the
balance sheet date and its carrying amount
will be adjusted accordingly. The difference
between the fair value and the carrying
amount will be charged to the current profit
and loss account of the Group.

When objective evidence indicates that the
purpose of the real estate has changed and
the Group converts investment property
to owner-occupied property or real estate
inventory, the property’s carrying amount
is stated at the fair value on the conversion
date. The difference between the fair value
and the original carrying amount is recognised
in profit or loss for the current period. When
any owner-occupied property or real estate
inventory is converted to investment properties
to be measured through the fair value model,
the value of the investment property shall
be calculated under the fair value on the
conversion date. When the fair value on
the conversion date is less than its carrying
amount, the difference will be charged to the
current profit and loss account. When the fair
value on the conversion date is more than
its carrying amount, the difference will be
charged to owners's equity.

AEEHEAAABEERNERE
MEMEETEEFE-HAA
AREBEERAETEEFENRE
MEME 5 BREZENKE
=2

(@) REMEHMEMEMEE
BHNFEHERI ST -

(b) AEEENEFHERS
M5 EBERESELE
HWERNTIHER R EAR
MES KmMAKREER
WENAAEEFLAE
Bl Et o

AEETHRE MEEE YT
BTN EEEABRA
NIRBEEFHEN AR BER/E
RABREEmMEE AAEER
[RERHEEE < R E B AR S

B

AEERREZBRRAFMER
BHRENE SREMEHESR
BMAAREHEXFRER UH
BREANAIABEERERE
WEXFENREEE RAE
BERREREENEZETAES
B BRBHMEXFEENS
RAAABERAGFENKREL
FHER REMEHWELRRE
2EHNRAEBENE BRE
BENAARBENREREEE
B HEEZRBEAEH B #Ein
ERMNAARBEARRKEEE
CHERFABARALRTE

\



HAERRHARAR ZF PR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 i Wi

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRHFIZHS) £ EBARETFT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. ETESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(14). REMFEHE (&)

(14). Investment properties (Continued)

Where fair value of investment properties
under construction is not reliably measurable
(including those investment properties under
construction acquired initially by the Group),
the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or
the date at which fair value becomes reliably
measurable.

For investment properties under construction
measured at cost, land use rights are
amortized to their estimated net residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives, the estimated net
residual values expressed as a percentage of
cost and the annual amortization rates of land
rights are as follows:
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An investment property is derecognised on
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. The net amount of proceeds from
sale, transfer, retirement or damage of an
investment property after its carrying amount
and related taxes and expenses is recognised in
profit or loss for the current period.

The carrying amount of an investment
property measured at cost is reduced to the
recoverable amount if the recoverable amount
is below the carrying amount (Note 2 (19)).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(15). Fixed assets (15). B EEE
(a) EBEEEBRIARDATTE

(@) Recognition and initial

measurement

Fixed assets comprise buildings,
machinery and equipment, motor
vehicles, and office equipment.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is
probable that the associated economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
related cost can be reliably measured.
Fixed assets purchased or constructed
by the Group are initially measured at
cost at the time of acquisition.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for
a fixed asset are included in the cost
of the fixed asset when it is probable
that the associated economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the related
cost can be reliably measured. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All the other subsequent
expenditures are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation methods of fixed
assets

Fixed assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method to allocate the
cost of the assets to their estimated
residual values over their estimated
useful lives. For the fixed assets that
have been provided for impairment
loss, the related depreciation charge is
prospectively determined based upon
the adjusted carrying amounts over
their remaining useful lives.
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BE—F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(15). Fixed assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Depreciation methods of fixed
assets (Continued)

The estimated useful lives, the
estimated residual values expressed as

94758 =+ B 1L 18 AR (B H5 5 B55) 2 BB s A BB FT)
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(15). BE&EE (4)
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a percentage of cost and the annual FIREOE
depreciation rates are as follows:
Annual
Estimated Estimated depreciation
useful lives residual value rate
BErtEASS FIHERER FHEXR
Buildings FEREEY 10-40 year4F 0% to 10% 2.3% to 10.0%
Machinery and HeR R
equipment 5-20 year 0% to 10% 4.5% t0 20.0%
Motor vehicles BEHTH 5-10 year® 0% to 10% 9.0% to 20.0%
Office equipment N 3-10 year 0% to 10% 9.0% to 33.3%

The estimated useful life, the estimated
net residual value of a fixed asset and
the depreciation method applied to
the asset are reviewed, and adjusted as
appropriate at least at each year end.

When recoverable amount of fixed asset
is lower than its carrying value, the
carrying value should be written down
to the recoverable amount (Note 2(19)).

Disposal of fixed assets

A fixed asset is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. The amount of proceeds from
disposal on sale, transfer, retirement
or damage of a fixed asset net of its
carrying amount and related taxes and
expenses is recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(16). Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and construction
of investment properties or real estate projects
that need a substantially long period of
time for its intended use commence to be
capitalised and recorded as part of the cost
of the asset when expenditures for the asset
and borrowing costs have been incurred, and
the activities relating to the acquisition and
construction that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use have commenced.
The capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases,
when the investment properties under
acquisition or construction becomes ready
for its intended use, the properties under
development become ready for sale (generally
after Completion Certification granted),
the borrowing costs incurred thereafter are
recognised in profit or loss for the current
period. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended during periods in which the
acquisition or construction of the asset is
interrupted abnormally and the interruption
lasts for more than 3 months, until the
acquisition or construction is resumed.

For borrowings that specified for acquisition
and construction of investment properties
and real estate projects and qualified for
capitalisation, the capitalisation amount is
measured as current actual interests of the
specified borrowings net of interest revenue
earned from unused borrowings deposited
at bank or investment income earned from
temporary investment activities with unused
borrowings.

For general borrowings that occupied by the
acquisition and for construction of investment
properties and real estate projects qualified
accumulated, the capitalization amount
should be the weighted average exceeds
of accumulated capital expenditures for
capitalization over the amount of specialized
borrowings multiplied by the weighted
average effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate is the rate used to discount the
estimated future or the applicable shorter
period cash flows of the borrowings to the
initial measurement of the borrowings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(17). Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use rights
and are measured at cost. The cost of land
use rights obtained for construction of real
estate projects and investment properties, is
recognised in inventory development costs.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Land use rights

Land use rights are amortised over
the useful life of 50 years. If the
purchase costs of land use rights and
the buildings located thereon cannot
be reliably allocated between the land
use rights and the buildings, all of the
purchase costs are recognised as fixed
assets.

Periodical review of useful life and
amortisation method

For an intangible asset with a finite
useful life, review and adjustment on its
useful life and amortisation method are
performed at each year end.

Impairment of intangible assets

When the recoverable amount of an
intangible asset is less than its carrying
value, the carrying value should be
written down to the recoverable
amount (Note 2 (19)).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(18). RHMIGHEH

(18). Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include
expenditures that have been made but should
be recognised as expenses over more than one
year in the current and subsequent periods.
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortised
on the straight-line basis over the expected
beneficial period and are presented at actual
expenditure net of accumulated amortisation.

Impairment of long-term assets

Fixed assets, intangible assets with finite
useful life, investment properties measured
using the cost model and long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates are tested for impairment if there is
any indication that an asset may be impaired
at the balance sheet date. If the result of the
impairment test indicates that the recoverable
amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an
impairment loss are recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognised on the individual
asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the recoverable amount of a group of assets
to which the asset belongs is determined. A
group of assets is the smallest group of assets
that is able to generate independent cash
inflows.

RUGHERERERRLER
HARMARSHEEN D #
HRE-FALNRBEER &
BEF RS Ao B I
NERZHRE R HEE R
BIIR

RIPEERE

BEBEE ERSHARNER
BE RAKAFENRELRE
WERHTRAR AEEE KL
EENRPRERES REE
BERBEERETRN  E17
AR BRENRERRAE
ENANEeBEREKREEE
B REE R RBEER LA
AREBRR-AIREEESEE
MAarBEREREERERNF
BEZERFARRERENSR
BEMEZHNREE -EERE
EBREREEREMRAEILE
R IR AHBEIREEN A
Bl & BTN AREER
BHEEMARTEEEMANATKE
CH-BEHARNBIELR
ERMANKNEEHRS °



HAERRMARAR ZF PR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 75 e 3 W ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(19).

(20).

Impairment of long-term assets
(Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the
financial statements is tested at least annually
for impairment, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that it may be impaired.
In conducting the test, the carrying value
of goodwill is allocated to the related asset
groups or groups of asset groups which are
expected to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination. If the result of the
test indicates that the recoverable amount
of an asset group or group of asset groups,
including the allocated goodwill, is lower
than its carrying amount, the corresponding
impairment loss is recognised. The impairment
loss is first deducted from the carrying amount
of goodwill that is allocated to the asset group
or group of asset groups, and then deducted
from the carrying amounts of other assets
within the asset groups or groups of asset
groups in proportion to the carrying amounts
of assets other than goodwill.

Once the above asset impairment loss is
recognised, it will not be reversed for the value
recovered in the subsequent periods.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include wages or
salaries, bonuses, allowances and subsidies,
staff welfare, social security contributions,
housing funds, labour union funds, employee
education funds and other expenditures
incurred in exchange for service rendered by
employees.

(a) Short-term employee benefits

The Group recognises short-term
employee benefits as liabilities and
losses (or assets) during the period
employees render service to the Group.
Non-monetary benefits are measured in
accordance with fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBEMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(20). Employee benefits (Continued) (20). BT &M (&)

(b) Basic social pension security (b) EXEERK

Employees of the Group participate in
the basic social pension plan set up
and administered by the government
authorities. Basic pensions are provided
monthly according to stipulated
proportions and basis, which are paid
to local labour and social security
institutions. After retirement of
employees, local labour and social
security institutions will pay related
pensions to employees accordingly.
The Group recognises these employee
benefits as liabilities and losses (or
assets) during the period employees
render service to the Group.

The Group provides a pension scheme,
which is established under the rules
and regulations of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
("MPF Scheme”), for all employees in
Hong Kong. The contributions to the
MPF Scheme are based on minimum
statutory contribution requirement of
the lower of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income and
HKD1,500 (HKD1,250 before 1 June
2014). The assets of this pension
scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in independently
administered funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. ETESTTBEMEE 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(20). Employee benefits (Continued) (20). B T % B (&)

((9) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the group
before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits as liabilities
and losses (or assets) at the earlier
of the following dates: (i) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of termination plan; and (ii)
when the Group recognises costs for
restructuring and involves the payment
of termination benefits °

(21). Equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Group are
classified as equity instruments when both of
the following conditions are satisfied:

1. The financial instruments have no
contractual obligation to pay in cash or
other financial assets nor to exchange
financial assets or liabilities under
potential adverse condition to other
parties;

2. The financial instruments should and
can be settled via equity instruments
of the Group. For non-derivative
instruments, the instruments have no
contractual obligation to be settled
by delivering fixed number of equity
instruments of the Group; For derivative
instruments, they can only be settled
through the exchange of fixed number
of the Group’s equity instruments with
cash or other financial assets with fixed
amount.

The amounts issued by the subsidiaries
and classified as equity instruments in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
are presented in “Minority interest”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(22). Distribution of dividends (22). B A 2 &L
The amount of dividends proposed to BENNRERARBRERSH
distribute is recognised as a liability in the ERNEH BRAREE

current period in which it is approved by
general meeting of shareholders.

(23). Revenue recognition (23). WA RER
The amount of revenue is determined WANSEIZBASBELATEL
in accordance with the fair value of the EEHTHEERMNRES B
consideration received or receivable for the B2l ERE Rk E R
sale of goods and services in the ordinary B A B E T o YA TR B 85
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is EERIEEREIAFREIR -

shown net of rebates, discounts and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the economic Bl XX 5 18 B B AR 78 N 2 BE SRR A

benefits associated with the transaction will RNEE - B K A B SR ST

flow to the Group, the related revenue can = BmE Ty S ELEEHE

be reliably measured, and the specific revenue FE WA RERIZER  FERAER

recognition criteria have been met for each WA

type of the Group’s activities as described

below:

(a) Sale of goods (a) SHEEMm

(i) Revenue of sale of properties (i) 8 E mi 8 I

held for sale is recognised when ABERFmEAT
all the following conditions have 1R 5 -

been satisfied:

. properties are completed . MEEMD
and accepted after check; HEMED
SE LA BRI ;
. a legally binding sales . REERE
contract has been signed AT EBER
in proper manner and R S H 8

form; EB&R:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(23). WA (#&)
(a) SHEER (&)

(23). Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@) Sale of goods (Continued)

chemical products to the agreed
delivery place according to the
contract. With the distributor’s
receive confirmation, the Group
recognises revenue. Distributors
have the right to sell chemical
products on their own and take
the risk of price fluctuation or
damage.

(i) (Continued) (i) (%)

. all the significant risks and . EHEE
rewards of ownership of mAT A% L
the properties held for sale B E 2R R
have been transferred to AN B 8 %

the buyer; BEER
. the Company does not . PN/ 27 934
retain either continuing ERBBEE
managerial involvement Bi BT B # 48
to the degree usually BENESE
associated with ownership EIRRE 1R
or effective control over EHEE N
the sold properties and E’\J % E m
meet the other criteria B A Bz
required when recognising il - DA Rz |t
revenue mentioned above. 3H & 7 m W
ABRL R
B0 EL Al R £ o
The Group produces chemical (i AEBEEMLIE
products and sells to distributors oo I 35 & T & i £
around. The Group transports the HE o AEE BT
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(23). Revenue recognition (Continued) (23). W AR (&)

(b) Rendering of services

The Group provides service to
external parties. The related revenue
is recognised using the percentage of
completion method, with the stage of
completion being determined based on
proportion of costs incurred to date to
the estimated total costs.

(c) Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Income from an operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

(24). Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary
or non-monetary assets from the government
to the Group at nil consideration, including tax
returns and financial subsidies.

Grants from the government are recognised
as revenue where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions. Monetary assets of the government
grants are measured as the amount received
or receivable. Non-monetary assets of the
government grants are measured as fair value
or notional value if the fair value cannot be
obtained reliably.

A government grant related to an asset is the
government grants acquired by the Group
that specified for acquisition and construction
or in other ways to form long-term assets.
For government grants related to income are
government grants other than government
grants related to assets.
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TESBEME A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(24).

(25).

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to assets are
recognised as deferred revenue and will be
amortised on a straight-line basis in current
profit or loss over the useful life of the related
assets. Government grants recognised at
notional value are directly recognised in profit
or loss for the current period.

Government grants related to income which
are used to compensate expenses or losses in
subsequent periods, are recognised as deferred
revenue and realised in profit or loss for the
period such expenses or losses occurred; the
ones which are to compensate expenses or
losses occurred in previous periods are directly
recognised in profit or loss for the current
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are calculated and recognised based on the
differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
(temporary differences). Deferred tax asset is
recognised for the deductible losses that can
be carried forward to subsequent years for
deduction of the taxable profit in accordance
with the tax laws. No deferred tax liability is
recognised for a temporary difference arising
from the initial recognition of goodwill. No
deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability
is recognised for the temporary differences
resulting from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities due to a transaction other
than a business combination, which affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(or deductible loss). At the balance sheet
date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled.

(%)

(24).

(25).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(25). EEFREHEENELRE

(25). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for
deductible temporary differences, deductible
losses and tax credits to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available
in the future against which the deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses and
tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
temporary differences arising from investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference, and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. When it is probable
that the temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates will be reversed in the
foreseeable future and that the taxable profit
will be available in the future against which
the temporary differences can be utilised,
the corresponding deferred tax assets are
recognised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when:

° the deferred taxes are related to the
same tax payer within the Group and
the same taxation authority; and

o that tax payer within the Group has
a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax
liabilities.
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TESBEME A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(26).

(27).

(28).

Leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset. An
operating lease is a lease other than a finance
lease.

The Group does not have finance leases.
Lease payments under an operating lease are
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Maintenance and quality guarantee
funds

Maintenance fund is collected from property
buyers according to related regulations on
behalf of housing administration bureau,
by certain percentage of selling price of
property, the fund will be remitted to housing
administration bureau upon registration of
property ownership.

Quality guarantee fund is reserved by certain
percentage of the project payment and
payment will be repaid to constructor when
the properties are completed, in condition that
examined by government authorities with no
quality issue, and after the agreed warranty
period.

Held for sale and discontinued
operations

A non-current asset or a disposal group
satisfying the following conditions is classified
as held for sale: (1) the non-current asset or
disposal groups in current conditions can be
sold immediately according to trade practice;
(2) the Group has made a resolution and has
been approved for disposal of the non-current
asset or the disposal group; (3) an irrevocable
contract with the transferee has been signed
and; (4) the transfer will be completed within
one year.

(%)

(26).

(27).

(28).
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(28).

(29).

Held for sale and discontinued
operations (Continued)

Non-current assets, except for financial
assets and deferred tax assets, that meet
the recognition criteria for held for sale are
included in other current assets at the amount
equal to the lower of the fair value less costs
to sell and the carrying amount. Any excess
of the original carrying amount over the fair
value less costs to sell is recognised as an asset
impairment loss.

The assets and liabilities in the non-current
asset or disposal groups which have been
classified as assets held for sale, are classified
as current assets and current liabilities.

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group that either has been disposed
of or is classified as held for sale, and can
be distinguished from other components
within the Group in business operation and
in preparation of financial statements: (1) the
component represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations;
(2) is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
disposal of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations; (3) is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with view to
resale.

Segment information

The Group identifies operating segments
based on the internal organisation,
management requirements and internal
reporting system, and the reportable segments
is determined based on the operating
segments.

TESBEME A
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(29).
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TESBEME A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(29).

(30).

Segment information (Continued)

An operating segment is a component of
the Group that satisfies all of the following
conditions: (1) the component is able to
earn revenues and incur expenses from its
operation activities; (2) whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the Group's
management to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment
and to assess its performance, and (3) for
which the information on financial position,
operating results and cash flows is available to
the Group. If two or more operating segments
have similar economic characteristics and
satisfy certain conditions, they are aggregated
into one single operating segment.

Purchase shares in subsidiaries
from non-controlling shareholders
and partial disposal of interest in a
subsidiary without loss of control

The transaction with non-controlling interest
to partially or wholly acquire interests in a
subsidiary after obtaining the control rights
over the subsidiary, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary are measured consistently
following their value at the acquisition or
merger date in the consolidated financial
statements. The difference between additions
in long-term investment due to the interest
purchase and additions of shared net assets
of the subsidiary calculated by the additional
share proportion, should be recorded in
capital surplus (share premium). In case
share premium is not sufficient to offset
the difference, retained earnings should be
adjusted.

The transaction with non-controlling interest
to dispose long-term equity investment in
a subsidiary without losing control rights
over the subsidiary, the difference between
the proceeds from disposal of interests and
the decrease of the shared net assets of the
subsidiary is adjusted to capital surplus (share
premium). In case share premium is not
sufficient to offset the difference, retained
earnings will be adjusted.

(%)

(29).

(30).
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BE—F—
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(31). Changes in significant accounting
policies

Details and reasons for changes

EHBREENARNFE

TESBEME A

(,,.,E\ )

G1). EESTHEEE

Affected items
YENBREABNE

Amount

YELE

As stated in Note 2(1), the Group has early adopted the CAS No. 30
- Presentation of financial statements in preparation of financial
statements for the six months period ended 30 June 2014, and
comparative figures are adjusted accordingly.

IME (VA AEEERRBE _T-NFAA=TRLAEAY
RABERERAKA THEBR20145 %M (PREHEAF30
- -BHRRIE)  HLREBAESRE

As stated in Note 2(1), the Group has early adopted the CAS No.39 - Fair
value measurement, issued by the Ministry of Finance in January 2014
in preparation of financial statements for the six months period ended
30 June 2014. Several disclosures of financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2014 in relation to fair value are prepared in
accordance with the standards, and there is no need to adjust relevant
information in comparative financial statements.

M () AEBERREE S WESA=ZTHIEAAAS
BB RRBERARA T MBS R2014F1 ARHH (CESENE
39— —RABENE) BEF-MEAA=THIEEA SRS
BRErETEAREEEBNRECSZABEZENGE REZE
A hRHBRRTNEEC SRS ETRAR

84

Cash at bank and on hand
E%Ee

Other current assets
EtRBEE

Accounts payable
ERER

Taxes payable

EXHE

Interest payable

M S

Non-current liabilities due within one year
—FRIENERD AR
Other current liabilities

it RBEE

Non-current assets and assets of

disposal group classified as held-for-sale
READARERENERDEER

READARARENRERTHEE
Liabilities of disposal group classified

as held-for-sale

REDARARENEERTHARE

The former item “financial assets held-for-trading”
has been renamed to “financial assets measured

at fair value through profit or loss”

RIXRFHUEREE|RRABEER

[

NABEFEBEAZHHA

EHRENEREE]

N/A T iE

(5,573)
(1,896,740)
(60,768)
(20,470)
(1,734)
(12,500)

(782,500)

1,902,313

871,972

43,728

N/A T E
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (4)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and (32). EE S5 FH &

judgments

The Group continually evaluates the critical
accounting estimates and key judgments
applied based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and
key assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and
key assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year
are as following:

(i) Property development cost
Critical estimates and
judgments on budget cost
and development progress are
required in determining property
development cost. The budget
cost and development progress
of the project is reviewed by the
Group on a regular basis and
adjusted as appropriate. Should
the actual cost differs from the
budget cost, such difference will
impact the accuracy of cost of
properties held for sale.
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). EEE A E MM E (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and (a) EEGMHAREBERER
key assumptions (Continued) X (&)
(ii) Taxes (i) ®BE
The Group is subject to various RNEBEFEHE R %
taxes in the PRC. There are EBTEBMNZRE
many transactions and events MIE - FEIEE R &
for which the ultimate tax EEHRORERS
determination is uncertain during MEBIEH RS
the ordinary course of business. RIEHFETETE
Significant judgment is required Mo TEETIR T HIIE(E
in determining the provision for MEMER K&
land appreciation tax (“LAT") ERE2EHERM
and other taxes. Where the final T INRELMBE
tax outcome of these matters BN RBRABEER
is different from the amounts HEYI AR SR
that were initially recorded, such FHEEZE ZEEH
differences will impact the tax HIEH Fll & KR
provisions in the period in which EHEFHIEN N ®

such determination is made.

Impairment of assets

The Group tests annually
whether assets have suffered any
impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in
note 2(19), If there is objective
evidence that the carrying
amount of assets is in excess
of its recoverable amount, a
provision for impairment and an
impairment loss are recognised
for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount.

THRELRE-

EERE
RIRMEE — (19) Pt
MERTERER  A&H
BFEAAEERD
BE - BIENRAE
ENREEEDZR
B E W E e
B A H Z BRI
BEEHIL & AR E
Bk
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). EEEFHEE M HE (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and (a) EEZGMHAREBERER

key assumptions (Continued) F (&)

(iv) Provisions for bad debts of (iv) EWRIEZERES
receivables
The Group tests annually RIR M 5E = (10)Fritt
whether receivables suffer any WETHE &
impairment in accordance with B & F 8 = 'K
the accounting policy stated in HEAHBARE-E
note 2(10). If there is objective 1550 3K BF AN & & %
evidence that the Group will not EAREWRERRY
be able to collect the full amount R B kU = K18
under the original terms, a B FHRERREH I
provision for impairment of that ST AREEXK -
receivable is made.

(v) Deferred tax assets (v) EEFRBHREE
Judgment for whether deductible AEEERREL

temporary differences and
Deductible losses can be reversed

SR EER  FE
A RINE L=

in future is required from the EMAENEERRE
Group in recognising deferred AR 2R HA FEl Y A] &8 [0

tax assets. For Deductible
temporary losses, the Group

T HE - AN
] %9 170 BE 59 45 88 1A

recognises deferred tax assets to BEEH KNG
the extent that it is probable that 1B LURFTBE S A
taxable profit will be available REMATE N E B
in the future against which the B R 2R B 44 Bt P 1S
deductible temporary differences, PR - FERARERY
deductible losses and tax credits RIEFTISTH B EE

can be utilised.
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). EEEFHEFT M HE (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and (a) EEGMHAREBERER
key assumptions (Continued) X (&)
(vi) Fair value of investment (vi) REMRHEAA
properties EE

The Group adopts fair value
model for subsequent measure
of investment properties and
obtains independent valuations
for its investment properties
at least annually from an
independent professional valuer
as a third party. The fair value is
determined in accordance with
the methods below:

Current prices (open market
guotations) in an active
market for the same or similar
investment properties;

When such information above
is not available, then use recent
prices in an active market of
the same or similar investment
property, adjusted to reflect
differences in situations, dates
and locations of transactions,
etc,;

Discounted cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of
rental income and future cash
flows.

REBRAAAE
BEEAHKREERE
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E AEEEFIE
3 %% = 75 7F fl B X
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). EEEFHEE M HE (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and (a) EEZGMHAREBERER
key assumptions (Continued) F (&)
(vii) Provision for the decline in (vii) FEBREXEHE

value of inventories
The Group measures the

AEEREERR

inventories at the lower of XBEHGFEERBRK
cost and net realisable value 7K B ] 85 35 (B
at the balance sheet date. The K2 AT&IRFE
calculation of net realisable MErEFENAR
value needs assumptions and FAEE - REIE
estimates. If the management BHHAEERE
changes the estimated selling TIRBGEZEY
price and the estimated costs AR EREET
to completion, the estimated BB BT ER
net realisable value would B R A SR EDN
be affected; such difference Het ZEEBHET
will impact the provisions of RN ERELERE
inventories which have been EEFE-

recognised.

Accounting estimates on

(viii) BEHEERNS

impairment of goodwill EIRCEE

The Group tests annually rEESFHEE
whether goodwill has suffered ETRENR - BE
any impairment. The recoverable HMEMBEEAME
amount of asset groups and EHAE A E
groups of asset groups is the SEARETEERK

present value of the future cash
flows expected to be derived

HenEmRE &
AAEFRRAER

from them. These calculations figt e

require use of estimates.

If management revises the MRERBEHEE
gross margin that is used in the HMEEHRMBAE R
calculation of the future cash RFAEMEFEF
flows of asset groups and groups KA ENKEST

of asset groups, and the revised
gross margin is lower than the
one currently used, the Group
would need to recognise further
impairment against goodwill.

B3] AT M ER
1 2 B A1 3R A3 A
EFE ARERY
78 4 10 21 R0 (B
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREME 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). EEEFHEFT M HE (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and EES AT REBER
key assumptions (Continued) X (&)

(viii) Accounting estimates on (viii) FEREEENS
impairment of goodwill et (&)
(Continued)
If management revises the pre- MREEBEEHER
tax discount rate applied to the RIREMEFTIRD
discounted cash flows, and the MAMEERETE
revised pre-tax discount rate is FHER] - BET eI
higher than the one currently AMFEESRE R
applied, the Group would need KRR E  XE
to recognise further impairment B & L B g et
against goodwill. R E 2 -
If the actual gross margin/pre- MRERENEK
tax discount rate is higher/lower MATITER E SR
than management’s estimates, EREREEMNIM
the impairment loss of goodwill it AEE T gEEE
previously provided for is not REFTROEER
allowed to be reversed by the BEEX-
Group.

(b) Critical judgments on application KAgTTBENERA
of accounting policy - revenue B — AR

recognition

According to the accounting policy
stated in note 2(23), the assessment
of when an entity has transferred
the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to buyers requires the
examination of the circumstances of the
transaction. In most cases, the transfer
point of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the date when the
equitable interest in the property vests
with the buyer upon release of the
respective property to the buyer.

BEM T Q3 E
TR AEEYENFER
EmfTAEE N EZREER
MFENE L LB E A
T EERBERSINELE
B A - EZEE
T BT A R B A0 3R B

We 38 453 [R) i W & By B AE —
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Z. EESTTBREMEF 4
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

(32). EEEFHEE M HE (&)

(32). Critical accounting estimates and
judgments (Continued)

(b)

Critical judgments on application
of accounting policy - revenue
recognition (Continued)

As disclosed in note 9, the Group
provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain
banks relating to the mortgage loans
arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group’s properties. These guarantees
will be expired when relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with
the various banks by the purchasers.
The Group believes that significant
risks and rewards associated to the
ownership of the properties have been
transferred to the purchasers when the
equitable interest in the property vests
with the buyer upon release of the
respective property to the buyer.

(b)

KA ERENEARZA
B — WA (F)

4 B & N BT A - AN SR 1)
BOBEENRITREE
RERER-EBEEN
7 an P A R B AR IRTT
B - 5% P& IR 5 R B - R
SEFERBBIBERED
EXREREGRMERES
BB RBREEDEE

1% o
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3.

TAXATION

The types and rates of taxes applicable to the Group

are set out below:

Bi1E

AEEARHEEMANERHE AR X
FIREAE :

%'%/pe Tax rate Taxable base
= B=x BE
Enterprise income tax 25% Taxable income of
subsidiaries based in the PRC

EMEH FEBIEAF AR EATEFTSEE
5%-10% Income from taxable dividends of

non-resident enterprises in and

investments disposal from mainland China

EE R EHERRF WA KR

FHERERERERNKA

Business tax 5% Taxable turnover amount

3
LAT
TR ED

City maintenance and construction tax

W

Education surcharge

A B

Property tax
FED

30%-60%

5%-7%

3%

1.2%

e & KA

Taxable value added amount
through sales of properties

R E TS RATIE AR

Business tax payable

JE M KT

Business tax payable

JE M KT

Taxable residual value of properties

FEMHRE
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(2 = F—ENA =1 HiE 8RR (BRI £ FEMLRBARETFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND N, TESHREHBFEHRR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

(1). Significant subsidiaries (—). EETQRER
1. Subsidiaries incorporated by 1. AARBERIRREE
promoters at establishment of the ABRANF AT
Company
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ihEs FRREERELA FRARRELA
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of Z3-mF Z§-mF 5=
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ABZtH ARZTH TZA=1-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EREER Z§-mE 3%
FREER i IEfgy HEEE BRff%  AA=tR TZA=1-H E# R BER Bk E# B ER A

(1) Central Plaza Real Estate  Bejjing, Beijing Property Development = USDETT USDETT 75 25 75 25 75 25 75 25
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC and Investment 11,258,000 11,258,000
("Central Company")
7xi E R SR BHERERRA

(2)  Befing Rongjin Real Estate  Befing, Bejing Property Development = USDER USDET 10 495 10 495 10 495 10 495
Development Co, Ltd. the PRC the PRC and Investment 6,360,000 6,360,000
("Rongjin Company")

SR R FHERERAE
(3)  Befing Sunshine Jindu Beijing, Beijing Property Development = RMBAR% RVMBA KR 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 -
Properties Co. Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 370,000,000 370,000,000
(*Jindu Company)
R eBER R R BHERSREE
TR
(4)  Central Plaza Development BV Hong Kong  Investment Holding RMBARH USDER USDET 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Ltd. ("Central Plaza") 5,250,000,000 1 1
Central Plaza KRER AR REER USDET
Development Ld. #E 400,000,000
(WA [ Central Plaza |)
() International Financial BVI Hong Kong  Investment Holding = USDER UsDE 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 =
Center Property., 1 1
Ltd. ("IFC")
International Financil EBEAR  FE hEER
Center Property Ltd. )
(AR IIRC])
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND W, t¥SHREHBHERR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (—). EEFQABR (&)
2. Subsidiaries obtained from business 2. FRER—ZEHTHEE
combinations involving enterprises SOMBHNFLAHE

not under common control

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
EdiEes FRARERELH ARFRRBLH
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of mt UL 3z Z3-mF 5=
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June 31 December AB=1H +ZA=1-H ABZTH TZA=1-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct ~ Direct [In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-dlirect
ERHER —%-B%

FRAER i IEfiEy HEEE B&f7E%  ~A=1R BER MR EE BE ER MR ER RE
% % % % % % % %

(1) S.C. Real Estate Development Bejing, Bejing, Property Development - RMBA RH RMBARE 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -

Co,, Ltd. ("S.C.") the PRC the PRC and sales 640,000,000 640,000,000

SR R BHERSRHE

(2)  Befing HYHL Real Estate  Beijing, Beijing, Property Development = USDETT USDET - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 10,000,000 10,000,000
HREREERNE SR bV EHEREREE
ARART

(3)  Beljing Anhua Shiji Real EstateBeijing, Beijing, Property Development = USDETT USDETT 55 45 55 45 60 40 60 40
Development the PRC the PRC and sales 30,000,000 30,000,000

Co., Ltd. (*Anhua Shiji*)
IRRELERNE R IR FHEREREE

(TR REtL])

() Tianjin Banshan Renjia Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development = USDETT USDETT - 55 = 55 - 60 = 60
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 74,000,000 74,000,000
(“Tianjin Banshan")
RAHUARES R RET FHEREREE

ARLR (TR
[REHIL)

(5)  Beijing Sunshine City Real  Bejjing, Beijing, Property Development = USDETT USDETE 50 50 50 50 60 40 60 40
Estate Development Co.,,  the PRC the PRC and sales 20,000,000 20,000,000

SR R BRERERHE

(6)  Chongging Xinshi Real Chongging, ~ Chongaing,  Property Development - USDETT USDETE - 50 = 50 - 50 - 50
Estate Development the PRC the PRC and sales 95,000,000 95,000,000
0. Ltd

(“Chongging Xinshi") (i)

ERRANAES EE BT BHERSREE
ARAR (AR
[BEHR1))
(1) Bejing Xinbocheng Real  Beijing, Bejing, Property Development - RMBA K # RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC and sales 89,000,000 89,000,000

Co., Ltd. ("Xinbocheng")
IRAEAEHERE AR SR BHERERHE
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F_F

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1.

Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

F—FENA =1 Hil 75185 HE (BRI ) - & SR E A BB FoT)

M. XSRS HMBRER

(%)

(—). EEFLQARBR (&)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business 2. BBER—EZRTHEE
. . . . . Vi = =
combinations involving enterprises EOMBHNTAR (&)
not under common control
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
hEx ARARERELH ARARABLS
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014
Place of —%-pF - 3 Z3-mF
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June 31 December ABZTH ARZTH J
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Direct In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
RRHER —8-BF %=
b kL i IEfEy HEEE BEfTES AB=tH tZA=t-8 E# B EE i3 E# B EL 14
% % % % % % % %
(8 Qingdao Yangguang Binhai  Qingdao, Qingdao, Property Development - RMBARY RMBAE® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Proy Co,, Ltd the PRC the PRC and sales 50,000,000 50,000,000
L -1 -1 EHEREREE
AR
(9 Qingdao Qiangianshu Qingdao, Qingdao, Property Development - RMBAEY RMBAE® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment Properties the PRC the PRC and sales 20,000,000 20,000,000
(o, Ltd
ERTTHEXARAT F&T BT BHERERHE
(10)  Yantai Yangguang Lidu  Yantai, Yantai, Property Development - RMBAR® RMBA KR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development  the PRC the PRC and sales 50,000,000 50,000,000
Co., Ltd
EABESRNE Eadm AT BHERERHE
REERLA
(1) Yantai Yangguang Lizhen  Yantai, Yantai, Property Development - RMBARH RMBAK % - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development  the PRC the PRC and sales 75,000,000 75,000,000
(o, Ltd
BATH BAT EHEREREE
(12)  Yantai Yangguang Xinye ~ Yantai, Yantai, Property Development - RMBAR® RMBA KR - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development  the PRC the PRC and sales 75,000,000 75,000,000
EaT AT BHERERHE
(13)  Zhejiang Huisheng Real ~ Huzhou, Huzhou, Property Development = USDETT USDETE - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Estate Co,, Ltd the PRC the PRC and sales 20,000,000 20,000,000
MIEREXARLAA WA i FPHERSRESE
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F—F

4,

=

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1.

Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

2. Subsidiaries obtained from business
combinations involving enterprises

not under common control

—PIEN A=+ HiE7 <A B (BRI E95) 2 SR B s A BKFoT)

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

(%)

(—). EEFLQARBR (&)

2.

BERFE—ZH TR
AHMBHNTAR (#)

(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
&R ARFRERELH ARARRELA
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of Z3-mF Z3-ZF Z3-mF Z%-ZF
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June 31 December AB=1H +ZA=+-H ABZTH TZA=1-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Direct [In-direct  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
ERMHER Zg-mF  ZF-=f
FRAER i IEffgy €l BYfE%  AA=tR fZA=t-H E% B EE BE  EB BE R 73
% % % % % % % %
(14)  Ihejiang Outlets Property  Huzhou, Huzhou, Property Development = USDETT USDETT - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Real Estate Co,, Ltd the PRC the PRC and sales 40,000,000 40,000,000
LRRRS W W BHERERHE
EXERAR
(15 Tianjin Shengtai Cheng ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development - RMBA R RMBARE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Jiaming Ronghe the PRC the PRC and sales 60,000,000 60,000,000
Development Co., Ltd
REEESEGRAYT REH K2 EHEREREE
REARAF
(16)  Juda International(ii Cayman HongKong  Investment Holding = HKSHE % HK$7E - 65.1 = 65.1 - 65.1 - 65.1
Islands 2,000,000 2,000,000
NG ()] REHE BE RERR
(17) Nice world chemical industry Xiamen, Xiamen, Manufacture and sale - USDETT USDET - 65.1 - 65.1 - 65.1 - 65.1
(xiamen) Co. Ltd. the PRC the PRC of chemicals 8,000,000 8,000,000
("Nwa) (i)
T (EF) B Ef9H HERHE(Bm
ARATATH
TR ()

() The Group held 50% equity interests in (i) AEBHEEFARKA
Chongging Xinshi, and according to the 50%H) A IRIBEE
Articles of Association of the investee, AHNARER AEBA
the Group can make significant financial BREEEFHAMNE R
and operating decisions without the BREEHE At RNE
agreement of other shareholders thus I 1 5 42 ) o
has control over the company.

(i)~ Juda International is listed on the iy SERNBEBREEBBHERS

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, with a
significant subsidiary NWCI, and mainly
engaging in the production and sales of
chemical products.

FIERETRA AFER
WERFRAA/EEL
To
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

F_F

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

F—FENA =1 Hil 75185 HE (BRI ) - & SR E A BB FoT)

M. EREHREHHBRE
(#)

(—). EEFLQARBR (&)

3. Subsidiaries obtained from 3. BBHEMEME XEE
investment and other procedures H F 2 &
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
ihEs ARREERELA FRARRELA
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of Z3-mF 3z Z§-mF Z%-zF
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June 31 December AB=1H +ZA=1-H ARZTH TZA=1-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
ERUEER —R-mF Z3-ZF
FREER i IEfEy HEEE BEfIES ~AZ1+B +tZA=1-R E# B L i3 E# B EL 14
% % % % % % % %
(1) Befing Capital Xinzi Real ~ Beijing, Beijing, Property Development = RMBAR% RVMBAKR 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 -
Estate Ltd. (“Befjing Xinzi") ~ the PRC the PRC and sales 496,590,000 496,590,000
bl9:v SR FHEREREE
(2)  Bejing Shangboya Beijing, Beijing, Investment Holding = RMBAR% RVMBA KR 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 -
Investment Consultant the PRC the PRC 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co,, Ltd. ("Shangboya”)
FRHBRRARR R SR REER
ARAR(ATH
[kl
(3)  Bejing Shangbodi Befjing, Befing, Investment holding - RMBARY RMBARE 51 - 51 = 51 - 51 -
Investment Consultant the PRC the PRC 30,000,000 30,000,000
Co., Ltd. ("Shangbodi”)
FREERERR bl:v SR hEER
ARAE (ATH
[ifdsh])
() Tianjin Xinchuang Land Ltd. Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development = USDETT USDETT - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100
(“Tianjin Xinchuang") the PRC the PRC and sales 25,000,000 25,000,000
REMHEEE K K& FHEREREE
ARAR
(5)  Chengdu Capital Xinzi Real ~Chengdu, Chengdu, Property Development - USDZ 7 USDETE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development Ltd ~ the PRC the PRC and sales 30,000,000 30,000,000
("Chengdu Xinzi")
- H#m FHEREREE
(6)  Jiangsu Capital Real Estate  Wuxi, Wuxi, Property Development = USDETT USDETT 60 40 60 40 60 40 60 40
Development Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 12,500,000 12,500,000
(*Jiangsu Capital”)
aim &5 FHERREE
(1) Befing Capital Land Chengdu, Chengdu, Property Development - RMBAR® RMBAEH 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Chengdu Co., Ltd the PRC the PRC and sales 150,000,000 150,000,000
(“Capital Chengdu")
BHEXRBERAA  A#D R#m FHERREE

(TR EElR])
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F—F

4,

=

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

INTERIM REPORT 2014

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1.

Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

—PIEN A=+ HiE7 <A B (BRI E95) 2 SR B s A BKFoT)

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

(%)

(—). EEFLQARBR (&)

o e q sz 3 5 o y
3. Subsidiaries obtained from 3. BBHEMEMEXEE
investment and other procedures WFD\E (&)
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
&R FRREERELA FRARRELH
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of Z2-mF “E-zE Z3-mF ZF-ZF
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June  31December ARt TZR=t-H ABAZTA TZA=t-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
ERHER Zg-pE CRcE
FRAER i IBfEy HEEE BEfiES AB=1H % B B i3 E# B EL 14
% % % % % % % %
(8)  Chengdu Capital Yidu Real  Chengdu, Chengdu, Property Development = USDETT USDETT - 55 = 55 - 60 = 60
Estate Development Co.,,  the PRC the PRC and sales 100,000,000 100,000,000
Ltd. (“Chengdu Yidu")
b %1 -1 FHERERHE
(a8
(9 Tianjin Capital Xinyuan Real Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development = USDETT USDTT - 55 = 55 - 60 = 60
Estate Development Co,,  the PRC the PRC and sales 95,000,000 95,000,000
Ltd. (“Tianjin Xinyuan")
# K& KEi FHERERES
(10 Tianjin Capital Xingang Real Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development - USDER USDET - 55 = 55 - 60 - 60
Estate Development Co.,, the PRC the PRC and sales 95,000,000 95,000,000
Ltd. (“Tianjin Xingang")
RABEMAER REH K& EHEREREE
(1) Wuxi Xindong Real Estate ~ Wuxi, Wi, Property Development - RMBAEY RMBAE 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Development Co., Ltd! the PRC the PRC and sales 100,000,000 100,000,000
(“Wuxi Xindong")
EREENRER S ES FHERERHE
ARATATH
(12)  Central Plaza Xinrong Hotel ~Bejing, Beijing, Hotel Operation and = USDETT USDTE 75 25 75 25 75 25 75 25
Management Co,, Ltd. the PRC the PRC Management 6,062,000 6,062,000
(“Central Plaza Xinrong")
R JRA SR AEmgEER
B
(13)  Bejing Chuangxin Jianye  Bejing, Beijing, Investment Holding - RMBAR®  RMBARE 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate Investment Ltd. ~ the PRC the PRC 50,000,000 50,000,000
R R RAEE
[83#2%])
(14)  Jingjin Tongcheng (Tianjin) ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development - RMBAEY RVBARE - 90 - 90 - 90 - 90
Investment Co., Ltd the PRC the PRC and sales 250,000,000 250,000,000
(*Jingjin Tongcheng")
RER (KR RE K K& FHERE

[RERHI)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = F—ENA =1 HiE 8RR (BRI £ FEMLRBARETFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND Wb, t¥SHREHBERR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (—). EEFQABR (&)

3. Subsidiaries obtained from 3. BBHEMEME XEE
investment and other procedures WFa\E (&)
(Continued)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
&R ARARERELA ARARRBLH
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of —%-Bf it 3 —%-BE it S
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June  31December  ABZtA TZR=t-H ABZTA tZA=t-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
RRHER -g-mE =%
FREER i IEfE  HEEE BEfTES AB=tH tZA=t-8 E# B Bk i3 ER 3 Bk 4

% % % % % % % %

(15) Qutlets Property Investment  Beijing, Beijing, Property Development - USDETT USDETT - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100
Fang Shan Ltd the PRC the PRC and sales 121,000,000 127,000,000
FREERRRERL AR R BHEREREE
EXARAA
(16)  Bejing Capital Zhongbei  Bejing, Beijing, Property Development - RMBAR®  RWMBARE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate the PRC the PRC and sales 100,000,000 100,000,000

Development Co., Ltd

BREEPLERRE AR R BHERERHE
REERAR
(17)  BECL Investment Holding Ltd. Hong Kong ~ HongKong  Investment Holding = USDER USDET 100 - 100 = 100 - 100 -
9,900,000 9,900,000
& &t RAEE
(18)  Beijing Litong Shangyi Real  Beijing, Beijing, Property Development - N/A AEB N/A NA = 100 NA N/A - 100
Estate Development Co,,  the PRC the PRC and sales TEA 10310000 FEE TEA TER TER
Ltd. (“Bejing Shangyi”)
(note 4(3)(2))
g SR R FHEREREE
(19)  Bejing Anshunyuan Real  Bejing, Beijing, Property Development - RMBAR®  RWMBAR® - 95 - 95 - 95 - 95
Estate Development the PRC the PRC and sales 50,000,000 50,000,000
Co,, Ltd
IRZEERHERE LR R FHERSREE
BRAR
(20)  Zhengjiang Xianji Real Thenjiang, Zhenjiang, Property Development = USDER USDET - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC and sales 40,000,000 40,000,000
Co,, Ltd
BITEEXARLAR  HIA EIm FHEREREE
(1) Inejiang Shouxin Real Huzhou, Huzhou, Property Development - USDETT USDETT - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC and sales 24,500,000 24,500,000
(o, Ltd
MIERERARAR  WA® A EHEREREE
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B FFZ 2B E B ARKEFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENT (Continued)

(1.

Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

(&

(—). EEFLQARBR (&)

o e q sz 3 5 N 4
3. Subsidiaries obtained from 3. BBHEMEMEXEE
investment and other procedures WFD\E (&)
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
&R ARFRERELA FRARRELH
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of Z2-mF “E-zE Z3-mF %=
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June  31December ARt TZR=t-H ABAZTA TZA=t-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
ERHER 2-p% =
FRAER i IBfEy HEEE BEfiES AB=1H % B B i3 E# B EL Rk
% % % % % % % %
(22)  Zhejiang Hualong Real Huzhou, Huzhou, Property Development - USDETT USDETT - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC and sales 67,000,000 67,000,000
(o, Ltd
WIEEERARAR  WAD i EHEREREE
(23)  Bejing Ruiyuanfengji Real  Bejing, Beijing, Property Development - RMBAR®  RWMBARE 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Estate Development the PRC the PRC 10,000,000 10,000,000
Co,, Ltd. (“Ruiyuanfengji’)
g SR R BHERE
(24)  Capital Tianshun Real Beijing, Bejing, Property Development - RMBA K# RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC 100,000,000 100,000,000
Co, Ltd.
BEIRBERRERE  LRD b7V FHERY
BRAR
(25 Nanjing Ningchun Real ~ Nanjing, Nanjing, Infrastructure - RMBA K # RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC Investment 100,000,000 100,000,000
AR AR ERRIERE
(26)  Hainan Outlets Real Estate ~ Wanning, Wanning Property Development - USDETT USDETT - 55 = 55 - 55 - 55
Development Co., Ltd! the PRC the PRC 14,000,000 14,000,000
BREEERTRNE BERD BED BHERE
RERRLA
(27)  Jiangyin Yuyue Real Estate Jiangyin, Jiangyin, Property Development = USDER USDET - 100 o 100 - 100 - 100
Development Co., Ltd! the PRC the PRC 49,000,000 49,000,000
TEBHERERAA  IE® IET FHERY
(28)  Sanya Shengxing Sanya, Sanya, Property Development - N/A AR% N/A N/A - 100 N/A N/A - 100
Weiye Real Estate the PRC the PRC and sales FEE 100000000 7FER FER TER TER
Development Co,, Ltd
(“Sanya Shengxing ") (i)
TRRERER =T =B EHEREREE

ARAR (TR
[ZZEE]) i)
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2 = F—ENA =1 HiE 8RR (BRI £ FEMLRBARETFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND Wb, t¥SHREHBERR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued) (—). EEFQABR (&)

3. Subsidiaries obtained from 3. BBHEMEME XEE
investment and other procedures WFa\E (&)
(Continued)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
&R ARARERELA ARARRBLH
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of —%-Bf it 3 —%-BE it S
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June  31December  ABZtA TZR=t-H ABZTA tZA=t-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
RRHER -g-mE =%
FREER i IEfE  HEEE BEfTES AB=tH tZA=t-8 E# B Bk i3 E# B Bk B

% % % % % % % %

(29)  Qingdao Xinli Weiye Real  Qingdao, Qingdao, Property Development - RMBAR% RVMBAER - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Development the PRC the PRC and sales 90,000,000 90,000,000
-1 BHEREREE
(30)  Capital Guoxin Asset Beijing, Bejing, Asset Management - RMBAR% RVMBAER 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Management Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC 100,000,000 100,000,000
("Capital Guoxin")
R bV REER
[E8ER])
(31)  Capital Qinglv Real Estate ~ Kunshan, Kunshan, Property Development - RMBARY RMBAK - 51 - 51 - 51 - 51
(Kunshan) Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 300,000,000 300,000,000
(“Capital Qinglv")
EEIERES (BI) El® Bl BHERERHE
ARRE ()
[E8IEm)
(32)  Hainan Outlets Tourism Wanning, Wanning, Development and - USDZ 7T USDETE - 55 - 55 - 55 - 55
Development Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC construction sales 9,000,000 9,000,000
(“Hainan Outlets Tourism ") and property
management
BERERTRERE  BED BERD REREHENNEE
ARAE (T B
[BRRKkEE])
(33)  Capital Outlets (Kunshan) ~ Kunshan, Kunshan, Property Development - RMBAR# RMBA K - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Development  the PRC the PRC and sales 300,000,000 300,000,000
(o, Ltd
BRAR(RL)ER  BUT =110 FHEREREE
ARAR
(34)  Tianjin Xinjing Investment ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Investment = RMBAR% RMBAEH - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Co,, Ltd the PRC the PRC 100,000,000 100,000,000
REEZRERRLR  REd K& FHERE
(35)  Beijing Tiancheng Yongxin  Beijing, Beijing, Property Development = ARE AR® - 100 = 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC 100,000,000 100,000,000
FRRAKEES SR R FHERE
ARAA
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B FFZ 2B E B ARKEFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

(&

(—). EEFLQARBR (&)

P q vz 3 S > T
3.  Subsidiaries obtained from 3. BBRHEMHMAFAEE
investment and other procedures WFD\E (&)
(Continued)
Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
&R ARFRERELA EGES ]
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of Z2-mF “E-zE Z3-mF %=
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June  31December ARt TZR=t-H ABAZTA TZA=t-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
EBEER -g-pE 3=
FRAER i IBfEy HEEE BRff%  AA=tR fZA=1-H % BE ER Bk E# BE  BER 14
% % % % % % % %
(36)  Shenyang Capital Xinyun ~ Shenyang, Shenyang, Property Development - RMBA K# RMBARH - 100 - 100 - - - -
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 20,000,000 20,000,000
EREENEES L o FHERERHEE
BRAR
(37)  Datang Weiye Holdings ~ France France Real Estate Business - EUROE(TT EUROBATE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
EEAERE it it WEXBRAL 25,000,000 25,000,000
(38)  Hainan Capital Outlets Wanning Wanning Property Development - RMBA K # RMBARH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co, Ltd the PRC the PRC and sales 20,000,000 20,000,000
BREHRRES EED BET FEHERERHEE
BRAR
(39)  Bejing Jinrui Wealth Bejing Beijing Investment Holding - RMBAR®  RWMBARE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Investment Management  the PRC the PRC 50,000,000 50,000,000
R R REER
(40)  Capital dongxing Kunshan Kunshan Property Development - RMBAR®  RWMBARE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
(kunshan) Real estate the PRC the PRC and sales 300,000,000 20,000,000
Development Co.Ltd
EERR(RL)RHE RUF B FHERERHEE
RERRLA
(41)  Tianjin tongcheng Real ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development - RMBAR®  RWMBARE - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Estate Co,, Ltd the PRC the PRC and sales 50,000,000 50,000,000
RRRAERARAR  RED K& EHEREREE
(42)  Bejing zhongzhi dingfu  Bejing, Beijing, Investment Holding - RMBAR®  RWMBARE 100 - 100 - 100 - 100 -
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC 100,000,000 100,000,000

("Beijing Zhongzhidingfu”)

IRRERRRLE R R REER
REARARATE

[ERRES

102



4.

HRAIERRDARAT 2 A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 75 e 3 W ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

2 -F

F—FENA =1 Hil 75185 HE (BRI ) - & SR E A BB FoT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1.

Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

M. EREHREHHBRE
(#)

(—). EEFLQARBR (&)

3. Subsidiaries obtained from 3. BBHEMEME XEE
investment and other procedures WFa\E (&)
(Continued)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
&R FRREERELA FRARRELH
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of —%-Bf it 3 —%-BE it S
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June  31December  ABZtA TZR=t-H ABZTA tZA=t-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
RRHER —g-mf ZF-=%
FREER i IEfE  HEEE BEfTES AB=tH tZA=t-8 E# B Bk i3 E# B Bk B
% % % % % % % %
(43)  Bejing Tiancheng Yongtai  Beijing, Beijing, Property Development - RMBAEY RMBAE® - 68.5 - 685 - 60 - 60
Real Estate Co,, Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 2,246,290,000  2,246,290,000
("Tiancheng Yongtai")
FRRIARES SR b0 FHEREREE
AR N
[RAAER])
(44)  Bejing Tiancheng Yongyuan Bejing, Beijing, Property Development = RMBAR% RMBAR - 50 = 100 - 60 = 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 1,997,109,000 ~ 1,997,109,000
(“Tiancheng Yongyuan")
(noted(4))
It R SR EHEREREE
(45)  Tianjin xingtai jiing Real ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development = RMBAR% RMBAR - 100 = 100 - 100 = 100
Estate Co,, Ltd the PRC the PRC 50,000,000 50,000,000
RAERERER Kt K& FHERE
(46)  Bejing Chuangrui Xiangan  Beijing, Beijing, Property Development - RMBAEY RMBAEH - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co,, Ltd. the PRC the PRC and sales 30,000,000 30,000,000
ERARERES R R FHEREREE
BRAR
(47)  Shanghai Songchaung ~ Shanghai,  Shanghai, Property Development - RMBAR®  RMBAR® - 100 - 100 - 100 - 100
Real Estate Co., Ltd. the PRC the PRC 50,000,000 50,000,000
LENEERERAT  LET o1 BHERE
(48)  Specific Assets Bejing, Beijing, Investment Holding - RMBAEY RMBAEH 9 - 9 - NIA - NA -
Management Plan the PRC the PRC 2,200,000,000 ~ 2,200,000,000 TER TER
for Capital Lize Project
Befing of Minsheng Royal
Asset Management Co. Ltd
(the “Specific Capital
Management
Plan") (i)
RENBAEES R bl:V RAER
BEREERAR
g ¥}
[ERAEHE]) ()
(49)  Beijing Yikaiyou Real Beijing, Beijing, Property Development = RMBAR% NA - 100 A /A - 100 /A NA
Estate Co,, Ltd. () the PRC the PRC 20,000,000 1) NER  TER fER  FER
FRENEER b0\ bl: 0 FHERE
ARA()
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BE—F

4,

104

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

INTERIM REPORT 2014

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(1.

Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

(%)

(=) ERFRARBR (&)

3. Subsidiaries obtained from 3. BBHEMEMEXEE
investment and other procedures WFD\E (&)
(Continued)

Registered capital Attributable interest held Attributable vote held
&R ARFRERELA EGES ]
30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013
Place of Z2-mF ZF-zf Z3-mF %=
Place of main Principal Bonds 30June  31December ARt TZR=t-H AAZTA TZA=t-H
Name registration  operation  activities issued 2014 2013 Direct In-direct  Diect In-diect  Direct In-direct  Direct In-direct
ERHER —3-mF -3-=f¢

FRAER i IBfEy HEEE BRff%  AA=tR fZA=1-H % B B i3 E# & EE i3
% % % % % % % %

(50)  Shanghai Capital Shanghai, Shanghai, Property Development - RMBA K# NA 100 - NA /A 100 - NA NA
Zhengheng Real the PRC the PRC 10,000,000 i NER TER TER  TER
Estate Co.,Ltd.(i)

LEEHERER LiEm L BHERY
BRAT()

(51)  Bejing Guiiamao Real Beijing, Beijing, Property Development - RMBA K# NA - 100 NA /A - 100 NA NA

Estate Co, Ltd () the PRC the PRC 30,000,000 R NER  TER fER  FER
IRRERES R R BHERY
ARAR)

(52)  Tianjin Xingtai Jihong Real ~ Tianjin, Tianjin, Property Development = RMBA K% NA - 100 NA NA - 100 NA NA

Estate Co. Ltd.() the PRC the PRC 30,000,000 R TER  TER AER  TER
RAEFERER REH K& FHERY
]

(53)  Beijing Lianchuang Beijing, Beijing, Property Development - RMBA K# NA - 100 NA /A - 100 NA NA
Shengye Real Estate the PRC the PRC 10,000,000 NER NER TER TER  TER
Development Co., Ltd.

("Lianchuang Shengye”)
b7V BHERY
Wwé@% )

(i)  These companies were newly set up by (i) ZHERRIRANEEAREAE
the Group this year. HERHF AT

(i)  The Group helds 9% units in the iy AEEEARFIEEER
Specific Capital Management Plan as EEEEETE9%H #
a secondary investor. Based on the m RBEEBEEEFEN
contract of the Plan, the Group shares /Eu\ Bl A& B ZE B &E
or undertakes the most income or risk IE BEGE RIS
of the plan, thus the Group has control 145( 5ok B b B ik A K E
over the Specific Capital Management BEZEEEE A EH
Plan. o

(i) Sanya Shengxing was canceled after the (iif) AR R T

approval of Business Administration.
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BHEFIZHS) 2 ELBARETFT)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (%)

STATEMENT (Continued)

(1). Significant subsidiaries (Continued)

3. Subsidiaries obtained from 3.
investment and other procedures
(Continued)

(ivy  The Group entered into an equity (iv)

transfer agreement with a third party
to purchase 100% share of Lianchuang
shengye in this period. Lianchuang
shengye previously held the land No.2
in Beijing Shunyi District and there is no
other business, after the transaction,
Lianchuangshengye became a subsidiary

of the Group.

(2). Subsidiaries with significant

M. XSRS HMBRER

(—). EEFLQARBR (&)

BB HEMEMEXEE
HFaE (&)

AEBNRREHARESE =
FEREREEZERZ B
B T Al B Z100% /) %
AR ERFEILLR
JIE 2 168 2 5%t SN 3 4 L b 3
% X 5T BRI
¥XNAEAEBNT AR

(2). FEEESBRRESEN T

minority interests YN
Six months
ended
30 June 2014
Six months Dividend
ended allocated to
30 June 2014 Minority
30 June 2014 Minority interests
Minority interest declaring
interests income by subsidiaries
§z-T-mF
~A=1H
BE-Z-WmFE LtAREAHE
“E-mE ~A=tH FARER
AA=tH EREAHE PERFLH
PHRRER DBERRER FRR B9 R 7
Tianjin Banshan REHL 265,877 7,933 75,601
Tianjin Xinyuan REFE 337,563 4,554 =
Tianjin Xingang R 320,234 (4,468) =
Chengdu Yidu &= 431,301 38,898 45,000
Chongging Xinshi EEMA 564,799 14,894 =
Tiancheng Yongtai Rk 836,950 (126) =
Tiancheng Yongyuan RIKTT 994,311 = =
Total Ch 3,751,035 61,685 120,601
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4,

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENT (Continued)

(2).

Subsidiaries with significant
minority interests (Continued)

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

The financial informations of subsidiaries

above in this period

(%)

(Z). FEEESBRRESEN T

nEl (&)

ERFRARAEBERZMHES

Financial Informations as at 30 June 2014

ZE-MERAZTHEHMRR

Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities Net Assets
RBEE KRBEE RBEE FRBEE FEE
Tianjin Banshan R 1,234,974 Y] 643,753 425 590,838
Tianjin Xinyuan RENE 875,032 228 125,121 - 750,139
Tianjin Xingang REFS 5,081,754 21,212 4,118,796 278,600 711,630
Chengdu Yidu PR EERD 1,514,583 124 556,260 - 958,447
Chongging Xinshi EEHA 3,707,196 24,803 2,294,923 307,479 1,129,597
Tiancheng Yongtai RFKR 2,320,996 2,597 84,368 - 2,239,225
Tiancheng Yongyuan N 2,073,516 2,891 87,785 - 1,988,622

Financial Informations as at 31 December 2013

—T-=Ft-A=t-REEHKR

Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
assets Assets Liabilities Liabilities Net Assets
nHEE FRPEAE nBAE FRBER HEE
Tianjin Banshan REHIL 1,320,542 125 579,027 428 741,212
Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 1,388,039 278 648,297 - 740,020
Tianjin Xingang REFH 6,353,259 11,85 5,213,553 430,000 721,558
Chengdu Yidu R 2,433,786 173 1,461,952 - 972,007
Chongqing Xinshi SEHA 3,110,030 575 2,008,212 7,760 1,099,810
Tiancheng Yongtai AT 2,240,014 2,414 2,804 - 2239624
Tiancheng Yongyuan ALK 1,990,991 2,301 2,901 - 1,990,391
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENT (Continued)

(2).

Subsidiaries with significant
minority interests (Continued)

The financial informations of subsidiaries
above in this period (Continued)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BHEFIZHS) 2 ELBARETFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

M. EREHREHHBRE
(#)

(Z). FEEESBRRESEN T

nE (&)

LHRFRARAEBERZMHES
(%)

Operating Results for the six months ended 30 June 2014
BL-2-MERAZTALAEANBEERF

Total

Other  Comprehensive

Total Net Comprehensive Income/
Revenue Profit/(Loss) Profit/(Loss) Income (Loss)

iR/ FHE/ iy HeuE/

KA (B8 28 (B8 GekE  (BRIAR

Tianjin Banshan REMHL (507) 23,504 17,628 - 17,628
Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 6,246 13,829 10,119 - 10,119
Tianjin Xingang KA 393,157 (13,238) (9,928) - (9,928)
Chengdu Yidu FX B 991,985 115,253 86,440 - 86,440
Chongging Xinshi EEFA 162,645 39,716 29,787 - 29,787
Tiancheng Yongtai NS - (532) (399) - (399)
Tiancheng Yongyuan KK - (2,359) (1,769) - (1,769)

Operating Results for the six months ended 30 June 2013
BE-Z-—=E A=TRLEAEABREERF

Total

Other Comprehensive

Total Net Comprehensive Income/

Revenue Profit/(Loss) Profit/(Loss) Income (Loss)

s,/ FHE/ Bt mEME/

KA (BR) 2% (B#8) mekE (BR)RE

Tianjin Banshan R 4,645 6,225 4,668 = 4,668
Tianjin Xinyuan REHE 26,756 1,678 1,258 - 1,258
Tianjin Xingang REFH - (2,877) (2,158) = (2,158)
Chengdu Yidu PR EERD 1,680,944 257,734 193,301 - 193,301
Chongging Xinshi EEHA 1,384,677 280,202 210,151 - 210,151
Tiancheng Yongtai KR NATEE  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATEBR
Tiancheng Yongyuan KK T NATERE  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

4,

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (%)

STATEMENT (Continued)

(2).

Subsidiaries with significant

(Z). FEEESBRRESEN T

minority interests (Continued) YNCRE P

The financial informations of subsidiaries

ERFRARAEBERZMHES

above in this period (Continued) (#%)

Cash Flow for the six months ended 30 June 2014
HEZ-E-MEAA=tHIEAERBEELRE
Cash and Cash and

Cash flows ~ Cash flows  Cash flows cash cash
from from from  equivalents  equivalents
operating  investment financing  at beginning at end of
activities activities activities of period period

HARER HARER
BEgEy REED £EED RILEY  REZED

ReRE BeHE ReRE BHE BE
Tianjin Banshan REHIL (17,363) - - 38,191 20,828
Tianjin Xinyuan REHE (135,987) - - 144,063 8,076
Tianjin Xingang REIE (4,441,557) - (17,928) 4,911,788 452,303
Chengdu Yidu Pk &2 (13,233) - (42,861) 102,147 46,053
Chongging Xinshi EEFA 324,736 2 153,272 181,137 659,167
Tiancheng Yongtai INIECS (43.273) (64) - 50,646 7,309
Tiancheng Yongyuan KK TT (37,660) - - 44,834 7174

Cash Flow for the six months ended 30 June 2013
HEZ_ZT-=F A=tHIt ARSMELRE
Cash and Cash and

Cash flows Cash flows Cash flows cash cash
from from from  equivalents  equivalents
operating investment financing  at beginning at end of
activities activities activities of period period

SRR BRAER
) RAES LERY BLEEM  HeFEY

Beneg Beme Beme BB 73
Tianjin Banshan REMHL (167,852) - (35,656) 248,795 45,287
Tianjin Xinyuan REHNE (92,200) - - 150,918 58,718
Tianjin Xingang REFH (1,889,872) 1,063 (43,993) 2,415,226 482,424
Chengdu Yidu X #EEED 355,324 (56) (407,180) 241,000 189,088
Chongging Xinshi SENA 222,696 (5) (332,321) 358,689 249,059
Tiancheng Yongtai AR NATER  NATER  NAMER  NATER NATER
Tiancheng Yongyuan RIKTT NANER  NANER  NATER  NATER  NATER

The financial information above are amount

R ESREEEEARIMLR S A

before inter-group elimination. ko
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BHEFIZHS) 2 ELBARETFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3). Loss of control caused by disposal of
equity interests in subsidiaries

1. Beijing Taihao Shengyuan Real
Estate Co., Ltd.

The Group originally held 100% equity
interests in Beijing Taihao Shengyuan
Real Estate Co., Ltd., (hereinafter
“Taihao Shengyuan”), which was
incorporated in Beijing, the PRC in
February 2014, and the principal
activities are property development
and sale. In June 2014, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in
Taihao Shengyuan to Zhuhai Henggin
Shouchuang Real Estate Zizhufang
Equity Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership) (hereinafter “Zhuhai
Henggin Zizhufang Fund”) which was
established by Zhuhai Henggin Shouju
Chuangxin Equity Investment Fund
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “Zhuhai Henggin
Fund management company”) as
general partner. After the transaction,
the Group and other independent
third party shareholders jointly control
Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang Fund and its
subsidiary, Taihao Shengyuan.

M. XSRS HMBRER

(%)

(=) HERBEEHRAEFEM

WY F A
1. TERRERIEEXFRD
=

AEERFEILRRER
EEXER AR (ATHE
[ZR)5 %38 |) 100% % # -
TyERIBEBRN T — & —
BafmrAzEARLRM
Bitnm EEB2XHAEE
WERZELEE R
—MFENA AEBEF
ERREREBERNZ I RE
ERAKEEREHEAE
RERERESCEEARA
AlI(ATHE I KREESE
SEEBARERLEBE
BABBRINKEEE
BEIBEXEERRERSE
RO (BRER) (ATHE
[HREREaERER]) -
LR EEEE ANEE
N E A Y8 37 25 = 7 AR 3R 4L
FRZEHFKEEEGERE
& NEFRAIRERIE -
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B FFZ 2B E B ARKEFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND W, t¥SHREHBHERR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3). Loss of control caused by disposal (). HEREEHWREHEM
of equity interests in subsidiaries WAF T ()
(Continued)
1. Beijing Taihao Shengyuan Real 1. TRFEREBEXEBRLD
Estate Co., Ltd. (Continued) (&)
(i) The proceeds and cash flows (i) BREEBREBEER
from the disposal are as follows: EHRAT
Amount
|
Proceeds from disposal BB 20,000
Cash received from disposal BERIHRE 20,000
Less: Cash held by Taihao B RERIEBREER
Shengyuan HEeMREEEY (19,329)
Net cash received from disposal BEWEMIREFE 671
(ii) Net assets of the Taihao (i) BERERBENE
Shengyuan are as follows: BEJRIAT:
As at
31 December
Disposal date 2013
—E-=F
BEER +t=-HA=+-—H
Current assets MBEE 739,349 N/A 7~ 3 A
Non-current assets ERMEBEE 170 N/A 7~ 3 A
Current liabilities VRN (720,000) N/A 7~ 3 A
Non-current liabilities EREBEE -~ N/A “ i@ A
Net assets FEE 19,519 N/A A~ 3 A
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BE—F—

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3).

Loss of control caused by disposal
of equity interests in subsidiaries

(Continued)

1. Beijing Taihao Shengyuan Real

(iii)

(iv)

94758 =+ B 1L 18 AR (B H5 5 B55) 2 BB s A BB FT)

M. XSRS HMBRER

(%)

(=) HERBEEHRAEFEM
8 (%)

IF’E 7> % /'\

1. E=EFRE

BREEXARA

Estate Co., Ltd. (Continued) (&)
The revenue, expense and loss of (i) THERBHR -ZF
Taihao Shengyuan for the period —MOFZA=+K
from 24 February 2014 to the BHERER®BIK
disposal date are as follows: A BRAMEBEN
T
Amount
]
Revenue YA =
Less: Cost and Expenses JB AR E A 641
Total Loss EEERE 641
Less: Income tax expenses Bt PRSI E (160)
Net Loss FEE 481
Profit or loss on disposal is vy BEEBERTEN
calculated as follows: ™
Amount
Proceeds from disposal b B E% 20,000
Less: Net assets of Taihao B RERIEREE R
Shengyuan at the disposal FEE
date (19,519)
Investment income generated REEAENRE WS
from disposal 481
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3).

Loss of control caused by disposal
of equity interests in subsidiaries
(Continued)

2.

Beijing Shangyi

The Group originally held 100% equity
interest in Beijing Shangyi, which is
incorporated in Beijing, the PRC, and
its principal activities are property
development and sale. In June 2014,
the Group disposed of its entire equity
interests in Beijing Shangyi to Beijing
Yangguang Xunchi Investment and
Management Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Beijing Xunchi”).

(i) The proceeds and cash flows
from the disposal are as follows:

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

(%)

(2). HERESHRREFEM
WY FRF (&)

2. tmZEE

AEERFEEILEAERE
100% % # - b = & B o
A EE AR LB L =
M TBEKAREMER
BREE- N _T—MF
NACAEBEEEAL
FRAENEIREEES
tRG AR EERES
BE/A)ET (AT [t =4
Bl) o

i) RBREEBERER
BRI

Amount

ot

Proceeds from disposal B ER 150,680

Cash received from disposal BB WEIAIR ¢ 90,408
Less: Cash held by Beijing Shangyi & - It RE E#H A K

RENBEEEY (12,975)

Net cash received from disposal REWRNIRSFEEE 77,433

(ii) Net assets of Beijing Shangyi is as
follow:

(il BREILREENF
BEJIRWMAT

As at
31 December
Disposal date

BEER +=-A=+-—H

Current assets mENEE 34,199 5,573
Non-current assets EREEE 1,906,846 1,886,819
Current liabilities mEamE (646,363) (608,148)
Non-current liabilities EmBAaE (941,232) (953,732)
Net assets FEE 353,450 330,512
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BHEFIZHS) 2 ELBARETFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3). Loss of control caused by disposal
of equity interests in subsidiaries

(Continued)

2. Beijing Shangyi (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The revenue, cost and loss of

M. EREHREHHBRE
(#)

(). HEREERTAEZHER
BLFAE (&)

2. Lm=®BEE)
iy ERBER-F

i

Beijing Shangyi for the period —mMFE-—HA—BZE
from 1 January 2014 to the BEEBRHKRA &R
disposal date is as follow. MEBEWT :
Amount
k|
Revenue WA -
Less: Cost and Expenses JBt AR FNE AR 22,938
Total Loss EiE 4% 22,938
Less: Income tax expenses J TSR E A =
Net Loss FEE 22,938
Profit or loss on disposal is (ivy BREBEREZHEW
calculated as follows: N
Amount
k-
Proceeds from disposal BB B 150,680

Less: Net assets of Beijing Shangyi
on disposal date
Other comprehensive income

Ji At RAEREE B
FEE (353,450)
Hibsr o WasE

transferred out 513,695
Investment income generated REEEMNRE NS
from disposal 310,925
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3).

Loss of control caused by disposal
of equity interests in subsidiaries
(Continued)

3.

Beijing Wan’an huixin Investment
and Management Co., Ltd., Beijing
Jinfu hongxiang Investment and
Management Co., Ltd. and their
project company

The Group originally held 100% equity
interest in Beijing Wan'an huixin
Investment and Management Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Wan'an Huixin”), and
Beijing Jinfu hongxiang Investment
and Management Co., Ltd (hereinafter
“Jinfu Hongxiang”). Wan'an huixin and
Jinfu hongxiang originally held 60%
and 40% equity interests in Beijing
Huayuan shengxing Real Estate Co.,Ltd.
(hereinafter “Huayuan Shengxing”)
respectively. They are incorporated
in Beijing, the PRC in October 2013,
August 2013, and January 2014
respectively, with principal activities in
investment management and property
development and sale respectively. In
June 2014, the Group disposed of its
entire equity interests in the Wan'an
Huaxin, Jinfu Hongxiang and indirectly
100% equity interests in Huayuan
Shengxing to Beijing Heyu Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Beijing Heyu").

M. ©XSHRESHMBRE

(=) HERBEEHRAEFEM
WL F DT (&)

tRBZESREEESR
RAF -LtR\BEBFER
EEERARAAKRAER
A

ARRRFEILERERE
EREEEBARAA (K
THIEZES]) KR
WERAKEEEERA
AI(ATHEIBEBH])
100% 1 BELEEZER
WEBADRFAILRE
BEEREEZEAERAA (MK
TR [ZEEAHE]) 60% &
A0%BE - BRES RS
8 FI AN EE 48 BR B Rl —
E—=ZF+A-ZFT—=
FNAM-_Z=—WEFE—A
AR R EARLMBEIL
R EEEXEBD R AK
BEBMEMERME N
E-R-T—INF/NA K
SEHEHENELRESR
WERANE ALK
A RNEEERTE100%
M E AL AL AR R i
ERBBRRAE (A THE
[HERmAA]) ©
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3). Loss of control caused by disposal
of equity interests in subsidiaries

(Continued)

3.

Beijing Wan’an huixin Investment
and Manegement Co., Ltd., Beijing
Jinfu hongxiang Investment and
Management Co., Ltd. and their
project company (Continued)

(i)

(i)

The proceeds and cash flows
from the disposal are as follows:

94758 =+ B 1L 18 AR (B H5 5 B55) 2 BB s A BB FT)

M. XSRS HMBRER

(%)

(). HERBEEHRKEHEN

BLFAE (&)

3. tRBZESREERESR
RAFE -LRBEBFR
EEERARAAKAEEER
DE (&)

i) BREEBEASR
EHRIT

Amount
]
Proceeds from disposal BB 240,183
Cash received from disposal BREWRIMIRE 240,183
Less: Cash held by Wan'an Huixin, i - B%ESZ B8 %
Jinfu Hongxiang and EERENEEHRD
Huayuan Shengxing on RekBEEEEY
disposal date (191)
Net cash received from disposal BEREMIREFE 239,992
Net assets of the Wan'an Huixin, (il KREBREZ 73
Beijing Jinfu Hongxiang, Huayuan & A K EE 1B B LAY
Shengxing are as follows: FEESRIAT
As at
31 December
Disposal date 2013
—E—=F
BEER +t=-HA=+-—H
Current assets mENEE 258,991 194
Non-current assets EMBEE 50,000 -
Current liabilities VBN (380,165) -
Non-current liabilities EREBEE = -
Net assets FEE (71,174) 194
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

4. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND W, t¥SHREHBHERR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)
STATEMENT (Continued)

(3). Loss of control caused by disposal (). HEREEHWREHEM
of equity interests in subsidiaries WAF T ()
(Continued)
3. Beijing Wan’an huixin Investment 3. TREREEREEES
and Manegement Co., Ltd., Beijing RO\t RBEBRBER
Jinfu hongxiang Investment and EEBEERATKRHEER
Management Co., Ltd. and their AR (&)
project company (Continued)
(i)  The revenue, expense and loss of (i) BLES BEHED
Wan'an Huixin, Jinfu Hongxiang, NREEREE T
Huayuan Shengxing for the —mMFE—H—BZE
period from 1 January 2014 to REBOKA EH
the disposal date are as follows: MEEWT :
Amount
oo
Revenue WA =
Less: Cost and Expenses JB AR E A 71,368
Total Loss EEERE 71,368
Less: Income tax expenses B PSR E B -
Net Loss FEER 71,368
(iv)  Profit or loss on disposal is (ivy BEEEZFTEN
calculated as follows: I
Amount
T8
Proceeds from disposal BB 240,183
Less: Net assets of Wan'an B BREZ WBERAR
huixin, Jinfu hongxiang, EERENEEHDN
and Huayuan Shengxing FEE
on disposal date 71,174
Investment income generated REEAENRE W
from disposal 311,357
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BHEFIZHS) 2 ELBARETFT)

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT (Continued)

(4).

Transaction with non-controlling
shareholders

Tiancheng Yongyuan

In 2014, the Group transferred 100% equity
interests and shareholder loans of Bantex
Investments Limited (hereinafter “Bantex”),
a subsidiary of the Group, to Reco Yanshan
Private Limited (hereinafter “Reco Yanshan®),
the 50% interests in Tiancheng Yongyuan held
by Bantex were transferred to Reco Yanshan
accordingly. According to the Articles of
Association, the Group has rights in the board
of Tiancheng Yongyuan to share the variable
return by participating in the related activities,
and has the power to influence the amount
of return after the transaction, therefore
the Group still have the control power over
Tiancheng Yongyuan. Reco Yanshan indirectly
holds 50% equity interests in Tiancheng
Yongyuan through the 100% shares of Bantex

M. XSRS HMBRER

(%)

(). BFRFALBRREFZHR
2

R K TT

RZE—NOF AEEBEF
A BT A alBantex Investments
Limited ( JA T % [Bantex |)
100% M EFMBPRE R EELSR
Reco Yanshan Private Limited ( LA
78 [Reco Yanshan|) ° Bantex
AR R K TT50% 8 # &= 1
B FEEEE 45Reco Yanshan ° 1B 1%
NAEER RIEREBEAEEE
AP K TEESHBERE BB
SEXBRKTHNEBEZEmE
B ERR WHABRENDERY
AWM AKTHENDEEERBRS
R E M ASE %A R KT
72 4| # - Reco Yanshani® B A
Bantex 100%HIR#EI HHE=H
R K TL50%HE 75 B B AN 5 B

and becomes minority shareholder of the FRAIZLERE
Group.
Amount
S|
Proceeds from disposal REEE 1,049,087
Reductions of shared net assets of RERIARERER
the subsidiary calculated by ZHETRRFEEMRE
the disposed share proportion (994,311)
Increase in capital surplus BARNIRIE NG 54,776
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B FFZ5) 2 BB ARKTFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash

h. GO B®mRIEBME

(1). ERES

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-NF —r =

~B=+H +ZA=+—H

Cash on hand BEFRE 3,025 1,397
Bank Deposits RITFEN 11,586,167 11,250,970
Other cash balances Hih\¥ES 84,305 87,440
Total BET 11,673,497 11,339,807
As at 30 June 2014, bank deposits includes MRZE—WNFENA=+H8" E1T
supervised advance from customers, security =5 EP@%/\EV%Z 095,252,000
deposits for certain mortgage loans to T (—E—=&F+—A=+—H:

customers, mortgage loan deposits and
security deposits for bond interests amounted
to RMB2,095,252,000 (31 December
2013: RMB770,285,000). The Group has
reclassified the above amount to restricted
bank deposits. As at 30 June 2014, the
carrying amount of supervised advance
from customers was RMB297,593,000 (31
December 2013: RMB327,807,000). According
to the requirements of some local authorities
(such as Beijing, Tianjin etc.) in the PRC, real
estate developers need to open supervised
bank accounts for the advances received
from property customers. Such accounts are
supervised by the Chinese government, and
all cash expenditure from this account should
coincide with the construction progress in
order to ensure the cash being used for
property construction on a priority basis.
As at 30 June 2014, the carrying amount
of security deposits for bond interests was
RMB153,823,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB152,186,000). As at June 30, 2014, the
carrying amount of mortgage loan deposits
was RMB230,333,000 yuan (31 December
2013: RMB238,666,000 yuan) and carrying
amount of pledged loan deposits was
RMB1,373,571,000 (31 December 2013: RMB:
Nil) respectively. As at 30 June 2014, the
carrying amount of mortgage loan deposits of
the Group was RMB39,932,000 (31 December
2013: RMB50,626,000).

Aﬁmﬂo 285 00071) EONER=
ﬁéfi EPRBEREES -

TEE#%TTW% e MESTHE
ko $$lﬁ%ﬁ“*ﬁixﬁﬁé
Hep - R T —MF A
CAEEEREAFREE
> AR #297,593,0007T ( —
:¢+ A=+—H: AR
7,807,0007T ) 48 & K BE 0
& (04t K2 ) B
HWIBEEMNTEEE S EE I
iﬁ’ﬁﬁm %ﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬁ W H TR
=58 /,\ﬁa'ﬂiﬁ‘ EESEE
R Fﬁuu}%w EEL2EEFEA
EREEEEcEEERAEKR:
%ﬁ?ﬁé?ﬁiﬁmﬁﬂfﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁ
RETAL BEALAELA
RIBER - R —FRA
E+E-$$Eﬁﬁ,ﬂi\ﬁ)\ﬁfﬁ%
153,823,000 (=& —=F1+—
A=+—H: AK#¥152,186,000
75)7%1%%%@9’]1%"%@%&0%
—ZET-MENA=1H K£EH
EEE%EU#&EAE%BO,B&OOO
T(ZE—=F+_A=+—H:
AR #238,666,0007T ) & E K
Tﬂﬂ%;ﬁfé AR #1,373,571,000
T (= =Et-A="+— EI
ﬂﬁ)%fﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi »=
—MERNA=TH" K%IEEE
H B AR 39,932,000t (=&
— =+ A=+—HB: AR¥
50,626,0007T) X FiZiBE R
RiEd o

Eﬁﬁzﬂhﬁﬂﬂ};lwlm%\
Dﬂ}i%ﬁ,’ | /U]?x—|-|‘H>m5%
|-H>m

x
)
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

h. EOBI R EE KR (2)

(Continued)
(1). Cash (Continued) (1). E¥ES (&)
As at 30 June 2014, other cash balances RZE—NFAAA=1+H &M
amounted to RMB84,305,000 are deposit Bk ES ARM-84,305,0007T
for bank acceptance bill (31 December (ZE—=F+—_A=+—H: A
2013:RMB87,440,000). The Group has R #87,440,0007T) & R1THE K
classified the above amount to restricted bank EERIZTHFEN AEEHFHES
deposits. BEXRE®-
(2). Financial assets at fair value through (2). UAREBEFEEEEBHTA
profit or loss EHERNEREE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—Z-NmEF —T—=%
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
Derivatives PTAET A - 43,728
In March 2013, the Group entered into a R-ZE—=F=ZA A&EB8%
currency swap contract to swap the three- AT REEMETIE% AR
year loans amounting to RMB2,000,000,000 2,000,000,0007T Ay = F Hif&
with fixed rate of 7.6% to three-year loans BEBRAEEMNZX6.1% ET
amounting to USD326,531,000 with fixed rate 326,531,0007CH) = FHAEHHE
of 6.1%. The currency swap contract is not BEBMEH BB BRSO
in compliance with the requirement of hedge TREEHSTNERKE R
accounting. It was terminated by the group in ZE—MFERA AEBEKIET
June 2014. ZEBEBAEH-
(3). Accounts receivable and other (3). EWERF R H W

receivables

(a) Accounts receivable

(a) EWERX

30 June 31 December
2014 2013

—E-mF —E—=
XA=+A +=A=t—E
Accounts receivable & Uk BR 2k 725,137 493,714
Less: provision for bad debts  J& - SEERYE (7,000) (7,000)
Receivables — net ek 718,137 486,714

Most sales of the Group are in form
of cash and advanced payment, other
sales are collected subject to the agreed
terms on sales contract.

AN 5= B K B0 3 35 & DA UER
B TR T AT
HAHERIREASROE
) A 7R 2 2 B
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U REE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(3). Accounts receivable and other
receivables (Continued)

(a) Accounts receivable (Continued)

The ageing of accounts receivable based

. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(3). FEURRRFR I H fth B WK

(%)
(a) MEWERX (&)
JE W R SR B ARR B HIRY

on their recording dates is analyzed as R DTN
follows:

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—F-NF —F—=%
AA=+H +ZHA=+—H
Within 1 year —F AR 714,181 476,078
1 to 2 years — R =4 317 424
2 to 3 years ZR=%F 3,369 9,937
Over 3 years =FE 7.270 7,275
Total CE 725,137 493,714

The accounts receivable based on their

F& I BR K IR H8 Bl o AT 40

categories is analyzed as follows: ™
As at 30 June 2014 As at 31 December 2013
“E-mEAAZTA ZE-ZF1+ZA=1-A
% of % of % of % of
total the total the
Amount  balance Provision provision ~ Amount  balance  Provision provision
1t it

1] il REER  HREA £ | WH SRERE RO
% % % %
Significant individual amount ERSHER 666,619 92 - - 349940 n = =
Others i 58,518 8 (7,000 1 143774 29 (7,000 5
Total ait 125131 100 (7,000 1 493714 100 (7,000) 1
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(3). Accounts receivable and other
receivables (Continued)

(a) Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, accounts
receivable amounted to RMB270,000
(31 December 2013: RMB275,000)
is overdue but not impaired with the
ageing of over 3 years. Accounts
receivable amounted to RMB7,000,000
(31 December 2013: RMB7,000,000)
with age of three years is overdue
and fully impaired at the amount of
RMB7,000,000(31 December 2013:
RMB7,000,000).

(b) Other receivables

h. EOBI R EE KR (2)

(3). g%ilﬁzﬁﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁf&@t&%ﬁt

(a) MEWRM (&)

—MmMENA=T
EI tﬁmaﬁkzﬁeim@%@
K& EAEARE270,000
TE(_“—EE—?—:H
=+—H: AR#¥275,000
T0) c BRI R 1B = & - 1 Hf
BB 2 A4 R E 18 5k 79 fE Uk
,TAIE/\E#W 000,0007T
—=F+=-A=+—
g : )\Eﬁﬁ 000,000
TC)  BREREBIB =G HE
BMEBXScHABARE
7,000,0007T (=& — =4
+ZA=+—HB: AR
7,000,0007T) °

%

—

(b) EHttElRK

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-NF — =&
ANA=+H +=-—A=+—H
Amounts due from A EEETNGIRE R F 7
joint ventures 548,358 103,195
Amounts due from J7E Wi BEt i N B 7 SRR
associates 161,158 140,447
Land deposit and other THERERITE R
guarantee deposits EMiRFER 1,219,254 362,330
Receivables from primary ﬁﬁuﬁl—ﬁ&imﬁ%%ﬁ(i)
land development(i) 836,105 1,940,853
Consideration receivables TR AR
from disposal of subsidiaries 77,192 31,298
Consideration receivables JrE Wi B 2 R ) i
from disposal of EEX
associates 17,511 17,511
Others H Aty 636,640 773,015
Total a5t 3,496,218 3,368,649
Less: provisions for R BEREME
bad debts (41,791) (41,791)
Receivables — net ek 3,454,427 3,326,858
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B HFZ85) 2 e B ARKTFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM
(Continued)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(3). Accounts receivable and other
receivables (Continued)

(b)

Other receivables (Continued)

(i) The receivables from primary land
development were receivables
from reserve centers of Beijing,
amounting to RMB836,105,000
(31 December 2013:
RMB1,940,853,000).

The analysis of other receivables and

h. SO ERREE KW (2)

(3). FEURRRFR I H fth B WK

(%)
(b) HthEWRK(Z)

(i) JiE U — A% i A 2
KB K EER
I T
BEPLOREAR
#836,105,0007C
(=8B ===
A=+—H:AE
#1,940,853,000
JL) °

H il [ YR K% A8 O 3 B

related provisions for bad debts are as EEOFTOT
follows:
As at 30 June 2014 As at 31 December 2013
“R-RERAZTA Z2-ZE1f=t-H
% of % of % of % of
total the total the
Amount  balance  Provision provision ~ Amount  balance  Provision provision
L %
&8 HH ERER  HRUA &8 il BREE AR
% % % %
Within 1 year &R 2,992,010 86 - - 3,165,117 9% - -
1102 years -3z& 371,613 1 - - 60952 2 = B
2103 years ZH=E 46,689 1 - - 93740 3 - -
Over 3 years ZENE 85,906 2 (#19) 49 48840 T #1791 86
Total At 3,496,218 100 (41,791) 13,368,649 100 (41,791) 1

The analysis of other receivables

H it & W SR IR 38 Rl 73 AT 4

categories are as follows: T

As at 30 June 2014 As at 31 December 2013

ZE-DEABZTR ZE-ZEtZA=t-B
% of % of % of % of
total the total the
Amount  balance Provision provision ~ Amount  balance  Provision provision

k8% it

&8 h EREE  FRULA it Al REEE  SHRLA
% % % %
Significant individual amount ERSHER 3,030,840 87 - - 2851728 85 = =
Others At 465,378 13 (@791 9 516921 15 (41,791) 8
Total A 3,496,218 100 (41,791) 13368649 100 (41,791) 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED E. GOt EHRREEME 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(4). Advances to suppliers (4). FEAFRE
The advances to suppliers are analysis as RZE—NFEA=1+RH B&f
follows as at 30 June 2014: HKIEDHTR
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-0OF —F—=

ANB=tH +ZA=+—H

Prepaid sales commissions FERHEERE 62,448 29,351
Prepayment for land, construction F&{+ £z« T2
costs and project costs NIEH & 49,247 58,313
Prepaid materials and FEMM R RERIE
equipment 50,772 46,335
Total =X 162,467 133,999
The aging analysis of the advances to suppliers AR ERFIZERE DT T
is as follows:
As at 30 June 2014 As at 31 December 2013
—E-MEXA=TH —Z—=F+-fB=1—H
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
¢ 8 1k 2 28 b Al &8 et g]
% %
Within 1 year —FHRA 135,182 83 112,916 84
Over 1 year —EMAF 27,285 17 21,083 16
Total A 162,467 100 133,999 100
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED E. 6 BHRREB N (2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(5). Dividends receivable (5). EWRF
31 December  Current period  Current period 30 June
2013 additions reductions 2014
—T-=f —2-RE
+=A=+—8 A HRE KERYS AB=tH
Xi'an Capital BREEIFNAER
Xinkai Real Estate BRAF
Development (AT (AR
Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an (HIEEEG)))
Xinkai")
(note 7(5)(c)) 87,422 153,600 (12,400) 228,622
Tianjin Capital REHEIFAER
Xinming Real =1 YN
Estate Development (AT [KZHEH])
Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin (H&EEG)0)
Xinming”)
(note 7(5)(c)) 9,825 = = 9,825
Total =) 97,247 153,600 (12,400 238,447
(6). Inventories (6). =&
(@)  Inventories are classified as follows: (a) HFEB\EWMT:

As at 31 December 2013
—F-=F4+-A=+-H

As at 30 June 2014
—E-MEXA=TH

Book Provisions Book Book Provisions Book
balance of inventory value balance  of inventory value
BESE HFEREER REEE FERE FEREER FEEE
Properties under RERA
development 33,172,077 - 33,172,077 24,700,215 - 24,700,215
Properties held for sale HEER 4,464,156 (48,004) 4,416,152 4,672,386 = 4,672,386
Land under development ~ FI%H iy 183,280 - 183,280 241,397 - 241,397
Low value consumables K& SR - - - 7,669 - 7,669
Chemical raw materials, (L TRM# EEmM R
work in progress and BB
finished goods 44,403 - 44,403 24,817 - 24,817
Total A&t 37,863,916 (48,004) 37,815,912 29,646,484 - 29,646,484
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BE—F—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9758 =+ B LN 18 AR (B A5 5 B8] & BB s A BB FT)

h. EOBI R EE KR (2)

(Continued)
(6). Inventories (Continued) 6). FE (&)
(b)  The movement of the book balance of (b) 7(? = AR R FE A HAfR &
inventories is as follows: DT
31 December  Current period ~ Current period 30 June
2013 additions reductions 2014
—E—= —E-mF
+-A=+—H ZRESE KER D ~B=1H
Costs - A
Properties under AR
development ) 24,700,215 11,539,766 (3,067 904) 33,172,077
Properties held for sale HEER 4,672,386 3,067,904 (3,276,134) 4,464,156
Land under development ~ FiZEH £ i 241,397 77,421 (135,538) 183,280
Low value consumables  KEZ#FEm 7,669 = (7,669) -
Chemical raw materials, ~ {t TR# &}
work in progess and EEmK
finished goods EKm 24,817 106,213 (86,627) 44,403
Total SEr 29,646,484 14,791,304 (6,573,872) 37,863,916
() The analysis of provisions of inventories (0 FEUKEBEELSTWT:
is as follows:
31 December  Current period ~ Current period 30 June
2013 additions reductions 2014
-z E ‘ —2-IF
+ZRA=1+— ZREE KER D ~AA=tH
Properties held for sale  FIZER = (48,004) = (48,004)
For the six months ended 30 June 2014, HE-_Z—NO&FA=1+HILA

the properties held for sale with the
carrying amount of RMB3,276,134,000
(for the six months ended 30 June 2013:
RMB3,268,916,000) has been recognised as
cost of sales.

As at 30 June 2014, the financed costs
capitalised in the properties under
development amounted to RMB1,628,949,000
(31 December 2013: RMB1,610,817,000).
For the six months ended 30 June 2014, the
capitalisation rate is 7.5% (for the six months
ended 30 June 2013: 8.3%).

BAHRE NEEREREREE
uu%’iﬂﬁﬁ'ﬂ_f\ﬁﬁﬁj/\ﬁﬁg
3,276,134,0007T (B =
FRNH= JrEIJtMIHHﬂF'ﬁ /\
R #3,268,916,0007T) °

mi/‘—\ﬂ =+ HHME
EJZNP SERERAELRLH
\,%E/\E%ﬁ§1,628,949,0007n(44
TE—=H+-"F=+—H8: AR
#1,610,817,0007T) & ZE - F
—MEXNAZTHIEAEAERE
BRECERETS% (BHE_Z—=
FRA=Z+HILHM 83%) -

125



126

BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD.

INTERIM REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B4 55 i Wi

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—

5.

BYE7X A =+ B L1 A B (BB B8] £ AR E L B A BB For)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(6).

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use rights in
properties under development of the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB1,902,243,000
(31 December 2013: RMB61,172,000) have
been pledged as security for short-term
borrowings of RMB950,532,000 (31 December
2013: RMB38,976,000) (note 5(17)(b)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use rights in
properties under development of the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB500,000,000
(31 December 2013: Nil) have been pledged
as security for short-term borrowings of
RMB500,000,000 (31 December 2013: Nil)
and guaranteed by the Company (note 5(17)
(b)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use rights in
properties under development of the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB2,038,535,000
(31 December 2013: RMB3,050,592,000)
have been pledged as security for long-
term borrowings of RMB1,499,200,000 (31
December 2013: RMB1,452,200,000) (note
5(26)(b)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain buildings in
properties held for sale of the Group with
a carrying amount of RMB475,954,000 (31
December 2013: RMB187,350,000) have been
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB543,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB135,000,000) (note 5(26)(b)).

f. EOBI R ER KR (2)

(6).

7E (&)

RZE—NMENA=1TH" &K
SEAERATERBEES
AR ¥1,902,243,0007T (=&
—=F+ZA=+—"HB: AR
#61,172,0007T ) By £ {5 A
T%EME?%%EH@ 15 %ﬁ;ﬁfﬁm
= AR #950,532,0007T ( =
—=f+=-A=+—8: )\E
#38,976,0007T) (FIzEF(17)
(b)) °

R-_Z—NENA=Z1+H &&
EREXATPEREEBEAAR
#500,000,0007C (=T — =4
+-—A=+—HB E)N LM
BREEAREF WHARARE
ER IS Lﬁﬁfﬁfﬂ%?x}\Eﬁ%
500,000,000 (=ZZE—=F+=
A=+—8:&) (ﬁﬁufﬁ(17)
(b)) °

RZE—NMESA=1TH" &K
SEAERATERMEES
AR #2,038,535,000T (=&
—=F+ZA=+—"HB: AR
#3,050,592,0007T ) & + b &
BERKFELETIESRABR
AR #1,499,200,000T (=&
—=f+-A=1+—8: AR%
1,452,200,0007T) (B3t 7 (26)
(b)) °

R-_E—NFEA=+H K
SEFRAZELRTERMEES
AR #475,954,000C (=&
—=f+-A=+—8:AR%
187,350,0007T ) B 5 = iR EE ¥ 4K
L5 IRITEUIS EHH{%ﬁ/\Eﬁ%
543,000,000 (= FE—=F+=
BA=+—8: /\Eﬁ%us,ooo,ooo
7t) (MIzEF(26)Db)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use rights
in properties under development and income
right in certain real estate development
of the Group with a carrying amount of
RMB1,865,821,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB1,899,557,000) have been pledged
as security for long-term borrowings of
RMB813,457,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB813,457,000) (note 5(26)(b)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use rights in
properties under development of the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB2,327,899,000
(31 December 2013: RMB756,192,000)
have been pledged as security for long-
term borrowings of RMB2,390,400,000 (31
December 2013: RMB883,000,000) and
guaranteed by the Company (note 5(26)(e)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use rights
and buildings in properties under development
of the Group with a carrying amount of
RMB3,100,058,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB635,351,000) have been pledged
as security for long-term borrowings of
RMB1,015,100,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB502,100,000) and guaranteed by the
Company (note 5(26)(e)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain residential
properties in properties under development
with a carrying amount of RMB760,034,000
(31 December 2013: RMB708,602,000)
have been pledged as security for long-term
borrowings of RMB457,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB500,000,000) and guaranteed by
the Company (note 5(26)(e)).

(6).

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

BE(#)

R-_ZE—WEXA=Z+H &
SERBERKAFTERAREES
AR #1,865,821,0007T (=&
—=F+-A=+—H: AR¥
1,899,557,0007T ) A + b {5 5 4
MR R EREIE B e’
HHREBETHERPERARE
813,457,000 (=T —=F+—=
A=+—H: AR%S813,457,000
7t) (MIzEF(26)(Db)) °

R-_ZE—NWFENA=+H8H"
AEEREXATEREEE
A ANER%2,327,899,0007T (=
T—=%F+=-"A=+—HH: A
R #756,192,0007T ) H £ #b {F
BEEBGET LHAARQF
REER BISRHEERAR
#2,390,400,0007C ( =& — =
F+-_A=+—"H: AR#¥
883,000,0007t) (PKfzEF(26)
(e)) °

R—_ZE—WENA=Z+H &
SERAERATEEREEEES
A R #3,100,058,0007T (=&
—=F+-A=1+—8:AR%
635,351,000t ) Ky & {5 3 4
MEERZEWEMLET WH
AAGREER NERBHE
K AR¥1,015,100,0007T (=
E—=F+-_A=1+—H: AR
#502,100,0007T) (M 5F F(26)
(e)) °

R-_ZE—WEXA=Z+H &
SERAERATEEREEEES
AR #760,034,000T (=&
—=f+-A=+—8: AR%
708,602,0007T) M B D {EEHEH
WIRGKRITIW AR BIREER
IS RHE AR 457,000,000
T(Z2—=F+=A=+—8:
A R#500,000,0007T) (MR
(26)(e)) °
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(6).

Inventories (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use rights
in properties under development with a
carrying amount of RMB393,282,000 (31
December 2013: RMB63,230,000) have been
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB170,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB190,000,000) and guaranteed by the
subsidiaries of the Company (note 5(26)(e)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use rights
and residential properties in properties
under development with a carrying amount
of RMB665,923,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB867,002,000) have been pledged
as security for long-term borrowings of
RMB295,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB303,000,000) and guaranteed by the
subsidiaries of the Group(note 5(26)(e)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain long-term pledged
loans of the Group of RMB80,000,000 (31
December 2013: RMB87,500,000) were
secured by the equity and income right of
certain land under development of the Group
(note 5(26)(f)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain residential
properties in properties under development
with a carrying amount of RMB430,003,000
(31 December 2013: RMB228,965,000) and
rights to yield have been pledged as security
for long-term borrowings of RMB90,000,000
(31 December 2013: RMB170,000,000) and
guaranteed by the Company (note 5(26)(g)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain land use right in
properties under development with a carrying
amount of RMB694,249,000 (31 December
2013: RMB868,871,000) and rights to yield
have been pledged as security for long-term
borrowings of RMB720,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB694,538,000) and guaranteed by
the Company (note 5(26)(g)).
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

h. EOBI R EE KR (2)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(7).

Non-current assets and assets of
disposal group classified as held for

(7). WEZREEFENFER
EERWESRBEREN

sale REEHPHEE

30 June 31 December
2014 2013

—E-mF —F—=
~NA=+H +=-A=+—8H
Cash(a) BEEE2@) - 5,573
Fixed assets(a) & & ZE(a) - 161
Investment real estate(a) & MR 2 (a) - 1,886,658
Long-term Equity Investments(b) & BfAXE & & (b) 9,921 9,921
Total =1 9,921 1,902,313

(a)

In December 2013, the subsidiary of
the Group entered into an agreement
that transferred 100% equity interests
in Beijing Shangyi to Beijing Xunchi.
The transaction was completed in June
2014. As at 31 December 2013, the
assets of the subsidiary disposed met
the definition of held-for-sale, so it was
listed on the balance sheet separately.

The Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement on 10%
share of Hainan Dalecheng Real
Estate Development Holding Ltd.
(hereinafter “Hainan Dalecheng”)
with consideration of RMB20,000,000
(note 5(23)(b)). As the industrial and
commercial change has not been
completed, the Group classified the
book value of RMB9,921,000 as non-
current assets and assets of disposal
group classified as held for sale.

R—ZE—Z=ZF+_A" &
£ B 2 7R HEi 7R 5
R EEHE BAEE
BREMNILEREEN IR
s T AL A B iZ AR
BEZEXSE T —NF
NATK - R -_ZT— =4
+=ZA=+—H8" Lt
WHEZN T AP EE
ResBErEKt £F&
EBEXRPEBITR-

AEERESENEREA
L FHBETERAR A A
(ATHIEmAR%H])
10% % 1 %5 & A% #E o8 o8
i REHEAARK
20,000,0007T (B sEF(23)
(b)) ° 5% 10% I& #E K 58 AKX
ITHEEF WEHEETE
5 AR #9,921,0007T 1
BHEDAEEFEMNIE
RBEERWE D AFEE
FENREATNEERZ

= o
Ean
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—

5.

PIENF =+ H 1L 18 AR (B 585 - 2 BB E i BARETFor)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . GOt BMRIEFEME (2)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(8). Other current Assets (8). HMtRHEE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=
ANRA=+H +ZA=+—H
Prepaid taxes TBEF 2 1,171,113 1,113,762
Break-even financial product(a) {R7Z3% B 2 & (a) 17,000 17,000
Total = 1,188,113 1,130,762
(@)  As at 30 June 2014, the subsidiary of (a) AZE—MENA=T+
the Group purchased floating proceeds H AX&EEZzFRAEFAE
break-even financial product from China PEEZRBTIERT D
Construction Bank, Beijing Branch. TR FESH KRR B RITE
The amount was RMB17,000,000. The MER REZBBARK
investment duration is from 9 May 2014 17,000,0007T - % & HABR
to 8 August 2014. RZE—HNFEFRANBE
—mENANH-
(9). Available-for-sale financial assets (9). AMHHEESREE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-F —E-=F
AB=+H +ZA=+—H
Available-for-sale equity At EER T AQ)
instruments (a) 123,381 149,258
Less: Provision for impairment & - Al HE S R E E
VERIERL ] - -
Net R 123,381 149,258
In which, market value of Hip FTBEESFNME
listed securities 73,381 99,258




HAERRMARATR ZF PR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

St 25 e 35 Wi ik

B2 =—F—MFENFA=+HINEARBE (BEFFH) 28 EBARETFT)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 5. OB BHRKREEME 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(9). Available-for-sale financial assets (9). THHEESRMEE (&)
(Continued)
(a) Available-for-sale equity nEHtHERERZT A
instruments
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E2-pmF —F—=F
AAB=Z+tH +Z-A=+—H
Listed equity instruments M ERER T A
— in Mainland China — A [ A B 73,381 99,258
Unlisted equity instruments 3 E MR T A 50,000 50,000
Total CE 123,381 149,258

As at 30 June 2014, the carrying

amount of the

investment

in

Yangguang Xinye Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(hereinafter

“Yangguang Xinye”), a
listed company in mainland China,

is

RMB73,381,000 (31 December 2013:

RMB99,258,000).

Yangguang Xinye

was registered in Beijing, the PRC and
engaged in real estate development,

leasing and advisory services.

The

ordinary shares of Yangguang Xinye
held by the Group amounted to

19,310,913 shares,
of the total ordinary shares issued.

representing 2.6%

As at 30 June 2014, the Group holds
0.99% of the total shares of CDB
Siyuan (Beijing) Investment Fund Ltd.
(hereinafter “Guokai Siyuan”). Since the
Group doesn’t have significant influence
on Guokai Siyuan, the investment is
recorded as available-for-sale financial

assets.

RZE—NWERNA=T
B - AEEFEERNEFH
AP NI B i
ERMDBRRAG (A TH
[BaYeFZ ) IRERRAEE
B 5 ARK%73,381,0007C
—E—=%t+=-A=+—
H: AR%99,258,000
L) BRI EFRAF
EAREMREIL R
EERmENEENR
HMENZERAKRBESE N
SEFEGAFEL A
f%19,310,9130 " HE &
BHITERRKRMD A
2.6% °

RZTE-—MNFRA=
B - AEEFERHRARER
Uﬁﬂ&ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ
AI(LATHEIBERER])
0.99% iz 17 + 2S5 A ¥ Bl
BERERIAFEEAZE H
m%%Tﬁﬁ TREE
e

+
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U REE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

(Continued)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED E. 6 BHRREB N (2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(10). Long-term equity investments (10). RERERSE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=
~B=+H +ZA=+—H
Joint ventures BEMF
— Unlisted companies (a) —3F LA F(a) 822,594 749,228
Associates b
— Unlisted companies (b) —3E L2 Fl(b) 1,476,945 1,534,569
Subtotal /N7 2,299,539 2,283,797
Less: Provision for impairment & - K EARR R E
of long-term equity B
investments - -
Net FEE 2,299,539 2,283,797

There is no restriction on sale of the long-term
equity investments of the Group and collection
of the investment income.
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

f. GO B|RIEABME 2

(10). RIRERE (&)

Joint ventures (a) BEtFE
ER st A A
Investments in joint ventures are as HEeELENREKRER
follows: &:
Changes in this Period
ABmERRE
Share of Impairment
Increase or other Cash Other Equity ~ Voting Provision provided
Accounting Investment 31 December  decrease in Share of - comprehensive dividend equity 30June interest Tights for in current
Method costs 2013 investment net profit income declared  movement 2014 held%  held% impaiment period
8-z% ELL]
128 AE] EL ] ife B A c%-pE BR R RE AR
BHAE RERA Evr= HORK FHR GalE HRAR BE29  AB=TE hl ih B MEERR
% %
Shenyang Jiian Real Estate Co, Ltd. Equity method USDET 129597 = @3 = = = 129,365 50 50 - -
("Shengyang Jitian") 20,000,000
£ ERE
Huzhou Capital Rongcheng Real Estate Co, Ltd.  Equity method RMBAR % 23780 - (362) = = = 3418 55 55 - -
("Huzhou Rongcheng”) i 55,000,000
# Baik
Beijing Capital Chaoyang Investment Co,, Ltd Equity method RMBAR 4281 - (402) = = = 3885 50 50 - -
("Chaoyang Investment”) 50,000,000
: &
Beijing Wanzhu Real Estate Co, Lid. Equity method RMBARE 20,646 - 2760 - - - 23406 30 3 B -
Bejing Wanzhu") (i) 25,500,000
RAFL BRE
Capital iaming New Town Investment Co,, Ltd Equity method RMBAR % 168,401 - (585) - - - 167,816 35 35 - -
("Capital Jiaming" 175,000,000
BEERFAEREARERAA B&iE
(WTRIE8ER]) G
Tianjin Haileybury International School Equity method RMBAR % 1,119 = (1,179 = = = = 4 4 = =
(*International School”) (i) 4,500,000
R
Equity method RMBAR % 5,540 = (465) = = = 5075 4 4 = =
Management Co, Ltd. (* 4,000,000
REBEATRREEA Bai
( i}
Kunshan Chuangbo Fund (v RMBARH 160,586 - (1330) - - - 153,256 164 40 - -
EUBIBESK) 162,970,000
Thuhai Henggin Fund Equity method RMBAR % 3934 - - - - - 3934 i 4 - -
Management company (vil 4,000,000
FEREELEERA) [ 1203
Thuhai Henggin Fund (vii) Equity method RMBAR % 230,678 - 808 - - - 231486 284 &0 - -
REEL (i) BEH 240,000,000
Thuhai Hengqin Zizhufang Fund (i Equity method AB¥ - 81,000 {47) - - - 80,953 10 4 - -
KiEREEERES(H 81,000,000
749228 81,000 (1634) = = = 822,594 = =
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

134

Joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In February 2012, the Group
established Huzhou Rongcheng
and held 55% equity interests.
However according to the
Articles of Association of Huzhou
Rongcheng, the Group and
other shareholders jointly control
Huzhou Rongcheng, therefore it
has been recognised as a joint
venture.

In June 2012, the Group
acquired 30% equity interests
in Beijing Wanzhu by capital
injection. However according
to the Articles of Association of
Beijing Wanzhu, the Group and
other shareholders jointly control
Beijing Wanzhu, therefore it
has been recognised as a joint
venture.

The Group acquired 35% equity
interest in Capital Jiaming
by capital injection. However
according to the Articles of
Association, the Group and
other shareholders jonitly control
Capital Jiaming, therefore it
has been recognised as a joint
venture.

. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(10). RERERE (&)

(a)

o
(=]

Bk (#E)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

—E——F-H 'K
& B & & N
Uk 3B H55%
B A HE - B AR BRI
Bl H b JR SR [A)
72 1) 8 M 48 3 A A2
EEFNACERE - At
BEEREEDE

%H -

—E-ZFXA
AN E R B L A B

B R B E£30%M
& EREILRESE
UNGIE=¥ = -
H b {% 3 2k & 475 )
It RBENEERM
R A
HiEBARELEZ

s
= o
A

AEE BB E
55 Al 8835%0%
E BREE RIS
NAEIBIE AEEHHE
H b {% 3 2k & 475
BRI EZSEMEEMN
LR A
HiEBARELEZ

= o
A



For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(iv)

The net assets of International
School are negative due to
continuous losses in the past
years. As the Group does not
have the obligation to bear the
additional losses beyond the
share that the Group should have
assumed, the Group recognise
the carrying value of the long-
term equity investment at zero
other than negative. For the six
months ended 30 June 2014, the
unrecognised investment losses
amounted to RMB1,225,000 (for
the six months ended 30 June
2013 : nil). As at 30 June 2014,
the accumulated investment
losses that are not recognised
amounted to RMB1,225,000 (31
December 2013: nil).

The Company holds 40% equity
interests in Tonghua Qiangyu.
According to the Articles of
Association of Tonghua Qiangyu,
the Company and other
shareholders share the control
over Tonghua Qiangyu, therefore
it is recognised as a joint venture.

h. EOBI R EE KR (2)

(10). RIRERE (&)

(a) x(#E)

(iv) [EBREREEEE
BERFEES
B AEEHET
BEAEBIMEX
E25 BAWERR
HBEEMEERRE
BAEBEAEND
W - EHERER
ERENREER
pa/—lf'jT %Zj:_;
—MmENA=+H
1B 75 1@ A HA R oK
REOEEBEBELXAEA

E#1,225,0007T
(@E—v—_ﬁ
/\)EJ_+E|JJ:/\1.
REM &) R=
T—NENA=F
B2 AERH
REBRXBBAAR
1,225,000 (=
T—=%+_—-H
=t+—HB:E)-

V) ZARFEAEBRER
FA40% M #E - B 1R
BRARER AEEH
£l H th {% 3R £ R 4%
FlRERFNEE
M EREK - B
HEBEEDL ¥R

s
= o
A
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(vi)

Kunshan Chuangbo Fund was a
limited partnership established
by Kunshan Chuangbo Shengtuo
Fund Management Company,
a wholly owned subsidiary of
Tonghua Qiangyu, as the general
partner. The Company holds
16.4% of the subordinated units
in Kunshan Chuangbo Fund,
and 40% voting rights in the
investment strategy committee.
Kunshan Chuangbo Fund holds
100% equity interests in Beijing
Yongyuan Jintai Investment
and Management Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter “Yonyuan Jintai”)
and Beijing Xingtai Jicheng Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
“Xingtai Jicheng”) respectively.
According to the partnership
agreements, the Group jointly
control the investment and
operational strategy of Kunshan
Chuangbo Fund, Yongyuan
Jintai and Xingtai Jicheng with
other shareholders, therefore it
is classified as a joint venture.
According to the partnership
agreement, the fund has a
duration of two years. The
fund derives its revenue from
the profit of the real estate
development projects held by
Yongyuan Jintai and Xingtai
Jicheng, and the proceeds from
disposal of equity interests
in Xingtai Jicheng. At the
end of the first year after the
establishment of the fund and
at the settlement in the second

f. EOBIEERRER KR (2)

(10). RIRERE (&)

(a)

o
(=]

Bk (E)

(vi)

EBlLaEBESABE
ftBFZ2E2ETA
A R AITE R RE
CEEAREAL
BABABRBEY
ORI NN
AFAELAEE
£16.4% 8 R A& AD
w WEHRILEIE
EeRERKEZE
FA0%H) K IRHE o
BlLaEBELEFE
IRk TEHEE
EEARAT (AT
WlkoeZF])H
It REFEEKE ¥
ERAA (AT
[EZxEK]) 100%
BRiE-RIEESEWH
HASEEEMR
AR SR L A
BES kTEHEK
FHEE KA EE
LR Al
HIERBARELEZ
o RERLAITEE
cAEmE BILA
BEESHFEHEW
FoHE R EE
KIBERKITEHR R
FBREKRFTENE
Hb ZE IH B B 2 P
EENFEKEE
B 2% 7 AK A9 R B R
mEEESKILIE
E—FRRE-F
EERAEBENDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(Continued)

year, the distribution order is
as follows: Kunshan Chuangbo
Fund should pre-distribute 10%
expected earnings to senior
limited partners in the first year;
in the second year, Kunshan
Chuangbo Fund should firstly
distribute initial investment to
senior limited partners before
distributing 10% expected
earnings, after which distribute
initial investment to subordinated
limited partners and general
partners before distributing
10% annual expected earnings;
finally, if Kunshan Chuangbo
Fund has distributable cash
receipts after above distribution,
the fund should distribute 20%
of the cash receipts to general
partners and 80% of which
to senior limited partners and
subordinated limited partners,
in the ratio of 30% and 70%
respectively.

The Company holds 40% equity
interests in Zhuhai Henggin
Fund Management Company.
According to the Articles of
Association of Zhuhai Henggin
Fund Management Company, the
Company and other shareholders
share the control over Zhuhai
Hengqgin Fund Management
Company, therefore it is
recognised as a joint venture.
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(viii)

Zhuhai Henggin Fund is a
limited partnership company
established by Zhuhai Hengqgin
Fund Management Company
as the general partner. Zhuhai
Henggin Fund holds 100% equity
interests in Chonggin Shouyong
Real Estate Co., Ltd.(hereinafter
“Shouyong Real Estate”). The
Company holds 28.24% of the
intermediate units in Zhuhai
Henggin Fund. According to
the partnership agreement,
the Group jointly control the
investment and operational
strategy of Zhuhai Henggin
Fund and Shouyong Real
Estate with other shareholders,
therefore it is classified as a
joint venture. According to
the partnership agreement of
Zhuhai Henggin Fund, the fund
has an estimated duration of
five years. The fund derives
its revenue from the interest
income of the shareholder loans
provided by Zhuhai Henggqin
Fund to Shouyong Real Estate,
the profits of the real estate
development projects held by
Shouyong Real Estate, and
the proceeds from disposal of
equity interests in Shouyong

f. EOBIEERRER KR (2)
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(a)

BELXE(F

(viii)

KEEEES ALK
HEEASERESR
RARERLE®AE
BABERIINE
RABLE - -HKERE
EESREBEERE
XEBEBRAT (A
THRIEXEXE])
100% A& # - K 1 7]
BEKSEEAS
28.24% /) FR & A 17
BEoRIBEEBHE
AEBEE MR
HEEGKEEE
ESRBEKEEN
BTN RER -
W EEREE D
¥ - BEBEKEE
EESERHE
KEEEESHIE
HEFEBRAASF -
E &K= RR
REKEBEEES W
BKEBEERHAORK
RERFTELERNF
B AMEKE
¥FENEHEE
BHREESED
FEREZEEKE
ErRERE - K8
BEEESERRQA
ERRNITEBER
ABERTEL SE



HAERRHARAR ZF PR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 25 e 3 Wi ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(viii)

(Continued)

Real Estate. Zhuhai Henggin
Fund Management Company
has the right to determine the
distribution plan of Zhuhai
Henggin Fund as the executive
partner. At the accounting dates
and the settlement date of the
fund, the distribution order
is as follows: senior limited
partners and intermediate
limited partners can have 10%
expected fixed earnings; senior
limited partners enjoy distributing
initial investment and expected
earnings firstly, after which
distribute initial investment
and expected earnings to
intermediate limited partners and
subordinated limited partners;
then distribute initial investment
to general partners; finally, if
Zhuhai Henggin Fund has excess
distributable earnings after the
above distributions, the fund
should distribute the income
to the partners based on the
agreed portion of the partnership
agreement.

h. EOtBI KR IEB KR (2)

(10). RIRERE (&)
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(ix)

Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang
Fund is a limited partnership
established by Zhuhai Hengqgin
Fund Management Company
as general partner. Zhuhai
Hengqgin Zizhufang Fund holds
100% equity interests in Taihao
Shengyuan. The Company
holds 10% of the intermediate
units in Zhuhai Henggin Fund.
According to the partnership
agreement, the Group jointly
controls the investment and
operational strategy of Zhuhai
Hengqgin Zizhufang Fund and
Taihao Shengyuan with other
shareholders, thus it has been
classified as joint venture.
According to the partnership
agreement of Zhuhai Henggin
Zizhufang Fund, the fund has an
estimated duration of five years.
The fund derives its revenue
from the interest income of the
shareholder loans provided by
Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang Fund
to Taihao Shengyuan, the profits
of the real estate development
projects held by Taihao
Shengyuan, and the proceeds
from disposal of equity interests
in Taihao Shengyuan. Zhuhai
Henggin Fund Management
Company has the right to
determine the distribution plan
of Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang
Fund as the executive partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(a)

Joint ventures (Continued)

(ix)

(Continued)

At the accounting dates and the
settlement date of the fund, the
distribution order is as follows:
priority limited partners can
have 10.04% expected fixed
earnings; intermediate limited
partners can have 10% expected
fixed earnings; priority limited
partners enjoy distributing
initial investment and expected
earnings firstly, after which
distribute initial investment
and expected earnings to
intermediate limited partners,
and distribute initial investment
to subordinated limited partners;
then distribute initial investment
to general partners; finally, if
Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang Fund
has excess distributable earnings
after the above distributions, the
fund should distribute the excess
earnings to the partners based
on the agreed portion of the
partnership agreement.

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

(10). RIRERE (&)
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

f.

(10). RIRERE (&)

SOtBT R E B M (2)

(Continued)
(@) Joint ventures (Continued) (a) BELE(E)
The main financial information of the AEBBEESLERENE
significant Joint ventures of the Group is EMBERINTRET
as follows:
Kunshan Zhuhai Zhuhai Hengqin
Shenyang Jitian Capital Jiaming Chuangbo Fund Henggin Fund Zizhufang Fund
EREX EEEH BUABES KERZES KERZALEES
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“F =% “R-ZF “I-cF it 3 —F-=F
ce-mE tof -®-mE f-f ce-mE ToR ZB-RmE toA CE-BEF A
ABZtR =t-H AAZtE  =t-H KA=tE =t-HE RKAZtH =t-H AAR=tR =t-H
Cash ERES 1,670 7504 282258 233506 542226 323343 174,761 286,008 57963  NAFR@EA
Other current assets EhiREEE 1,521,510 1,475,741 1,376,479 1,097,247 4,931,147 3,343,805 1,952,011 1,148,129 1545395 NATER
Current assets RBEEART 1,523,180 1,483,245 1,658,737 1,330,773 5473373 3,667,148 2,126,172 1434137 1603358  NATEA
Non-current assets FRBEEA 9,254 9,201 4,759 4,809 2,620 464 31N 6,067 170 NAPER
Accounts payable 24,708 23,673 - - 242,054 169,043 92,656 60,446 - NATEE
Other financial liabilities Bt - - - - 397,000 - - - - NATER
Other liabilities EthBfE 1,245,576 1,206,159 179,274 80,245 2,817,641 1,914,505 935,033 271,363 793999  NAPER
Current liabilities RBAEAS 1,210,284 1,229,832 179,274 80,245 3,456,695 2,083,548 1,027,689 337,809 793999 NATiEA
Financial liabilities SRER - - 1,000,000 769,443 1,123,029 643,100 297,000 300,000 - NATER
Non-current liabilities FRBEEAH - - 1,000,000 769,443 1,123,029 643,100 297,000 300,000 - NATER
Net assets FEE 262,150 262,614 484,222 485,894 896,269 940,964 805,254 802,395 809,529  NAZRER
Total equity attributable to ~~ SER BRI
shareholders (¥ 262,150 262,614 484,222 485,894 896,269 940,964 805,254 802,395 809,529  N/A TiEA
Adjustment by the fair value of #RER{F & &ES
the identifiable net assets at ~ AELET A
acquisition date FEERAEE
ETAE - - - - - - - - - NATER
Adjusted total equity BEEEBRELRAN
attributable to shareholders R R 262,150 262,614 484,222 485,894 896,269 940,964 805,254 802,395 809529 NAPER
Interest in joint ventures REBRHRIL G 50% 50% 35% 35% 16.40% 16.40% 28.24% 28.24% 10% NATEA
Fquity attributable tothe A% AFAZHH
shareholder a0k 50% 50% 35% 35% 16.40% 16.40% 28.24% 28.24% 10% NATER
Goodwill included in long-term AEE@M&
equity investments REPHEE - - - - - - - - - NATER
Offset unrealised internal FERR
transaction profits HEH (1,710) (1,710) (1,662) (1,662) 6,268 6,268 4,082 4,082 - NATER
Provision for impairment REEE - - - - - - - - - NATER
Long-term equity investments & ER & 129,365 129,597 167,816 168,401 153,256 160,586 231,486 230,678 80953  NATER
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BE-F—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

94758 =+ B 1L 18 A B (B A5 B B8] & BB s A BB FT)

L. O BRREBEME &)

(10). RIRERE (&)

(Continued)
(a) Joint ventures (Continued) (a) BELEE)
Kunshan Zhuhai Zhuhai Hengqin
Shenyang Jitian Capital Jiaming Chuangbo Fund Henggin Fund Zizhufang Fund
EREX EEEH BUABES KERZES KERZALEES
Sixmonths ~ Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths  Sixmonths ~ Sixmonths  Six months ~ Sixmonths  Six months  Six months
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
B2 BE BE RS BE BE BZ #z
—2-p% —3-mE Z3-pF “T--f Z®-QNf =F —®-RE % =%
AAZTHLE AAZTHLE 7 &t RA=tAL 7 HIE RA=+AL & ABETHLE RAZTRLE
~MERHE ~EREE AEABE  AEAEE  SEABE AEAHE AMIREE  SEASE
Revenue WA 5,284 (1,703) - - - - - NATER
Depreciation and Amortization HTEEREEHER (105) (120) (52) - (30) @) (9) NATER
Interest income LN 8 - 468 - 390 1,539 54 NATER
Interest expense ) 5 - 181 (4,648) (1,935) - NATEE
Total (Losses)/Profit (615) (1,559) (1,672) (5,756) (50,036) (16,163) 3848  NATER
Income Taxes 152 386 - = 5340 4,049 (988) NATEA 160 NAPER
Net (Losses)/Profit 3 (5R)/H8 (463) (1,173) (1,672) (5,756) (44,696) (12,114) 2860 NAFER (472) NATER
Other comprehensive income £ {1454 W - - - - - - - NATER - NATER
Total comprehensive
(loss)/income (463) (1173) (1,672) (5,756) (44,696) (12,114) 2860  NAZTEA @72)  NATEA
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(b) Associates

Investments in Associates are as follows:

L. 6 EBRREBEME 2

(10). RERERE (&)

(b) HErERZ

HRELRORMBRER

&

Changes in this Period

AEmERRE
Share of Impairment
Increase or other Cash Other Equity Voing ~ Provision  provided
Accounting Investment 31 December  decrease in Share of  comprehensive: dividend equity 30June interest rights for in current
Method costs 2013 investment net profit income declared  movement 2014 held%  held% impairment period
Z§-zf EE
128 ) E] LE] i g% £ -3-mE R firE RE  AEiHE
B8R REAK =t-B HORE FHR EELE AKHR BE2®  AAZ1R (1] 1] e REEE
% %
Beiing GoldenNet Property Investment Adviser Equity method RMBARHE 6,949 = (33) = = = 6916 4 14 - -
(“GoldenNet”) i 700,000
Ef BEE
#41)0
Beijing Sunshine city Commercial Investment Equity method RMBARH 155,120 = 5110 = - - 160,230 3% 35 - -
Co. Ltd. ("Sunshine City") 25,267,000
571 3 BaE
Shenyang Capital Real Estate Co, Ltd. Equity method USDET 20780 - 18314 - - - 249,094 30 30 - -
("Shenyang Xinzi") 27,750,000
2RAs N o0
(AT@
Tianjin Xinging Real Estate Co, Ltd. Equity method USDET 260,616 - 960 - - - 261,576 40 40 - -
(“Tianjin Xinging") 38,000,000
REEHFEERERAA Bik
(WTRIR2E])
Tianjin Xinming Equity method USDET 270520 - 1,808 - - - m38 4 L] - -
R ek 38,000,000
Beijing Financial Street International Hotel Co, Ltd  Equity method USDETT = = = = = = = 60 B = =
3,384,000
BiE
Xi'an Xinkai Equity method USDET 592,065 - 70948 - (153,600) - 509,413 40 40 - -
BRHR 20 66,000,000
Beijing outlets Chuangin business management  Equity method RMBAR % 602 - - - - - 602 3 3 - -
Co, Ltd (*Outlets Ch 3,800,000
REFEERERAA #ak
(TR 280
Capital Qinglv Culture Tourism (Kunshan) Co., Ltd.  Equity method RMBAR & 17917 - (1,131) - - - 16,786 49 9 - -
(“Capital Qinglv Culture”) Eat 4900,000
EIEEE (RIL)ARAR
(WTRIEdEHRL])
Speed Plus Investments Limited Equity method USDET = = = = = = = 3 37 - -
("Speed Pus”) (i) o0 3
King Future Limited (*King Future") () Equity method USDET - - - - - - - 4 4 - -
ek 4
1,534,569 = 95,976 = (153,600) = 1476945 = =
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h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group has significant
influence on the board of the
directors, which is responsible
for determining the financial
policies in the ordinary course of
business, therefore this company
is classified as an associate.

According to the Articles of
Association, the Group holds
59.5% equity interests in
Financial Street both directly and
in-directly and enjoys 34% profit
of Financial Street. The Group
has few seats in the board of
directors, which is responsible
for the financial decision in the
ordinary course of business,
and therefore this company is
classified as an associate.

The net assets of Financial Street
are negative due to continuous
losses in the past years. As
the Group does not have the
obligation to bear the additional
losses beyond the share that the
Group should have assumed, the
Group recognise the carrying
value of the long-term equity
investment at zero other than
negative. For the six months
ended 30 June 2014, the un-
recognised investment loss
amounted to RMB8,966,000 (for
the six months ended 30 June
2013: RMB7,728,000). As at
30 June 2014, the accumulated
investment losses that are
not recognised amounted to
RMB51,119,000 (31 December
2013: RMB42,153,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The net assets of Speed Plus
are negative due to continuous
losses in the past years. As
the Group does not have the
obligation to bear the additional
losses beyond the share that the
Group should have assumed, the
Group recognise the carrying
value of the long-term equity
investment at zero other than
negative. For the six months
ended 30 June 2014, the un-
recognised investment loss
amounted to RMB39,000 (for
the six months ended 30 June
2013: nil). As at 30 June 2014,
the accumulated investment
losses that are not recognised
amounted to RMB39,000 (31
December 2013: nil).

The net assets of King Future
are negative due to continuous
losses in the past years. As
the Group does not have the
obligation to bear the additional
losses beyond the share that the
Group should have assumed, the
Group recognise the carrying
value of the long-term equity
investment at zero other than
negative. For the six months
ended 30 June 2014, the un-
recognised investment loss
amounted to RMB1,584,000 (for
the six months ended 30 June
2013: nil). As at 30 June 2014,
the accumulated investment
losses that are not recognised
amounted to RMB2,032,000 (31
December 2013: RMB448,000).

f. EOBIEERRER KR (2)

(10). REAIRERE (&)
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(iii)
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f. GO B®RIEAEME 2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(10). RIRERE (&)

(Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued) (b) Wizt (42
. . . o \
Investments in associates are as follows: AEEEEMELENE
Esa) =~ — .
ZWEEBINRLT
Yangguangyuan Shenyang Xinzi Tianjin Xinging Tianjin Xinming Xi'an Xinkai
B BRI RRHE REHH BRHR
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“F-=F —ER-ZF T T-= “E-=F
—2-p% T=f Z%-B% T-A —%-RB% T2f —%-RmE —2-p% t=A
~A=TA =f-8 AB=ZtH =t-8 #RA=tB =t-HE RXA=tA ~A=TA =t+-A
Cash 14,560 6,658 42,447 52,205 34,066 20,537 117,340 88,028 270,553 471,119
Other current assets 384,449 380,593 1,432,544 1,774,131 821,735 957,422 919,747 1,025,873 3,010,943 3,399,283
Current assets THEEA 399,009 387,251 1,474,991 1,826,336 861,801 977,959 1,037,087 1,113,901 3,281,496 3,870,402
Non-current assets FRBEERH 819,950 803,340 193 301 3 6 1 1 270 340
Accounts payable R 15,047 15,047 225,515 166,441 29,439 106,283 81,265 104,850 291,256 235,176
Other financia liabliies AeRER - 4,000 - - 160,000 - - - 547,500 48,000
Other liabilities EtARE 30,419 20,168 130,080 599,344 16,857 218,451 169,081 169,684 1,144,218 1,717,014
Current liabilities FBEREAT 45,466 39,215 355,595 765,785 206,296 324,734 250,346 274,534 1,982,974 2,000,190
Financial liabilities SRER 714,107 706,589 279,000 279,000 - = 99,100 157,100 62,500 432,000
Non-current liablties FRBEER 714107 706589 279,000 279,000 - - 99,100 157,100 62500 432,000
Net assets FEE 459,386 444,787 840,589 181,852 655,508 653,231 687,642 682,268 1,236,292 1,438,552
Total equity attributable to
shareholders 459,386 444,787 840,589 781,852 655,508 653,231 687,642 682,268 1,236,292 1,438,552
Adjustment by the fair value
of the identifiable net assets
at acquisition date
Adjusted total equity BREZBRENAN
attributable to shareholders R 459,386 444,787 840,589 781,852 655,508 653,231 687,642 682,268 1,236,292 1,438,552
Interest in joint ventures REERRILH 35% 35% 30% 30% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40%
Equity attributable to AEEFZEN
the shareholder 35% 35% 30% 30% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40% 40%
Offset unrealised internal RRBRS
transaction profits iy (555) (655) (3,083) (3,776) (627) (676) (2,729 (2,387) 14,896 16,644
Provision for impairment - = - = - = - = - =
Long-term equity investments & &k iER & 160,230 155,120 249,094 230,780 261,576 260,616 272,328 270,520 509,413 592,065
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B E ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

L. 6 EBRREBEME 2

(10). RERERE (&)

(10). Long-term equity investments

(Continued)
(b)  Associates (Continued) (b) MELEZE)
Yangguangyuan Shenyang Xinzi Tianjin Xinging Tianjin Xinming Xian Xinkai
Bxi ERAE R2HE K25 EZHR
Six months ~ Sixmonths ~ Sixmonths ~ Sixmonths  Sixmonths ~ Sixmonths  Six months ~ Sixmonths  Six months ~ Six months
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended ended
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013 2013 2014 2014
#E HE BE #E S BE BE
ZE-pE Tz ZER-RE ZR-= “E-pE SIS CB-mE
AAZTALE AA=TBL ~A=tAL AA=ftHL ~A= 7 ABZTHLE RA=TAE RA=TAL
~ERNE  AEAME AEREE AEAME AEAEH AEAEE AEANE AEAER AEANE  SEARR
Revenue WA 25,808 24,264 536,523 24317 29321 331,503 118,607 144991 1,108,377 942,618
Depreciation and Amortization FTEEREEHER (7,935) (7.473) (108) (118) (2) (0] - - (70) (105)
Interest income HEMA - - 59 79 55 576 141 186 - 504
Interest expenses HMEER (19,390) (17,123) (1) 9) (1) (954) (34) (62) (123) (193)
Total (Losses)/Profit HE/ (B8) 28 20,237 10,395 78317 (3,489) 3,03 (16,491) 7,166 (9782 242,107 205,847

Income Taxes it (5,638) (5,023) (19,579) 80 (759) 4123 (1,791) (2,445) (60,368) (51,377)

Net (Losses)/Profit FHE/ (B8) 14,599 5372 58,738 (2,617) 2211 (12,368) 5375 (12,227) 181,739 154470

Other comprehensive income K ff5 & Wiz - = - - - - - _ _ _

Total comprehensive
(loss)income Gals/ (i) eg 14,599 5372 58,738 (2617) 2271 (12,368) 5375 (12221 181,739 154,470

(1). REMFEHE

(11). Investment Properties

148

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-—NF —E—=F
~A=+H +tZHA=+—H
Investment properties HAKARGTEH
measured at cost (a) 1% & 1% 5 2= (a) 971,044 524,791
Investment properties HKAARBEETEE
subsequently measured FFEMIRE M E HE(b)
at fair value model (b) 2,991,937 2,963,918
Less: Provision for impairment & - & & % = b ZE R B
loss of investment i)
properties - -
Total A&t 3,962,981 3,488,709
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BRI HS) 2 ELBARETFT)

S OtB R IE B MEE (2)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f.

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(11). Investment Properties (Continued)

(11). REMFEHE (&)

(a) Investment properties measured at (a) HARKIFENREUE
cost i E
Land use
Buildings Rights Total
EEREEY T ERE A%
Cost RE
31 December 2013 —T-=F
+-A=+—H 314,931 246,107 561,038
Additions in current period AHEE 448,815 - 448,815
30 June 2014 “T-QmFEASA=T1H 763,746 246,107 1,009,853
Accumulated Depreciation and 2 & - 4
Amortisation
31 December 2013 —T—=F
+-RB=+—8H - (36,247) (36,247)
Depreciation and Amortisation AN Hizti2
charged - (2,562) (2,562)
30 June 2014 “Z-MERA=TH - (38,809) (38,809)
Provision for impairment BEERE
31 December 2013 —T—=
+-R=+—H - - -
Increase in current period AHEM - - -
Decrease in current period AERE D = = =
30 June 2014 —T-MERRA=TH - - -
Net book value e
30 June 2014 —Z-MERA=TH 763,746 207,298 971,044
31 December 2013 =
+=A=+-8 314,931 209,860 524,791
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U REE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(11). Investment Properties (Continued)

(a) Investment properties measured at
cost (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, some of the
investment properties are still under
construction, its fair value can not be
reliably determined, but is expected
that after the completion the fair
value of the property can be measured
reliably, therefore the Group measured
these investment properties at cost
and has capitalised the amortisation of
the land use rights at the amount of
RMB2,562,000 (Six months ended on
30 June 2013: RMB4,319,000).

(b) Investment properties subsequently

h. SOt ERREE KW 2

(11). BEMEHE (&)

(a) HARFTFEHNREME

WE (&)

—E-IEXRNA=T
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AR #4,319,0007T) ©

(b) HRAQIABEETRER

measured at fair value model BENREMEME
Buildings and
Land use right
EEREEYMN
=+ i 55 F 4
Cost X 7S
31 December 2013 —E—=%+Z-"A=+—H 2,075,382
Additions in current period 7K HR ¥ hn 9,211
Disposals in current period NEA B B OB (3,443)
30 June 2014 —FE-MFEAA=1H 2,081,150
Changes in fair value ~REEE
31 December 2013 —E—=%+=-_A=+—H 888,536
Gains from changes in fair value BEZHER
(note 5(41)) (FIEF(41)) 22,913
Decrease in current period REARE R D (662)
30 June 2014 ZE—MmEARHA=1H 910,787
Carrying Amount FREEE
30 June 2014 —E—mFENA=1H 2,991,937
31 December 2013 —E—=%+Z-A=+—H 2,963,918
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f. EOEBREEHRIEEMEE (#)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(11). REMFEHE (&)

(11). Investment Properties (Continued)

(b)

Investment properties subsequently
measured at fair value model
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, certain investment
properties with carrying amount of
RMB1,456,193,000 (31 December
2013: RMB1,381,345,000) have been
pledged as security for long-term
borrowings of RMB600,000,000 (31
December 2013: RMB600,000,000)
(note 5(26)(b)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain investment
properties with carrying amount of
RMB819,184,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB769,030,000) have been pledged
as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB180,000,000 and is guaranteed
by the Company (31 December 2013:
RMB200,000,000) (note 5(26)(e)).

(b)

RAAREBEEETREST
ENREMFEHE (&)

RZE—NHFANA=T
H AEEEEEFHE
PEEREEEEAAREK
1,456,193,0007C ( = &
—=F+-_A=+—H:
A K #1,381,345,0007T )
EIHG RTINS REER
A K #600,000,0007T (=
T—=F+=-A=+—
H: AR#600,000,000
7T) (BsER26)(Db)) °

RZE—NHFANA=T
H AEBEERAEEAR
A R #819,184,0007T (=
T—=f+=-A=+—
H: AR#769,030,000
7T ) B 1 B E K IR AR
IRIT - WHAAQRIRMEE
R BBEPERARE
180,000,000 (=& —=
F+-_A=1+—H8: AR
#200,000,0007T ) (Fff 5%
F(26)e)) °
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B E ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5.

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . GO BMREBEME (2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(12). Fixed Assets (12). B EEE
Machinery
Motor Office and
Buildings Vehicles Equipment Equipment Total
FER
BEY ERTIA BORE BERE &t
Cost [RE
31 December 2013 =%
+-A=+—H 707,411 59,336 44,077 72,480 883,304
Increase in current period A H3E N 7,593 2,449 3,025 83 13,150
Decrease in current period KE R = (545) (182) = (727)
30 June 2014 —T-mE
~NA=1H 715,004 61,240 46,920 72,563 895,727
Accumulated Depreciation ZEME
31 December 2013 ZT-=F
+-A=+—8 (270,287 (39,729) (35,383) (34,270) (379,669)
Increase in current period RELE (11,785) (3,937) (3,243) (1,824) (20,789)
Decrease in current period KE R D> - 512 105 = 617
30 June 2014 —T-MmE
NA=tH (282,072) (43,154) (38,521) (36,094) (399,841)
Provision for impairment REERE
31 December 2013 —E—=F
+=A=+-H - - - - _
Increase in current period A HAIE N - - - - =
30 June 2014 —T-mE
~NA=TtH = = - _ _
Net Book Value FE
30 June 2014 —T-mE
NA=1H 432,932 18,086 8,399 36,469 495,886
31 December 2013 —T-=F
+-A=+—H 437,124 19,607 8,694 38,210 503,635
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BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BRI HS) 2 ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f. EOEBIREEHmRIEEMEE (#)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(12). Fixed Assets (Continued) (12). BIEEE (&)

As at 30 June 2014, certain buildings with a
net book value of RMB23,197,000(ocriginal
cost of RMB29,334,000) (31 December 2013:
nil) have been pledged as security for short-
term borrowings of RMB16,800,000 (31
December 2013: nil) (note 5(17)(b)).

As at 30 June 2014, certain buildings with a
net book value of RMB343,311,000 (original
cost of RMB601,431,000) (31 December
2013: net book value of RMB353,536,000
(original cost of RMB601,431,000)) have been
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB120,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB327,408,000) (note 5(26)(b)).

For the six months ended 30 June 2014,
depreciation expense charged in cost of
sales amounted to RMB10,225,000 and
in administrative expenses amounted
to RMB10,564,000 (for the six months
ended 30 June 2013: RMB10,869,000 and
RMB2,938,000).

R_E—WNFESA=+H"
15%/\&%23,197,00071(@
85 AR #29,334,0007T ) B =
ERgEm(—E—=F+=
A=Z+—H:E)EAARK
16,800,000t A2 BifE R (==&
—=Z®+-_A=+—H8:&) (H
FERO7)b)) KYE Y o

R_E—WNFEA=+H"
152%)\&73%343,311,00075(%
BEAEARM¥601,431,0007T)
NEEREEYW(ZZE—=
+-A=+—H:FEAARK
353,536,000 ([REA AR
601,431,0007C) ) tEAB AR
120,000,000t R HEAE K (=
E—=F4+-"A=+—"H: AR
#327,408,0007T) (M ZE F(26)
b)) B R4 o

@i*" /o & 75 A
/\1IH H R A&
EREAMNITEER
AE%o,zzs,oooEfu
10,564,00075(%@;%:73—
FXRA=ZTBIE/AEAHM:
AR #10,869,0007T 1 A B #&
2,938,0007T ) ©

I\IH%Eﬁ%Fr
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BE—F—FEN A=+ HIE A BE (B FFZ0 2 BB ARKTFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

5.

(13). Intangible Assets

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(13). B EE

31 December 30 June  Accumulative
Original cost Increase  Amortisation  Transfer out 2014 amortisation
—B-=f%

+=A —E-mE
RiadH =18 RER ES-E 5 P8 AA=tR  RBHE
Land use rights il 68,907 52,017 7,810 (761) - 59,066 (17,651)
Less: provision for impairment BV AEREER - - - - - -
Total At 68,907 52,017 7,810 (761) - 59,066 (17,651)

For the six months ended 30 June 2014, the
amortisation of intangible assets amounted
to RMB761,000 (for the six months ended 30
June 2013: RMB523,000); in which, amount
of RMB761,000 (for the six months ended 30
June 2013: RMB523,000) has been recognised
in profit and loss for the current period.

As at 30 June 2014, land use rights with a
carrying amount of RMB40,084,000 (original
cost of RMB52,283,000) (31 December
2013: net book value of RMB40,605,000
(original cost of RMB52,283,000)) have been
pledged as security for long-term borrowings
of RMB120,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB327,408,000) (note 5(26)(b)).

HEz_ZT—NWFEXA=Z1+HL
NERE BEEENEHES
A ARET61,0007T (B ZE =
E—=FNA=1+HIEEA
HAM 0 AR #523,000T) @ E &
ATAEHESNEEAARE
761,000 (BLE =T —=F
A=+HI/NEAHE: AR
523,0007T) °

W-_ZE—NEXA=Z+8 FE
A AR #40,084,0007T (R {E A
AR #52,283,0007T ) H) + #b {#
AE(ZE—=Ft+=-—A=+—
BH:%E A AR#40,605,0007T
(R{E A AR¥52,283,0007T) )
EA AR #120,000,0007T & Hf
BROERY(ZE—=F+=
A=+—H: AR¥327,408,000
70) (MIzEFR(26)(Db)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BRI HS) 2 ELBARETFT)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(13). Intangible Assets (Continued)

The land use rights by locations and the

(13).

BLEE (&)
T8 IR R TR S0 1B R 5 1R 5

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

approved land use periods are analysed as fram T :
follows:
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=F
AR=tH +ZA=1—H
In Mainland China — 7 A H B A 1)
10 to 50 years 10—504F 59,066 52,017

(14). Long-term receivables

(14). RIEEWK

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—Z-mfF — T =4
ANA=+EB +=-—A=+—8H
Receivables due from JrE Wi Bt i N B AE SRR
associates (note 7(5)(b)) (BFzE+E(5) (b)) 300,239 292,380
Advances to primary JE W — 4%+ 3 7 B EA N R
land development - 768,512
Subtotal /INET 300,239 1,060,892
Less: Long-term receivables B —FARB R R AR
due within one year & - (768,512)
Total A&t 300,239 292,380
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B E ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(Continued)
(15). Goodwiill (15). BHE
31 December 30 June
2013 Additions Redutions 2014
—E-=F
T=AH —E-mE
Er=1 ZRHR 2 AHEY R<A=TH
Goodwill- BE -
Juda International NG S 172,137 = = 172,137
Less: impairment o REERE = = - -
Net R 172,137 - - 172,137
(16). Provisions for impairment of assets (16). EEREXE®E
Reductions
KERED
31 December Through Through 30 June
2013 Additions reversal  realization 2014
—E-=f
+=A —E-mE
==f RERE [ HE XA=tH
Provisions for bad debts EREE
including: Hep:
accounts receivable EM R R R 7,000 = = = 7,000
other receivables HitEURFERER 41,791 - - - 41,791
Provisions for decline in value of inventories FEREER - 48,004 - = 48,004
Total &t 48,791 48,004 - - 96,795
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BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BRI HS) 2 ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED h. At BEBRREEKE @)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(17). Short-term borrowings (17). EHIBE R
30 June 31 December
Currency 2014 2013
—si—=
—E-F +=A
wiE XNA=+18 =+—H
Trust loans(a) EFEE R @) AR ERMB 996,000 996,000
Bank loans(b) RITE (D) AR ¥RMB 3,019,532 83,976
ZETUSD 292,851 294,939
78 JLHKD 6,350 -
Total &&r 4,314,733 1,374,915
(a) Trust loans (a) fE=EER
As at 30 June 2014, short-term R-ZZE—WENA=+
borrowings of RMB996,000,000 (31 H - EHERXRARE
December 2013: RMB996,000,000) are 996,000,0007T (_ =z — =
guaranteed by the Company. F+ZA=+—H: AR
#996,000,0007T ) & A A
NafEEEREAC
(b) Bank loans (b) |RITER
As at 30 June 2014, short-term RZZE—WERNA=+
borrowings denominated in RMB and A ﬁ ,Hﬂ BRFARK
HKD of RMB206,350,000 (31 December MAETERE /\ =
2013: RMB5,000,000) are credit loan of 206,350,000 (=& — =
the Group. F+_A=+— E )\E

#5,000,0007T) E B A&
BERESMERER-
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—

5.

BIE75 A =+ B LEN 1 A B (B A5 B B8] £ AR E L B A BB For)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(17). Short-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

Bank loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, short-term
borrowings of RMB and USD equivalent
to RMB110,832,000 (31 December
2013: RMB82,918.000) are guaranteed
by the Company.

As at 30 June 2014, short-term
borrowings of RMB23,200,000 (31
December 2013: nil) are secured by
security deposit of the subsidiary.

As at 30 June 2014, short-term
borrowings of RMB16,800,000 (31
December 2013: nil) are secured by
certain fixed assets of the Group (note
5(12)).

As at 30 June 2014, short-term
borrowings of RMB50,532,000 (31
December 2013: RMB38,976,000) are
secured by certain land use rights in
properties under development of the
Group (note 5(6)).

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(17). EHER (&)
(b) SBITHER(E)
RZE—WERNA=T+
H - EHERXRPARK
fﬂ%m%?ﬁ(éﬁr}\ﬁ’%

110,832,000 ( — & — =
F+-_A=+— E AR
#82,918,0007T ) ZHAR
AIREEREA

%zg—ﬂiﬁﬂ
E' ’ %_L
23,200,00075(_;
F+-—A=+—H:E)X
HARRZFRARREER
FoHEHREA

| OF

S

>
|FFD|||

R-_ZE—MNFENA =T
B EHERARK
16,800,000 (=& — =

%

o 7 A B A )
EREZEY (KERO02))
VIR 12 A

Eé —mENA=+

%4 HEIRARKE
50 532,000 (=& —=
F+-A=Z+—H: AR
#38,976,0007T ) R AE
B 3R AN e b 5P A
BIEREHREBA(MER
(6)) °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(17). Short-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

Bank loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, short-term
borrowings of RMB500,000,000 (31
December 2013: nil) are secured by
certain land use rights in properties
under development of the Group, and
the Company provide guarantees (note
5(6)).

As at 30 June 2014, short-term
borrowings of RMB900,000,000 (31
December 2013: nil) are secured by
certain land use rights in properties
under development and 100% equity
right of the subsidiary, and the
Company provide guarantees (note
5(6)).

As at 30 June 2014, short-term
borrowings of RMB and USD equivalent
to RMB1,511,019,000 (31 December
2013: RMB212,021,000) are secured by
certain bank deposit of the Group.

For the six months ended 30 June 2014,
the weighted average annual interest
rate of short-term borrowings is 8.2%
(for the six months ended 30 June
2013: 12.9%).

9758 =+ B 1L AR (B A5 B8] £ BB s A BB FT)

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

(17). HHERK (#)

(b)

RITER (&)

E@:EE—EE/‘TH =

CHBHERARK
500 000, 00071( T—=
F+-_A=+—H:E)X
AASERERATHL
5 FR #E 1E B I i AR
N AR EEREA (M
F(6)) °

ng—miﬁﬂ_+
CEHBHERARK
900 000, 00071( T—=
F+-_A=+—H:E)X
AR R ZF R A FEERK
N £ E AR AR
- ARNRFZFAF100%
AR AEE IR AN AR AR
EREAN (HEFRG)) -

R-_ZT—MENA=+
B -EHERPARE
METEBERAETARE
1,511,019,0007T ( = &
—=%+-_A=+—8:
AFR#212,021,0007T) &
AAEENRITERIES
HHREA

HE_ZT—NEA=1
B k75 1E A HfE - 52 HR A
%mm&%mi%%%
82% (HE_FT—=FX
A=+B81E/x18 A HH:
12.9% ) °
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(18). Accounts payable

The aging analysis of accounts payable is as

EOtB R IE B MR (2)

(18). B RRRX
BN ERBR A AR B B0 BRIk

follows: MranT:
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—F-NF —F—=%
ANB=+tH +ZA=+—H
Within 1 year —FE AR 2,417,426 2,471,665
Over 1 year —FE A F 1,004,678 1,331,731
Total =D 3,422,104 3,803,396

(19). Advances from customers

(19). R FRIE

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-EF —E—=4F
~NA=+H +=-—A=+—8H

Advances from sales of 218 B 78 & 7))
properties under development (i) 7,215,730 6,983,944
Hotel deposits B 5 B U R 15,960 17,909
Total AEr 7,231,690 7,001,853
(i) Advances from customers are amounts (i) HEIEBEEEREETES

received from customers for properties
sold, but as these properties have not
been transferred to the customers,
corresponding revenue was not

recognised.

REEF D B b 2 1A
BENREFN ERNIEAA
REARARMER K
BmEWA-
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BRI HS) 2 ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED I 6 BHRREE N (2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(20). Employee benefits payable (20). FE 1B T 37 M
31 December  Current period  Current period 30 June
2013 additions reductions 2014
—8-=% “E-MF

t=B=+-H ABEM AEED ABZTH

Wages and salaries, bonuses, 1% %% REARE

allowances and subsidies 95,738 120,794 (155,894) 60,638
Staff welfare BIRANE 126 997 (716) 407
Social security contributions HeRRE 3,962 19,656 (21,727) 1,891
Including: Medical insurance Hb:BRREE

premiums 946 5,279 (5,837) 388

Basic pensions ErgERR 2,264 11,975 (13,061) 1178

Annuity FRHE 335 875 (1,030) 180

Unemployment insurance SERRE 142 735 (802) 75

Work injury insurance TERRE 87 430 (458) 59

Maternity insurance LERRE 188 362 (539) 11

Housing funds FEAES 982 7,520 (8,306) 196
Labour union funds and TeEBHET

employee education funds HELE 7,460 1,447 (1,935) 6,972
Director's emoluments EEHe 28,486 5,575 (16,615) 17,446
Other £ 1,157 674 (1,430) 401
Total Rt 137,911 156,663 (206,623) 87,951

(21). Taxes payable (21). EXHE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—F-DmF —F—=%

ANA=+tH +=-A=+—8H

Enterprise income tax payable JERBFEFTSHE 436,145 594,130
Land appreciation tax payable JER T3 IR {E R 1,450,856 1,627,007
Business tax payable JERZ &M 74,299 252,582
Others HAh 76,383 45,317
Total A&r 2,037,683 2,519,036
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(Continued)
(22). Dividends payable (22). B R A
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—F-NF —T=%
AA=+H +-A=+—H
Reco Ziyang Pte Ltd. ZEEREBR AR
(“Reco Ziyang") (AT 78
¥ k5 1) 323,518 262,833
Capital Group EEIEY 142,825 -
Beijing Jiayuan Hongye Investment 1t RERAEKLE
and Management Co., Ltd. EEBERAF - 21,753
Beijing Zhongnan Xingye R mEERE
Investment Co., Ltd. B R A A 3,941 3,941
Dividend of senior = AKX BB 7B 5 IR A
perpetual securities 49,342 -
Dividend of Gain the wealth MEENEREE
specific capital management plan &t &/ A% F 165,000 -
Total &&h 684,626 288,527
(23). Other payables (23). Hb B
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—2-NF —T=%
~A=+H +=—A=+—H
Payables to associates FE B 2 2 A) [ R 2,541,517 2,085,570
Payables to joint ventures BT & & RRIERK 1,152,825 232,978
Collection of deeds and RWEZF REEES
maintenance funds on
behalf of government 146,314 144,557
Guarantee for tendering KIZRE S 50,830 46,475
Loans due to minority shareholders F 2 &l > &% R & (a)
of subsidiaries (a) 95,476 170,780
Deposits from customers BRI ® 92,001 77,734
Payables for daily operations FENT B8 & & RK 118,085 110,503
Advances of equity interests Ta Ui AR 4 82 2E 3K (b)
transfers (b) 20,000 470,000
Others HAh 199,208 244,869
Total B&F 4,416,256 3,583,466
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BRI HS) 2 ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(23). Other payables (Continued)

(a)

As at 30 June 2014, loans borrowed
from minority shareholders of
subsidiaries are loan provided by
Reco Ziyang to Chengdu Xinzi and
loan provided by China Infrastructure
Group Limited to Most Well Limited
(hereinafter “"Most Well”). Of
which, loan provided by Reco Ziyang
to Chengdu Xinzi amounted to
RMB56,714,000, which is interest
free, has no fixed maturity date and
is unsecured and unguaranteed; loan
provided by China Infrastructure Group
Limited to Most Well amounted to
RMB38,762,000, which is interest
free, has no fixed maturity date and is
unsecured and unguaranteed.

As at 30 June 2014, the balance is
the advances of the disposal of 10%
in Hainan Dalecheng’s equity interests
(note 5(7)(b)).

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

EI TR A y%{l&%%?ﬂ
&> R AR T & R F N
KRG T2 alMost Well
Limited ( A N #8 [ Most
Well DR BIEEZEEH
PR A BIE R o H A - BCEBER
BRI MEXRGERETS
AR ¥56,714,0007T * T
FTE  EEEENER &
ERELG I Most WellfA)
FEEEZEEFRARE
AR & AR ¥38,762,000
TL NEPE - EEEE K
PR EE(REG A

—E-WmFEARA=T
H ZREREESEA
iﬁ“&m%ﬂﬂ%ﬁ”&ﬁﬁ P #E
EER (PFER(7)(D)) °
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B E ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(Continued)
(24). Current portion of non-current (24). " FREHPWHERBER
liabilities
30 June 31 December
Currency 2014 2013
=
—E-NEF +=A
e AAZ=TH =+—H
Long-term borrowings due —FREIBAMKBER@ RMBARK
within one year(a) 3,453,357 4,300,857
USDZ=TT - 288,993
Corporate bonds due —FRIANENEHD) RMBARK
within one year(b) 999,355 2,147,586
Total Gl 4,452,712 6,737,436
(@)  Long-term borrowings due within one (@) AEBE-—FAIHLH K
year of the Group is disclosed in note BER2 AR 26) -
5(26).
(b)  Corporate bonds due within one year is by AEE-—FAIHHE
disclosed in note 5 (27)(a)(b). NEH2 RN ERQ7) )
(b) °
(25). Liabilities of disposal group (25). HEIDAFESENEEA
classified as held for sale FHEE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=%
AB=+H +ZA=+—H
Accounts payable J& 1~ BR 3R - 60,768
Taxes payable T &E - 20,470
Interest Payable &1~ T B - 1,734
Current portion of —FREIHH
non-current liabilities EmBEaE - 12,500
Long-term borrowings R EAfE 3K - 782,500
Total &EF - 877,972

In December 2013, the Group entered into an
equity transfer contract to dispose its entire
equity interests in Beijing Shangyi, the equity
transfer was completed in June 2014. As at
31 December 2013, the residuals liabilities of
Beijing Shangyi satisfied the definition of held-
for-sale liabilities, therefore is listed in balance
sheet separately.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BRI HS) 2 ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(26). Long-term borrowings

(26). REERK

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

30 June 31 December
Currency 2014 2013
—_F—=
—E-F +=A
wiE NA=+H =+—H
Secured loans: ERER Hed:
— Guaranteed (a) —{R7E(a) RMBA R #& 286,000 2,308,000
USDZE T - 106,707
— Mortgaged (b) — & (b) RMBA K # 3,575,657 3,150,657
USDZETT - 177,408
— Pledged (c) —E#(0) RMBA R # 210,000 210,000
— Trust (d) — =nE(d) RMB A K #& 2,740,000 2,750,000
— Guaranteed, —RT K (e)
mortgaged (e) RMB A R #% 4,507,500 2,578,100
— Guaranteed, —IRFE G HH(f)
pledged (f) RMBA R # 964,000 925,000
USDZE T - 258,753
— Guaranteed, —RETE R
mortgage, B #(g)
pledged (g) RMBA R # 810,000 864,538
— Debt investment —EREIREFTEI(h)
plan (h) RMB A K #& 2,000,000 2,000,000
Subtotal Nt 15,093,157 15,329,163
Less: Long-term - —FEARR R RS
borrowings due B HAp:
within one year
including:
Secured loans: EREK HA:
— Guaranteed (a) — R (a) RMBA R #& (116,000)  (2,308,000)
USDZETT - (106,707)
— Mortgaged (b) — & #(b) RMBA R # (1,335,357)  (1,212,957)
USDZE T - (177,408)
— Pledged (c) —E i (c) RMBA R # - -
— Trust (d) —{5&E(d) RMBA R # (620,000) (20,000)
— Guaranteed, —RE, K (e)
mortgaged (e) RMBA R # (1,052,000) (459,900)
— Guaranteed, —RE G
pledged (f) RMB A R # (180,000) (130,000)
USD3ETT - (4,878)
— Guaranteed, —REERS
mortgaged, & #(g)
pledged(g) RMB A R % (150,000) (170,000)
Subtotal INEE (3,453,357)  (4,589,850)
Net long-term borrowings %8 11,639,800 10,739,313
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, long-term borrowings
include:

(a)

Guaranteed loans

As at 30 June 2014, the guaranteed
loans of RMB and USD were equivalent
to RMB286,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB2,414,707,000). Of which,
RMB170,000,000 were guaranteed
by the Company. Interests are payable
every month and the principal is
due for repayment by installment
before April 2017. RMB116,000,000
were guaranteed by third parties for
subsidiaries. Interests are payable every
three months and the principal is due
for repayment by installment before
December 2014. Among the loans
above, as RMB116,000,000 should
be repaid before 30 June 2015, such
amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year.

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(26). RBIER (&)

R-ZE-—OFRA=1+RH K
AR B :

(a) HFEBEXK

R-ZE—MNFERNA =T
B AR®MZETH
REEBREFARKE
286,000,000T (=T —=

F+-A=Z+—H8: AR
#2.,414,707,0007T) < H
F - AR #170,000,000
TLRBAR AR EERE
AN FBE®RAS KEfE
M-_ZT—tFWART»
EE- AR#116,000,000
TLRBE = FiREERE
A FEBEELN Ae
ER—_ZE—WMF+ = AA
DHEE . FlERP A
E#116,000,0007T % fE
W-ZE—REA=1H
AIEE NEFB®E L
AIRAE—FAEHANRE
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

Mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2014, mortgaged loans
of RMB1,499,200,000 (31 December
2013:RMB1,452,200,000) were secured
by land use rights under development
of subsidiaries of the Group (note 5(6)).
Of which, the interests of principal of
RMB127,700,000 are payable every
three months, interests of principal
of RMB1,371,500,000 are payable
every month, and the principal is due
for repayment by installment before
October 2021. Among the loans above,
as RMB463,300,000 should be repaid
before 30 June 2015, such amount was
classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year.

As at 30 June 2014, mortgaged loans
of RMB543,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB135,000,000) were
secured by buildings in properties
held for sale of the Group (note 5(6)).
Of which, interests of principal of
RMB300,000,000 are payable every
three months, interests of principal
of RMB243,000,000 are payable
every month. The principal is due
for repayment by installment before
August 2016. Among the loans above,
as RMB18,600,000 should be repaid
before 30 June 2015, such amount was
classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year.

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

(26) & B f&' FR(

(b)

BEHRER

E/\:} V_EIE/\H JF

CHAEERAREK
1,499,200,00075(_7
—=%#+_-_A=+—8:
A E#1,452,200,0007T)
AUAAREEF KA F
B - Mo {5 R {E B 3
(FIsER(6)) AN HAp -
AR #127,700,0007T &
REZFENE ARK
1,371,500,0007C & X A
BEAME AEER_Z
——Ft+ Ao HHEE-
EFEHERF ARK
463,300,0007C AN & & A
—E—RFNNA=1+Hm
BE WEMBHRE LY
~AE—FANIBHNRBAE

/TJ\ °

m —UENRNA =T

%fi HERARK
543 000, 00075(:;—5
F+-A=Z+—H: AR
ei%%<135,ooo,0007*n>%%DA
rEERZEERTHNE
ERBZEMERKM (M
FhHE)) Hepr AR
300,000,000731%?%7%*?
8- AR#243,000,000
TERAESANE A&
ER—_ZE—XFENAAE
B-ELMERF AR
#18,600,0007T /& & fE Y
—E—RFNNA=1+HH
BEE WEMBHRE LI
~AE—FANIBHNRBAE
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BE—F—

5.

BIE75 A =+ B LEN 1 A B (B A5 B B8] £ AR E L B A BB For)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

Mortgaged loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, mortgaged loans
of RMB813,457,000 (31 December
2013: RMB813,457,000) were secured
by land use rights in properties
under development and the related
income rights of the Group (note
5(6)). Of which, interests of principal
of RMB663,457,000 are payable
every three months, and interests
of principal of RMB150,000,000 are
payable every month. The principal
is due for repayment by installment
before November 2015. Among the
loans above, RMB763,457,000 is due
for repayment on 30 June 2015, such
amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year.

As at 30 June 2014, mortgaged loans
of RMB600,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB600,000,000) were secured
by certain investment properties of the
Group (note5(11)). Interest is payable
every three months, and principal is due
for repayment by installment before
October 2021. Among the loans above,
as RMB60,000,000 is due for repayment
before 30 June 2015, such amount was
classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year.

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(26). REAfER (£&)
(b) EBER(E)
R-ZE—MNFERNA=T
H i | E TKAE%

813,457,000c (— & —=
F+-A=Z+—H: AR
#813,457,0007T ) & LA ZX
SEREXATHIHS
MmERAEREREME
FMEEE KT EERIKE
(M ERG)) c B A
R #663,457,0007T & &
MABEZRELAN AR
150,000,0007T f& 7% &9 F
BERAYH AeER =
T—RAF+— AfnEE
B-ELMERF AR
#763,457,0007C AN & JE
W_ZE—REA=1+H
BEE WEMBHRE LI
TAE—FANBBHNRBGE

TJ\ °

% —mEFERA
?fﬁ HE R A
(=

[ &+

R ¥
60000000075 T —
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BE—F—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Mortgaged loans (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, mortgaged loans
of RMB120,000,000 (31 December
2013:RMB327,408,000) were secured
by certain buildings (notes 5(12)) and
land use rights in intangible assets (note
5(13)) of the Group. The loan is due
for repayment by installment before
January 2018, and its interest is payable
every three months. Among the loans
above, as RMB30,000,000 is due for
repayment before 30 June 2015, such
amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year.

Pledged loans

As at 30 June 2014, bank borrowings
of RMB210,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB210,000,000) were secured
by bank deposits of the Group. The
interests are payable every three months
and principal is due for repayment by
installment before 2016.

9758 =+ B 1L AR (B A5 B8] £ BB s A BB FT)

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

(26). REIER (#)

(b)

(c)

BRER(E)

RZZ—MWENA=+
S[p ﬁﬁf?%ﬁAE%
120,000,0007T (:2’3—5
F+_A=+—H: AR
el‘%%<327,408,0007n>/%LA
AEELOIEEREE
¥ (M sE R (12)) A K& £
FEE (WER(3))H
B - b (5F AR REVE R 4R - R
BEREIN KXeERZ
T—N\F—HAanHE
BoELERF AR
#30,000,0007T 7~ & & Y
—E—RFNNA=1+Hm
EE WEMBHHRE LI
~AE—FANIBHNRBE

=+
e

BEHRER
R-ZZE—WESNA=T
S E%

B 1T B X
210,000,0007¢ ( =&
F+—_HA=+T—"H: AR
#210,000,0007T ) & i A
SENRTERRESE
BER FBERELM K
SN _Z— NFaHH
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(d)

Trust loans

As at 30 June 2014, trust loans of
RMB950,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB950,000,000) were
guaranteed by the Company. Of which,
RMB600,000,000 is due for repayment
in February 2015, with fixed interest
rate of 8.50% and interests payable
every three months, such amount was
classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year. RMB350,000,000 is
due for repayment by installment before
November 2015, with fixed interest rate
of 8.40% and interests payable every
three months.

As at 30 June 2014, trust loans of
RMB790,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB800,000,000) were guaranteed
by Capital Group and the Company.
Interest rate is fixed at 8.00%. And
interests are payable every three
months. The principal will be due
for repayment in December 2016.
Among the borrowings above, as
RMB20,000,000 is due for repayment
before 30 June 2015, such amount was
classified as long-term borrowings due
within one year.

As at 30 June 2014, trust loans of
RMB1,000,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB1,000,000,000) were
guaranteed by Capital Group. Interest
rate is fixed at 8.20%. And interests
are payable every three months. The
principal will be due for repayment in
28 March 2016.

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(26). REIfER (&)

@) EEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(e)

Guaranteed and mortgaged loans

As at 30 June 2014, the guaranteed
and mortgaged loans of the Group
amounted to RMB4,507,500,000 (31
December 2013: RMB2,578,100,000).
Of which, RMB2,390,400,000 (31
December 2013: RMB883,000,000) is
guaranteed by the Group and secured
by land use rights in properties under
development (note 5(6)) of the Group;
RMB457,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB500,000,000) is guaranteed by
the Company and secured by certain
residential properties in properties
under development (note 5(6)) of the
Group. RMB 180,000,000 (31 December
2013: RMB200,000,000) is guaranteed
by the Company and secured by certain
investment properties (note 5(11)) of
the Group; RMB1,015,100,000 (31
December 2013: RMB502,100,000)
is guaranteed by the Company and
secured by certain land use rights
and buildings in properties under
development (note 5(6)) of the Group;
RMB170,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB190,000,000) is guaranteed by
the subsidiaries and secured by certain
land use rights in properties under
development (note 5(6)) of the Group;
RMB295,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB303,000,000) is guaranteed by the
subsidiaries and secured by certain land

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

(26). REIER (#)

(e)

R - KT E R

R-ZE—MNERNA =T
B RNEBRE - MFER
A A R #4,507,500,0007T
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H: AR#¥2,578,100,000
JTT) o H A AR K
2,390,400,0007C ( = =
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GIEREFE/BA AR
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FR 7 &8 [ ) 25 Bk AR R Y BB
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BE—F—FEN A=+ HIE A BE (B FFZ0 2 BB ARKTFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(e) Guaranteed and mortgaged loans
(Continued)

use rights and residential properties in
properties under development (note
5(6)) of the Group. The borrowings
above should be repaid by installment
before July 2017. Among the loans
above, as RMB1,052,000,000 is due for
repayment before 30 June 2015, such
amount was classified as long-term
borrowings due within one year.

(e)

f. EOBI R IER KR (2)

(26). REAfER (£&)

R EPER (F)

—=F+=-A=+—8H:
A K #190,000,0007T) °
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h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(f)

Guaranteed and pledged loans

As at 30 June 2014, the guaranteed
and pledged loans of the Group were
amounted to RMB964,000,000 (31
December 2013: RMB1,183,753,000).
Of which, RMB80,000,000 (31
December 2013: RMB87,500,000)
was guaranteed by the Company,
RMB80,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB87,500,000) was guaranteed by
the rights and gains of primary land
development projects (note 5(6)).
Interests are payable every three months
and the principal is due for repayment
by installment before May 2017.
RMB660,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB750,000,000) is guaranteed by the
Company and secured by the equity
of subsidiary which acquired by the
Group. RMB 144,000,000 (31 December
2013: nil) is secured by the Company
and pledged by the bank deposits of
subsidiaries. Among loans above, as
RMB 180,000,000 is due for repayment
on before 30 June 2015, such amount
was classified as long-term borrowings
due within one year. Other principal is
due for repayment by installment before
May 2017.

(26). REIER (#)

(f)

R BFMER

R-ZE—MNERNA =T
B AN & B (R FE MG S
A AR #964,000,0007T
(ZE—=F+=-A=+—
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JTT) o H A AR K
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#87,500,0007T ) KA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(9)

Guaranteed, mortgaged and
pledged loans

As at 30 June 2014, the guaranteed,
mortgaged and pledged loans of the
Group amounted to RMB810,000,000
(31 December 2013: RMB864,538,000).
As at 30 June 2014, certain residential
properties in properties under
development with a carrying amount of
RMB430,003,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB228,965,000) (note 5(6)) and the
right to yield on certain projects have
been pledged as security for long-term
borrowings of RMB90,000,000 (31
December 2013: RMB170,000,000) and
guaranteed by the Company. Certain
land use rights in properties under
development with a carrying amount of
RMB694,249,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB868,871,000) (note 5(6)) and the
right to yield on certain projects have
been pledged as security for long-term
borrowings of RMB720,000,000 (31
December 2013: RMB694,538,000) and
guaranteed by the Company. Among
the loans above, as RMB150,000,000
is due for repayment before 30 June
2015, such amount was classified as
long-term borrowings due within one
year. Principal left is due for repayment
by installment before March 2017.

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(26). RHIER

(9)
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BE—F—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(26). Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(h)

Debt investment plan

As at 30 June 2014, the Group received
RMB2,000,000,000 through a debt
investment plan (31 December 2013:
RMB2,000,000,000). The loan was
guaranteed by Capital Group. Interests
are payable every three months and
the principal is due for repayment by
installment before December 2018.

For the Six months ended 30 June
2014, the weighted average annual
interest rate of long-term borrowings
is 7.4% (for the six months ended 30
June 2013: 8.1%).

(27). Debentures payable

9758 =+ B 1L AR (B A5 B8] £ BB s A BB FT)

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

(26). REIER (#)

(h)

EREREE

BN =Z & — M F X
=Z=t+tH KB E®
Btz feR A ARK
2,000,000,0007C (= =
—=%+-_A=+—H:
AR #¥2,000,000,000
JL) c FH BB S ERMEIE
R-MEZREZR RS
RZEBE—NFE+_AFIH
HA(E 8 -

\

M?%m

HE-_ZT—NEA=1
Bit/NEAHME REE
HEMEFHFERNE A
T74% (BE T — =X
A=+81E/]@A 8 :
8.1%) o

(27). B4 E%

Classified as
corporate
bonds
31 December due within 30 June
2013 Additions  Reductions one year 2014
“T—=F BEA-FRN
+=A IHn —E-NfF
=+—H AHIE M AR EfiE%s K~A=1A
Corporate Bonds NGIEEES 1,977,532 5,806 - - 1,983,338
Medium-term notes REHRE - 3210312 = - 3,210,312
Total AEf 1,977,532 3,216,118 - - 5,193,650
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(27). Debentures payable (Continued)

(a)

As at 10 August 2009, according to
the Document Number 764 (2009)
“Approval of corporate bond public
issuance by Beijing Capital Land Ltd.”
released by China Securities Regulatory
Commission, the Company was
authorised to publicly issue domestic
corporate bonds of no more than
RMB1,800,000,000.

As at 24 September 2009, the
Company issued RMB1,000,000,000
corporate bond, the proceeds net of
issuance costs is RMB986,000,000.
The bond carries a fixed interest rate
of 6.5%, which will be paid annually.
The maturity period of the bond is 5
years, the principal and the interest
of the last period is repayable on the
maturity date. Of the fund raised,
RMB200,000,000 was used to repay the
bank loan due to China Development
Bank. The remaining proceeds are used
for property development purpose. As
at 30 June, 2014, net corporate bonds
was RMB999,355,000. Principal of the
bonds shall be repaid on September 24,
2014, it is listed as debt due within one
year in the financial statements.

Capital Group provides unconditional
and irrevocable joint liability guarantees
for the bond over the period of issuance
and 180 days after the maturity date.

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(27). B &S (&)

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(27). Debentures payable (Continued)

(b)

As at 14 February 2011, the Group’s
wholly owned subsidiary BECL
issued corporate bonds amounted
to RMB1,150,000,000, and the
proceeds net of issuance costs were
RMB1,140,078,000. The bond carries a
fixed annual interest rate of 4.75% with
a maturity period of 3 years, and the
interest will be paid every six months.
The principle and the interests for the
last period will be fully repaid on the
maturity date. The bond was raised for
the investment of overseas property
companies and for general working
capital purpose of the Group. The
Company provided guarantees for the
repayment of both the principals and
interests. As at 14 February 2014, BECL
had repaid the principals and interests.

(b)

h. EOBIEERKRER KR (2)

(27). ENE% (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(27). Debentures payable (Continued)

(@}

As at 29 November 2012, Central
Plaza, a subsidiary of the Company
issued corporate bonds amounted to
RMB2,000,000,000. The Company
received proceeds amounted to
RMB1,966,065,000 net of issuance
costs, and RMB152,000,000 among
the proceeds are security deposits for
bond interests. The bond carries a fixed
annual interest rate of 7.6% with a
maturity period of 3 years, and the
interest will be paid every six months.
The principal and the interests for
the last period will be fully repayable
on the maturity date. IFC and some
subsidiaries provided guarantees and
the Company entered into a Keepwell
Deed for the bonds. Pursuant to the
Keepwell Deed, the Company will
undertake to make Central Plaza to
remain solvent and a going concern
at all times, to make each of Central
Plaza and IFC to have sufficient liquidity
to ensure timely payment by each of
Central Plaza and IFC of any amounts
payable in respect of the Bonds and the
Guarantee in accordance with the Terms
and Conditions of the Bonds and other
obligations under the Keepwell Deed.

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(27). ENEZ (#)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f. EOEBIREEHmRIEEMEE (#)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(27). Debentures payable (Continued) (27). BEE% (&)

(d)

As at 10 February, 2014, the Board of
Directors of the Company announced
the establishment of medium-
term notes and perpetual securities
program. Under the plan, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company,
Central Plaza may issue and offer to
professional and institutional investors
and issuers of securities, the principal
limit up to USD1,000,000,000 (or the
equivalent in other currencies currency
units). Securities will be issued in
different batches release date and
different terms. IFC and part of its
subsidiaries provided guarantees and
the Company entered into a keepwell
deed for the medium-term notes.
Pursuant to the keepwell deed, the
Company will undertake to cause
Central Plaza to remain solvent and
a going concern at all times, and
guarantee each of Central Plaza and IFC
have sufficient liquidity to ensure timely
repayment in respect of the bonds and
the guarantee in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the bonds and
other obligations under the keepwell
deed.

(d)
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(27). Debentures payable (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

As at 17 February 2014, Central Plaza
issued corporate bonds amounted to
RMB2,000,000,000. The Company
received proceeds amounted to
RMB1,965,012,000 net of issuance
costs. The bond carries a fixed
annual interest rate of 5.75% with a
maturity period of 3 years, and the
interest will be paid every six months.
The final payment of principal only
expires once accompanied with the
last interest. As at 17 February 2014,
Central Plaza issued corporate bonds
amounted to RMB250,000,000.
The Company received proceeds
amounted to RMB245,626,000 net
of issuance costs. The bond carries a
fixed annual interest rate of 6.875%
with a maturity period of 5 years,
and the interest will be paid every six
months. The final payment of principal
only expires once accompanied with
the last interest. As at 4 April 2014,
Central Plaza issued corporate bonds
amounted to RMB1,000,000,000. The
Company received proceeds amounted
to RMB995,180,000 net of issuance
costs. The bond carries a fixed annual
interest rate of 5.75% with a maturity
period of 3 years, and the interest will
be paid every six months. The final
repayment of principal only expires once
accompanied with the last interest.

f. EOBI R IER KR (2)

(27). B &S (&)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 5. OB BHRKREEME 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(28). Long-term payables (28). REFFEATRK
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=

~A=1+H +:E§+—H

CITIC Prudential Asset REEHEEER

Management Co., Ltd. BRAA (AT

("CITIC Prudential”) & [REEH]) 650,000 -
As at 30 June 2014, the long-term payables RZZE—NFASAA=1+H &K
of the Group is the principal of borrowings BRAASEENPEREHNE
due to the CITIC Prudential. The loan is a AR ERHERA3F  FHX
three-year loan with interest rate of 10% R10%  WIAREEFHE F LA
and pledged by 100% equity interests of 100% AR EVE R E H -

subsidiaries held by the Group.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(29). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax

f. EOBI R ER KR (2)

(29). EEFRBEHEEMAR

liabilities
(a) Deferred tax assets before (a) ARIEEWELZERSHE
offsetting 3
30 June 2014 31 December 2013
—E-MEXA=TH —2—=F+-fA=+—H
Deductible Deductible
Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax temporary
assets differences assets differences
B AEN iRAE A
FEHEE ERUZEE ETEE 2 ERMEER
Provision for asset BERBERS
impairment 22,079 88,316 10,078 40,314
Accrued salaries and BRIEK
other cost expenses Hinpk A& R 131,618 526,472 117,246 468,982
Accumulated losses ZEE#E 112,762 451,047 70,596 282,383
Internal unrealised EEAHBRERFE
profits elimination 127,160 508,640 165,019 660,077
Total G 393,619 1,574,475 362,939 1,451,756
Including: Hep:
Amount of reversal BATNER
within 1 year (81581
(including 1 year) okt 188,653 754,612 199,815 799,260
Amount of reversal AT ERER
beyond 1 year okt 204,966 819,863 163,124 652,496
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(29). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities (Continued)

(a)

Deferred tax assets before
offsetting (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, the Group has
not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB300,654,000 (31 December
2013: RMB222,711,000) in respect
of deductible losses amounting to
RMB1,202,614,000 (31 December
2013: RMB890,842,000), which will be
expired as follows:

h. EOBI R EE KR (2)

(29). EEFIEHEENERE (&)

(a) REHEENELZRSHE
E(#)

RZZE—NMNFANA=T
B ANEBERSTEIDES
B AR#1,202,614,0007C
(Z2—=F+=-A=+—
H: AR#890,842,000
JC ) FE R A B M IR IE PT 1S AR
& E AR¥300,654,00070
(Z2—=F+—-A=+—
H: AR#222,711,000
J0) o Ll e KA 1B 2 B

HBESMmIT :

30 June 31 December
2014 2013

—F-NF —F—=
XA=tR f=A=t-H
2014 —EF—UF 80,793 80,793
2015 —E—FF 55,147 55,147
2016 —E—RF 239,400 239,400
2017 —E—tF 257,604 257,604
2018 —E—N\F 257,898 257,898
2019 —E—NF 311,772 =
Total &5t 1,202,614 890,842
As at 30 June 2014, the Group has RZE—MHESA=T
not recognised deferred tax assets of H AEEREEERE

RMB2,119,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB2,119,000) in respect of deductible
asset impairment losses amounting to
RMB8,477,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB8,477,000).

o

B& AR¥S,477,0007T
(ZBE—=F+=_A=+—
H: AK#®8,477,0007T)
BREBENEEHMEHE
EAR2,119,0005T (=
E—=FF+=-HA=+—
H: AR®2,119,000
JT) e

Y
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B HFZ85) 2 e B ARKTFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

(Continued)

h. SO ERREE KW (&)

(29). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities (Continued)

(b)

(29). EEFIEGHEENERE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities before (b) REEE ENIELEFREHE
offsetting (Continued) & (%)
30 June 2014 31 December 2013
“EZ-MERAZTH “E-=f+=ZA=t+—H
Taxable Taxable
Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax temporary
liabilities differences liabilities differences
%13 FE 4 B i3 FEMT
FEHAaR ORHER MEHER B HER
Withholding income tax R INREAEH 15,681 62,724 12,118 127,889
Change in fair value AftHEERMEE
of available-for-sale AREBEEY
financial assets 8,106 32,424 14,575 58,301
Business combination  FER—1ZHIT
not under TERAH
common control 43,779 175,116 45,740 182,961
Changes in fair value of &t ABB&EMIRE
investment properties ~ FHEAREE
recognised in profitor %
loss 193,504 774,016 197,768 791,072
Capitalised interest BRMEF R 232,620 930,480 137,281 549,116
Changes in fair value of 5t ABARLTER
investment properties R & FHE
recognised in capital AREEZEY
surplus (note 5(10)) (FEEA(10)) 192,898 771,592 412,136 1,648,544
Total A&t 686,588 2,746,352 819,618 3,357,883
Including: Hep:
Amount of A ER
reversal within (81581
1 year ot
(including 1 year) 154,088 616,352 290,225 1,160,900
Amount of reversal B ERER
beyond 1 year i 532,500 2,130,000 529,393 2,196,983
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f. B EHRIEEMEE (#)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(29). EEFSHEENER (&

(29). Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities (Continued)

(c)  The net balances of deferred tax assets () EWEEMELEMEHEE
and liabilities after offsetting are as MRS AEFRET
follows: RIAR

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=%F
~A=tH +ZA=+—8H
Deferred tax assets, net BREFTSEIREE TR 325,343 323,273
Deferred tax liabilities, net  {EIEFTEH B & /F5E 618,312 779,952
(30). Share Capital (30). &
Number of Share
shares capital
% & % 7
(in thousand) (RMB’000)
(F8) (F)
Registered, issued and EEITRBRRA:
fully paid:
as at 30 June 2014 R-_ZE—WENA=1H 2,027,960 2,027,960
Registered, issued and BEITRHERA:
fully paid:
as at 31 December 2013 R-E—=4F
+=-—A=+—H 2,027,960 2,027,960
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U REE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(31). Capital surplus

h. SO ERREE KW (2

(31). EXRQE

31 December 30 June
2013 Additions Reductions 2014
2= “E-mEF
+-A=t+-8 A M A#EDS  A~AZtTH
Share premium(a) B (B (a) 796,278 54,776 - 851,054
Other capital surplus, including: EMEARTE  B1F:
Change in fair value of fRHESREE
available-for-sale DRBEZE
financial assets 43,728 - (19,408) 24,320
Increase in fair value on REERREEFEE
transfer from inventory to BRENAREEE
investment property(b) (b) 1,236,408 - (657,714) 578,694
Land Appreciation Tax BRARGMEE
compensated by promoter T ET 35,974 - - 35,974
Total CE 2,112,388 54,776 (677,122) 1,490,042
31 December 30 June
2012 Additions Reductions 2013
it 2 —T-=F
+-A=1+-8 A H 5 N x#RY»  SA=TH
Share premium AR (B 794,472 = = 794,472
Other capital surplus, including: EMEAATE  B1F:
Change in fair value of AfRHESREE
available-for-sale financial DRBEZE
assets 53,549 7,569 (18,406) 42,712
Increase in fair value due to REEBARENLR
transfer from inventory to WERREEEM
investment property 1,320,439 - - 1,320,439
Land Appreciation Tax BRARAMEE
compensated by promoter T ET 35,974 - - 35,974
Fair value appreciation of AHERMNRE
previously held interest in BHREEHD
a business combination AR EEEEDD
achieved in stages BHEED 21,975 = (16,040) 5,935
Total A&t 2,226,409 7,569 (34,446) 2,199,532
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(31). Capital surplus (Continued)

(a)

In June 2014, the Group sold all equity
interests of Bantex and 50% equity
interests of Tiancheng Yongyuan to
Reco Yanshan. The transaction led
to an increase in capital surplus of
RMB54,776,000 (note 4(4)).

In June 2014, investment properties
subsequently measured at fair value
of some subsidiaries of the Group
are transferred to inventories for
sale purpose. Since some of the
properties are sold, the assessed
increasing fair value recognised in
capital surplus are transferred to
profit or loss in this period, therefore
the amount that capital surplus
decreased for and transferred out
of other comprehensive income
amounting to RMB657,714,000.

(32). Surplus reserve

h. EOBI R EE KR (2)

(31). EXDE (&)

(a)

RZE—NFESA A&
MReco Yanshandt &
Bantex 100% Hy f% & - 5
[F] 5 #5 5 M50% I A9 X
WK TR RS — FEE-
KRR ZEIMT &HTE
WEPIPWERREBEAR
#54,776,0007T (Ff 3E M
(Fm) ) e
RZE—NFESNA AE
ERDFARREAAR
BEETERET=ZNRE
MEEHE RN N EE
AGTE HFBIWER
NERE ZBoWER
I ERT ABE AR RIEEL
DAEEEAZHERD #®
mMABRAEBERRER
Efuir & W B EeE H A
R #657,714,0007T °

(32). BZtA D&

31 December 30 June
2013 Additions Reductions 2014
—T-=F
T=A —E-mE
=1+—H AHRE AERD ~A=t+H
Statutory surplus reserve EERRDLES 341,768 - - 341,768
31 December 30 June
2012 Additions Reductions 2013
—E——F
+=A —E—=F
=1+—H AHRE AER D NA=TH
Statutory surplus reserve FETRBNES 341,768 = - 341,768
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A ABE (B FFZ5) 2 e B ARKTFT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(32).

(33).

Surplus reserve (Continued)

In accordance with the Company Law and
the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company should appropriate 10% of net
profit for the year to the statutory surplus
reserve, and the Company can cease
appropriation when the statutory surplus
reserve accumulated to more than 50% of
the registered capital. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to make up for the loss or
increase the paid in capital after approval from
the appropriate authorities. No surplus reserve
was appropriated for the six months ended 30
June 2014 (for the six months ended 30 June
2013: nil).

The Company appropriates for the
discretionary surplus reserve after the
shareholders’ meeting approves the proposal
from the Board of Directors. The discretionary
surplus reserve can be used to make up for
the loss or increase the paid in capital after
approval from the appropriate authorities. The
Company did not appropriate discretionary
surplus reserve for the six months ended 30
June 2014 (for the six months ended 30 June
2013: nil).

Undistributed profits

As at 30 June 2014, included in the
undistributed profits, RMB810,913,000 is
subsidiaries’ surplus reserve from subsidiaries
attributable to the Company (31 December
2013: RMB810,913,000). No undistributed
profit is appropriated by subsidiaries
attributable to the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2014 (for the six
months ended 30 June 2013: nil).

In accordance with the resolution at the
Annual General Meeting held on 17 April
2013, the Company declared a cash dividend
of RMBO0.16 per share to the shareholder
for the year of 2012, which amounted to
RMB324,474,000 based on the Company’s
total issued number of shares which is
2,027,960,000.

In accordance with the resolution at the
Annual General Meeting held on 14 March
2014, the Company declared a cash dividend
of RMBO0.22 per share to the shareholders
for the year 2013, which amounted to
RMB446,151,000 based on the Company’s
total issued number of shares which is
2,027,960,000.

fi. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(32).

(33).

BRRAR (&)

BIE (PEARZEMBEARE) -
$®ﬁ$ﬁ&%$@mm§w$

AR FEEFFEA10%1I2 B
&m%%@FA BEEEREA
e B2t EERRAAS50%
FE A TABIRR - AERGA

T& & &t fE 12 0] F 5 o 4 5 48
HEEMBEA-HE T —UF
NA=ZTHIENES /M KA
RAIRFIREAEEHBATE (HBE=
E—=FA=1+HBI/NEAARH
FEﬁWﬁ)"

RABMEB B AE S VIR
MEFLES GREASIE -
ETEEARKRLBELEHMERATBAR
568 478 LA B 4F /2 /&5 18 X4 PN AR
BE_T-NERNA=THLRX
8 A ME XABREFIREER
BoEE (BHE_Z—=FA
=tHIENEASRME: &) -

ﬁﬁﬂﬁ

=
@;@ |
w)
-
o
O

E*ﬂ%‘810,913,000
—TET-—MFERA

JJ:/\TIH HME - FARlE
EEJ%EA!QTE’W%N*?%
> (2= E/\H ‘|’
HIENE A EARE - £8) -

m%:zf:¢mﬂ+t5%
HREHRZF AAFRAEERRE
KE_ZT——_FHREERFN 5
& A REO0 6T LB ETH G
2,027,960,000/% 51 & - k2 I8 &
A& A 5T A R #324,474,0007T °

m+
;}ﬂm
=8

MRS DR ZD S

H\E—FVHIO

Al

BE-_Z—MNFEF=A
N m%4$@am
/)E % 7 — = i
Hx/\E’r*{XO 227C " HZE%TTHX@
2,027,960,000f% 51 & R 2 35 &
%ﬂﬁﬁAEMM&BLmWh
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BE=F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f. EOEBREEHRIEEMEE (#)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(34). Minority interest

Minority interest attributable to minority

(34). PERRES
SENSFATLEBREN D

shareholders of subsidiaries : PR R 2
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=F
~AB=tH +ZA=+—8H
Subsidiaries with significant FEBEZLHRFER
minority interests (note 4(2)), BT A Al
(MsEm (=) 3,751,035 2,815,728
Equity instruments including: T AHF:
Senior perpetual securities FRAIEITRBKE
issued by subsidiary (a) 75 7 (a) 2,333,945 2,380,950
Investments absorbed from EEEEEEIWER
specific capital & (b)
management plan (b) 2,010,000 2,010,000
Gains the wealth specific PEENEREE
capital management plan (c) a1 20(0) 1,335,000 —
Other HAh 369,429 314,066
Total A&t 9,799,409 7,520,744
(@)  As at 8 April 2013, the Group’s wholly (@ MZE—=FWANAB"

owned subsidiary Central Plaza issued
senior perpetual securities (hereinafter
the “Perpetual securities”) callable
in 2018, with a total amount of
UsD400,000,000.

The Company entered into a Keepwell
Deed for the perpetual securities,
and at the same time is obliged to
distribute dividends at an annual rate of
8.375% semiannually. The issuer of the
perpetual securities may elect to defer
distribution, and is not subject to any
restriction as to the number of times
distribution can be deferred. However,
if Central Plaza or the Company
announced the dividends, Central Plaza
may not defer distribution.

KEB &2 & F A alCentral
PlazaZ%77 A] 720184 f& [@
MR KBRS (LATHE
[XEEF]) BHEADHE
B+ +400,000,000% T °

KBRS RN ARME
WAL R RIT
AK B IR EFEB8.375%
BEFEHANER KB
& 4317 A Central Plaza®]
RIBELE D4 ATEED
AXBAZEMAEBEH 8B
I Central Plazask A" A &) =
HH AR F - ACentral
Plaza Mg IR IE D 4T ©
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B FFZ5) 2 BB ARKTFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

(Continued)

(34). Minority interest (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

Pursuant to the terms of perpetual
securities the Group has no contractual
obligation to repay its principal or to
pay any distribution. The Perpetual
securities do not meet the definition
as financial liabilities and should be
classified as equity instruments. The
investments are recognised as minority
interests and subsequent distribution
declared will be treated as profit
distribution to equity owners.

As at 28 February 2013, the Board of
directors proposed to declare dividend
to all shareholders on the meeting
of Board of directors. Based on the
terms about the capital securities,
Central Plaza could not defer the semi-
annual dividend of USD16,750,000 for
the half year ended 8 October 2013,
equivalented to RMB103,494,000.

As at 8 October 2013, the perpetual
securities, with an aggregate principal
amount of USD400,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,506,000,000) are recorded
as minority interests amounted at
RMB2,333,945,000 net of issuance
costs and the semi-annual distribution

proposed.

f. EOBI R ER KR (2)

(34). LEREESR (£)
@ (#&)

RBEZKEBERBFHBEITIR
RoARNEEA G EELE
BEAZHIINEMDIK
MEMEHER  HItZx
BERITAFaeBAERN
EE BESAKE TR
AIMGHEEETIARE &
AEEEHEMERRD
B RER FEFTIKA
B8 0 AL By B 4R 1 73 BT RUR
FEDEREE -

AREBEFER T —=
F-_A -+ N \BR=E
NE A E KRS K
oAb BT R AR E
A B L al &5k Central
Plaza T e iE =R IE — &
—=F+ A\ B ®KF
16,750,000 7t T & A
R #103,494,0007T ) 4
DHL -

1A N % 17
400,000,000 7¢ T & A
R #2,506,000,0007T &9 7k
BES MBRAEEAEE
TERAMER_ZT—=F
+ANBXARNEFSL
% ERIEBEED S
%8 5 AR %2,333,945,000
e
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f. EOEBIREHRIEEMEE (#)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(34). Minority interest (Continued) (34). PEBRERELR (&)

(b)

In December 2013, Minsheng Royal
Asset Management Co., Ltd (hereinafter
“Minsheng Royal”) established specific
capital management plan with the
scale amounted to RMB2,200,000,000.
Among the amount raised, except
for the secondary shares held by the
Company, Minsheng Royal held senior
units amounted to RMB1,760,000,000,
and Financial Street held secondary
units amounted to RMB250,000,000.
Since this capital management plan is a
Special Purpose Equity by the group for
financing, it should be consolidated in
the financial statement as an SPE.

The Group is obliged to pay yield to
investors after the specific capital
management plan established,
however, the Group may elect to defer
distribution, and is not subject to any
restriction as to the number of times
distribution can be deferred only if
the Company or assigned subsidiary
of the Group does not announce the
dividends.

According to the terms of this specific
capital management plan, the Group
has no contracted obligation to
pay the principal or interests, thus
the security match the definition of
equity instruments and should be
classified as equity investments. The
Group recognised minority interests
amounting to RMB2,010,000,000 at
the consolidation level. It may classified
as distribution if the Group announced
relative dividends. Subsequent
distribution declared will be treated as
profit distribution to shareholders.

(b)

RZZE—Z=ZF+=-A"R
EMBEEEE AT (M
THEIREMB]ERILE
HEEE ZEHEE
u#%”% ﬁﬁaj:tu+/\ﬁﬁg
2,200,000,0007T ° 3% & 18
EEFMEEESHE T K
KRABMERRRZEE D
BN ARAEMBIERE
AR EERERENE
A R #1,760,000,0007T
HemEnEIERSRRIK
BEREREMEAAR
ﬁi%zzso 000,0007T ° F R #Z
BEFERAEEFAF
%gﬁymm%%EMi
Hit - BB EIEIESR
%@E%M%%E%E%
MAEEDEE -

ZEBHEEEKLIER
AR E & T 1R B s Y
Bh BEAKEMEZE
FED B EERBAEAE
ﬁ@%’@%$@ﬂﬁ$
SEZHEEFRRIEIKAE
B8 3 AL B ER 51 ©

BEZEEEETE
B AEBEWEEEE
ERI/EELRS S
EFADIKHNEDNEDE
% IM&E%@&&
GREETHEMNESR EE
REEENBMNERS
KRE AEBEHEERRE
RIOBBRREZARK
2,010,000,0007C° H & &
mmﬁ”@MWWWEﬂ
ERFAED A EIE -

5

\

=
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B FFZ5) 2 BB ARKTFT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(34). Minority interest (Continued)

(@)

In June 2014, Minsheng Royal
established Gains the wealth specific
capital management plan with the
scale amounted to RMB1,500,000,000
and signed an Investment Agreement
with assigned subsidiary of the Group,
which stated that the amount would
be invested in the assigned subsidiary
of the Group in the form of entrust
loans with no fixed maturity date.
According to specific terms of the
Investment Agreement, the Group has
the obligation to pay yield to Gains the
wealth specific capital management
plan at the conventional annual rate,
however, the Group may elect to defer
the distribution with no times limits
only if the Company or the assigned
subsidiary of the Group does not
announce dividend.

According to the terms of Investment
Agreement, the Group has no
contracted obligation to pay the
principal or interests to other investors
under the Specific Assets Management
Plan, therefore the investment from
the specific capital management
plan complied with the definition of
equity instrument and was recognised
as minority interest of the Group in
the consolidated level. Subsequent
distribution declared will be treated as
profit distribution to shareholders.

As at 9 February 2014, the Group’s
Board of Directors proposed that the
Company distributes dividends to all
shareholders, therefore, according to
the terms of Investment Agreement, the
Group can not choose to defer annual
bonus amounted to RMB165,000,000.

Therefore, the Gains the wealth specific
capital management plan, with the
raised amount of RMB1,500,000,000
are recorded as minority interests
amounted at RMB1,335,000,000 net of
the annual distribution proposed.

h. SO ERREE KW (2

(34). PERREER (&)

(0 RZZFE-HFNA KL
MR IR A HIAE
Bt 2 M EENEIR
BEEESESBEAFTA
K #1,500,000,0007T * I
EAREEEFE F QAR
(BEWHZ)  HEZZHE
A2 [B] E & X R FEE K
M RERAEE
EF R RE GREDH
&) MBHEXOE A%
) Y 7 4% 40 7€ A =K [ B
EIENBIRE BT EI AT
Yoz mO#E A - B R S B A]
EBEREL DB EEREK
PEEMRG - EERRQ
AR ASEZEEF QA
BIRAARE D ALEFRR I o

RE CREHZ) WIAH
Rk 2N R B I B R
BARSH N ER[MD KA
EHAHEL FILZA
RENARE LANTE
- EAKES G E@E
RRLBERED FE
BIKAR B D ALE B AE R
HRRFE D BECH B IR

AEFBEEFER T —
F-ANBREZEAAQRM
B D BARF - At
RiE GEEHRE) A L
G REBTERER
iE A R #165,000,0007T HY
BEDH -

- ZEENEEE
BB EESBARKE
1,500,000,0007T ' 314 e
SR EESAIE  BER
VHBRREZSEAAR
#1,335,000,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 2 Wi

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(35). Revenue and cost of sales

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

h. EOBI R EE KR (2)

(35). BEUW AFNEERF A

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Bz HE
—ZE-NF —E—=F
~NA=1TH ~NA=1H
IER{E B HAA 1751 H HR
Revenue from main operations (a) & ¥ UK A(a) 4,418,566 4,883,644
Revenue from other operations (b) £ fth % # Uk A (b) 100,767 5,862
Total = 4,519,333 4,889,506
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Bz H=E
—ZE2-NF —F—=
ANAB=18H ~NA=+H
IEAREBHE 1E75{E A B
Cost of sales from FEEBKA(a)
main operations (a) 3,134,476 3,316,128
Cost of sales from
other operations (b) E th 2 75 5K AN (b) 90,209 571
Total =X 3,224,685 3,316,699
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U REE (B F ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(35). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue and cost of sales from main

h. SO ERREE KW (2

(35). ERMAMERKRA (7)
FTEEBRANTEES

(a)

operations

B AR

Six months ended

Six months ended

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
BE-Z-M#F HE-ZT-—=F%
NBZTHEREAHE NAZTRLEAEA S
Main Main Main Main
operating operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
E- E3- B e
E3 10N E 3288 EBHRA FHBRA
Sale of properties and ~ FEHIEHER
related consulting 18 s 3 Bl 7
services 4,337,215 3,092,808 4,837,077 3,268,916
Rental revenue from RERHAERA
Outlets 38,547 - - -
Hotel Services BEEE 42,804 41,668 46,567 47,212
Total Bt 4,418,566 3,134,476 4,883,644 3,316,128

Revenue and cost of sales from

other operations

(b) EHMEBWAMHEAMER

B AR

Six months ended

Six months ended

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
BE-2-M%F Hz-Z2—=F%
RAZTHLEREAHE ANAZTHE A EASE
Other Other Other Other
operating operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
Hitr Hit Hith Hith
E 10N E 3% EBWA EBHAR
Sales of investment REAUEHEHE
properties 4,788 3,443 - -
Sales of chemical EIEREE
products 89,576 86,627 - -
Other operations Hip %% 6,403 139 5,862 571
Total A 100,767 90,209 5,862 571
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(36). Tax and surcharges

(37).

h. O EEBRREBKE @)

(36). EXEF & R

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
B=E H=E
—E-MF —F—=
~A=+AH ANA=TH
IEAEAEE L NEA R
Business tax EEN 220,333 250,102
Land appreciation tax T M IEE T 58,613 141,138
Business tax surcharges SE APl 25,130 32,439
Total = 304,076 423,679
Expenses classified by nature (37). ERAEMESTE
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
B=E HZE
—E-NF —ET—=%F
AA=+A ~NA=TH
WXREAEE k75 EA B
Wages, social security TE& - #HIR K& AE A
and welfare 157,002 100,700
Administrative office expenses 1T A& 39,415 37,693
Tax ME 15,299 7,882
Depreciation and amortization 7 & B2 8 §4 23,277 18,193
Travel entertainment expenses = jiix 18 15 & 13,317 10,251
Intermediary service fee PN REE 47,970 16,166
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R AEEER 1,600 1,400
Marketing and commission fee 2 & & & A 175,312 116,136
Costs of properties sold SHERHMETE B KA 2,995,852 3,195,891
Operating costs in B3 [ £ 745 48 B &9
hotel operations GFEIHEKAN 41,668 47,212
Sales cost of chemical products {t I & $5 & 5k 2K 86,627 -
Others HAh 21,803 18,485
Total EEKN BEEAR
HEERAG 3,619,142 3,570,009
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(38). Financial (income)/expense - net

h. SO ERREE KW (2

(38). BA% (lLA) " BEREREE

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

Bz H=

—E-NF —F—=

ANA=+H NAZ=Z1H

IEREREE 1E751E A 2

Interest expenses MBS H 862,854 786,952
Including: Bank loans Hop: RITER 378,779 385,315
Trust loans BEFEE R 158,555 221,511
Corporate bonds UNGIL=¢~ 192,781 143,464

Other loans HibaE 132,739 36,662
Less: Amount capitalised i BRI B S (821,493) (519,692)
Interest expense-net MBI F5E 41,361 267,260
Interest income FEMA (174,331) (182,884)
Exchange gains or losses — net  [&E & 18z ' /F58 (700) 26,764
Others H 1,801 6,202
Net Pk (131,869) 117,342

Interest expenses are analysed by the

FB 32 IR ERAT & K M ELAf 15 5K

repayment terms of

borrowings as follows:

bank and other

MEEDIT

Six months ended

Six months ended

30 June 2014 30 June 2013
BE-2-nF BE-T-=¢
NAZTRHLEREASE NAZTHIEAEA S

Bank Other Bank other

borrowings  borrowings borrowings borrowings

RITER HitrfE & RITIEN H g 58
Wholly repayable within & —HERA

five years EREZRHIER 364,929 484,075 328,203 401,637
Not wholly repayable within & —HERA

five years ERFZEMEX 13,850 - 57,112 =

Total &t 378,779 484,075 385,315 401,637
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 5. OB BHRKREEME 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(39). Asset impairment (39). EEREERX
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
Bz HE
—ZE-NF —E—=F
NA=TH ~NA=1H
IER{E B HAA 1751 H HR
Impairment loss on decline in  FHEF &R EERE
the value of inventories 48,004 31,184
(40). Non-operating expenses (40). EEHMHZH
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE H=E
—EF-mEF —T—=F
NA=t+THLE NA=+HIE
@ B 5 & 7~ & A HA
Donations 1B HE S 155 200
Default fine (i) E ) 17,461 20,000
Others Hib 15,070 8,275
Total Bt 32,686 28,475

(i)

For six months ended 30 June 2014,
the default fine is the provision of the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
since the property ownership certificates
of the sold projects cannot be made in
time on the pre-sale contracts.

BE_T-HOFXRA=T
Bl -AEEZFRA
EEHBNFEEZ REK
BEE A RAE K& HE
MARNEDE -
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4.
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(41). (Losses)/gains on changes in fair

EOtB R IE B MR (2)

(41). DABEESRE (BX) K

value
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
B=E S
—E-—OF —E—=F
~NA=t+HLE NA=THIE
{8 B Hi [ S (=PRI
Derivatives PTAETAE (58,440) 5,320
Investment properties AR EBEETEE
subsequently measured at FENREMEE
fair value model (note 5(11)(b))  (FMIEEF(11)(b)) 22,913 194,119
Recycling of changes in fair value & I8 §% & [0] 8 &
when sales realised NAEBEEHER (39,969) -
Total A&t (75,496) 199,439
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(42). Investment income

(42). BEWH

SOtB R IEE MR (2)

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
B=E H=E
—E-NF —F—=
A~A=1+HI NAZ=ZF+HIE
~ME A B 7~ & A HARE
Share of net profit or loss of RREREAZAXDEN
investees under equity WIREBAFIBEN
method k| 89,691 48,306
Income from disposal of BEFARIRE NS
subsidiaries (note 4(3)) (FfsEm (=) ) 622,763 63,213
Income from disposal of joint RERE 5% RN
ventures and associates - 2,366
Income from disposal of HERHfEES R
available-for-sale BEWE
financial assets - 9,865
Dividend income from AtHESREE
available-for-sale A% FI H 2=
financial assets - 772
Losses of termination of IEIREEX
investment (9,364) -
Others HAh 253 17,270
Total CEl 703,343 141,792
(43). Income tax expenses (43). FIBHEH

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made as the Group has no assessable
profits in Hong Kong for the six months ended
30 June 2014 (for the six months ended 30

June 2013: nil).

AEER-_FT—MFEA=1H
A 8 AE (] B 78 SR & A - 0
AAREMNBRBMEHERS (BE
—E-=FXA=1THLREAR

Hif ) o
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5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

fi. SO ERREB KR (2)

(43). Income tax expenses (Continued)

PRC income tax is computed according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC. The
applicable PRC income tax rate is 25% (for the
six months ended 30 June 2013: 25%).

Withholding income tax should be charged
against income from taxable dividends of
non-resident enterprises in the Mainland and
investments disposal in mainland China with
the tax rate of 5%-10% according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

The amount of taxation charged to the

(43). FREHER (&)

PREMESHERESRIERE
BREBRTE BRATRAMEH
RAE5Y% (BRE-_ZE—=F,NA
=+HIEANEAHM:25%) -

REAEHIEE REERFBRESR
MEERRIER RB5%—
10% 5% 5 ¥ 18 750 P 1 LA % S
BRAGRBARNABAEN-

TRESFATAGHINBRZAE

consolidated income statement represents: MERESEE:

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE HE

—E-NF —T—=
~A=+HL NA=1THIE
~E A B 7~ [ A HA
Current income tax & HRS 209,840 249,219
Deferred income tax RIEFTISH 60,395 66,516
Total Bt 270,235 315,735
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED f. EOEBREEHRIEEMEE (#)
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(43). FREHRER (&)

#E R & O A R A R B AR B IR
RERRERFAENREH AR

(43). Income tax expenses (Continued)

The reconciliation from income tax calculated
based on the applicable tax rates and total

profit presented in the consolidated financial
statements to the income tax expenses is listed

PIEHEM

below:
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZ BHE
—E-NF —T—=F
ARA=+tHL NAZ=ZTHILE
<& B & & 7~ {E A HAfE
Total profit R 1 58 1,278,024 1,073,058
Income tax expenses REABE25%TEH
calculated at applicable P15 %5t
tax rates (25%) 319,506 268,265
Share of net profits or loss of RREDZEAZAXDEN
joint ventures and associates - WNEIDEE =K1
under equity method k-] (22,423) (12,076)
Profit not subject to tax FE P& A EH WA (175) (3.272)
Deductible temporary VAR [E R FER Y
difference unrecognised AENEREEZR
in previous periods (80,700) -
Bonus of special management B SAZE & A 71 2 &9
plan deductible before tax BEEEFEINLA (31,780) —
Tax losses for which no EHRBERIELEMEH
deferred income tax asset BEMEAERE
was recognised 77,943 44,593
Withholding income tax EHRIORBFRED
WEE 3,563 4,964
Expenses, costs and losses not NS IR HI K AN -
deductible for tax purposes BRAMEBR 566 9,880
Other Hity 3,735 3,381
Income tax expenses Fri5 i & A 270,235 315,735

201



BEIJING CAPITAL LAND LTD. INTERIM REPORT 2014

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202

St 75 i e Wi ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B E ) 2B EMBARETFT)

5. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(44). Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted

BR WK @

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

EXNGHRREARBENRERRE
BAAIR B A GFF MBS AR R

BIBATHE NG B AR I P

average number of shares outstanding during AT °
the period.
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
Bz BHZE
—E-NF —T—=
ARA=tHL NAZ=Z+HIE
NEAHE 7~ & A B fE
Profit attributable to HERERAREER
shareholders of the Company IR B & O F F B 661,130 562,161
Weighted average number of RRARBITEINE B
shares outstanding (thousands) A1 F9 & (Fi%) 2,027,960 2,027,960
Basic earnings per share EXRG R
(RMB cents per share) (ARBESEF] 33 28
Including: Hr:
— Basic earnings per share —RELEENR
relating to continuing ST
operations 33 28

Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic
earnings per share since the Company has no
dilutive potential shares during the period.

ARB A EERELEEL B

I - % S I

2 faray
=t
miES e

= B R AR & AR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FENA =+ HIEANEAABRE (BRI HS) 2 ELBARETFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED E. GOt EHRREEME 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(45). Other comprehensive income (45). HisREa W
Movement Impact of
31 December in current the income 30 June
2013 period tax  Reclassified 2014
“Z-=F
T-A —g-pE

=t—H N FERYE ENBEH  AR=TH

Other comprehensive income LA HBRI7E M 2

may be reclassified into RIE GRS
profit or loss thereafter ENBEBERNE
when specified iz & Hias
preconditions are met: BH:
— Changes in fair value —AfEHES
of available-for-sale HEEDA
financial assets EER 43,728 (25,877) 6,469 - 24,320
— Recycling of changes in — R A
fair value of previously Hkre e
investment properties REURHE
recognised in other RABER
comprehensive g HEn
income (note 5(31)(b)) (MR
(31)(b)) 1,236,408 - - (657,714) 578,694
- Difference on translation ~ —/MNEFRITE
of foreign currency R
financial statements 6,053 737 - = 6,790
Total Ch 1,286,189 (25,140) 6,469 (657,714) 609,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.

204

f. EOBIEERRER KR (2)

(Continued)
(45). Other comprehensive income (45). HfvsRa WS (£)
(Continued)
Movement Impact of
31 December incurrent  the income 30 June
2012 period tax  Reclassified 2013
—T_f =%
+-A ~H
=+—H AHE MEhivg ZEHEEd =tH
Other comprehensive DA% SRR 7Em R
income may be MIE RIS &
reclassified into profit ENEEEEN
or loss thereafter when Hinkra s
specified preconditions R
are met;
- Changes in fair value of ~ — Al HES
available-for-sale BMEEAR
financial assets EEEZH 53,549 (4,584) 1,146 (7,399) 42,712
— Changes in fair value -AESEA
on transfer from REUE
inventories WERR
to investment BEE
properties 1,320,439 - - - 1,320,439
- Difference on translation ~—/MERKITE
of foreign currency =&
financial statements (1,615) 31,110 - - 29,495
Total =i 1,372,373 26,526 1,146 (7,399) 1,392,646
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FNA=1HIENEFBE (BREFFHS)  # B E U BAREFT)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED . EOHUBHBEREBME 2
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)
(46). Notes to consolidated cash flow (46). B REXRM T
statements
(a) Reconciliation from net profit to () BEFNBADHKETH
cash flows from operating activities iﬁ.é/mz
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
Bz HE
—E-mF —T—=%F
~A=1+HI ANA=THILE
~E A HE AN EPER-E
Net profit EAE 1,007,789 757,323
Add: Provisions for asset  J7: & E REEX
impairment (note (FFFEF(39))
5(39)) \ N 48,004 31,184
Depreciation of fixed BEEENE
assets (note 5(12)) (MsEH(12)) 20,789 17,175
Amortisation of EmEESH
intangible assets (MEERG13))
(note 5(13)) 761 523
Amortisation of REGFEEE Ay
long-term prepaid
expenses 1,727 495
Gains on disposal BEETE éf?/ﬂﬂ/
of fixed assets, BEEMEME
intangible assets BENRE
and other long-term
assets (1,345) (35)
Financial (income)/ B s (W A),/ B
expenses (95,156) 159,900
Investment income TE W
(note 5(42)) (PIFET(42) ) (703,343) (141,792)
Increase in deferred EIEPT1S T & B AN
tax assets y (2,231) (23,115)
Decrease in deferred BREMSHARRN
tax liabilities L 16,061 82,965
Increase in inventories FEHYE M (8,264,577) (1,334,605)
Gains/(losses) on AREBEEEHER
changes in fair value 35,527 (199,439)
Transfer out of assets DTEENPES G
value in a business BEEERMEA
combination BEREE L
achieved in stages (MEsEF(31))
through disposal of
relevant assets (note
5(31)) . \ - 16,040
Decrease/(increase) in SR FIH e HR L,
restricted cash (#=9n) 43,405 (73,717)
Increase in operating LM EWIER &Y
receivables #0 (1,426,418) (382,578)
Increase/(decrease) in RS ENTER /Y
operating payables #an, Cmd) 1,321,891 (569,947)
Net cash flows from REEHEENRS
operating activities MEFH (7,997,116) (1,659,623)
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5.

206

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

(46). Notes to consolidated cash flow

statements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

h. EOBIEERREB KR (2)

(46). REREBRMEE (&)

(b) HRESFEEBER
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE H=E
—E—mF — =&

RA=+tHALE  RA=TAHILE

NEAHE 1B A

Cash at end of the period IR& A HIR 58 9,493,940 7,304,868
Less: cash at beginning  J& - 3R & M EAVIsREE
of period (10,487,655) (8,076,268)
Net decrease in cash HEeFRm AR (993,715) (771,400)
Cash () #¥BE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E—-UF —_F—=
ANB=+H +=ZA=+—8H
Cash at bank and E¥Ee (MERA))
on hand (note 5(1)) 11,673,497 11,339,807
Non-current assets and WE D AFEFERN
assets of disposal JEMENE E K
group classified DRFAFEN
as held for sale INEEP R E E - 5,573
Less: restricted cash J8 52 B BR I /9 177 3R
at bank (note 5(1)) (BaEF()) (2,179,557) (857,725)
Cash at end of the period/ IR&H, FR%HHE
year 9,493,940 10,487,655
Disposal of subsidiaries d EEFAA

As at 30 June 2014, cash flow
information of acquisition and disposal
of subsidiaries are disclosed in note
4(3).

BE_ZT-HNFRA=T
B IE/SfE A BE - N E
REFARHEENRER
ERFR2AMEN (=) -
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BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The reportable segments of the Group are the
business units that provide different products or
service, or operate in different areas. Different
businesses or areas require different marketing
strategies, the Group, therefore, separately manages
the production and operation of each reportable
segment and valuates their operating results
respectively, in order to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to these segments and to
assess their performance.

The Group identified 6 reportable segments as
follows:

= Beijing region, which is mainly engaged in
the property development and sales in Beijing
region.

= Tianjin region, which is mainly engaged in
the property development and sales in Tianjin
region.

= Chengyu region, which is mainly engaged
in the property development and sales in
Chengyu region.

= Other regions, which are mainly engaged in
the property development and sales in other

regions, including Wuxi, Shenyang, Xi'an,
Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Hainan and so
on.

= Investment property division, which is
mainly engaged in the investment property
operations.

- Hotel operations, which are mainly engaged
in hotel business and providing corresponding
services.

Inter-segment transfers are measured by reference to
sales to third parties. Expenses indirectly attributable
to each segment are allocated to the segments based
on the proportion of each segment’s revenue.

AY

/\.

2 EIEE

AEBENHRE D BRRE R E DK
RIS RETRMEE LN EBFETT -
ﬁmﬂﬁiﬁIME E TS

At AREE D %ﬁi%ﬁ%@ﬁ%
“%%i?%%é@ D Rl R EE &
W%:MREﬁﬁMEﬁ%EﬂEﬁ%

AEBHEREDE PR A:
— bR AE @ FEEE R MEET
5 Hb EE A B BH B 7K

S B E

= K7 BEEREWEET
FHEREIHEXR

- B8 5> 26 0 B & 7E AR 80 Hb @ 1T
5 Hb EE A B BH B 7K

- Hipn & A EHEE i RETT
FHERZHERN 28R
REBUNES FS AR &
B LE T BRFRNE

b 7 3 5 R %

- BREMEHMED B AREME
TREMREMEESXR

- BIES R A EEE R RHE
18 & Al 755

DEEERERLSRAE =TT HEMK
ArERREE HERBRSHMNE
PR FRUR A LE Il 73 B 2 TR E 7T 9 BC
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B FFZ5) 2 BB ARKTFT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6.

(1.

Segment information for the six
months ended 30 June 2014 and 30
June 2014 are as follows:

Property development and sales

N, DEEE (&

(1.

BE—_ZT-NFEAXNA=TH
EAREABER -—Z2—NF
NA=ZTHIBER

EHERRHERR
Investment
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others properties Hotel  Unallocated Elimination Total
REM AR AHH
% X2 R At F4E BERE HEg i &t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

ARBTR  ARBFR  AR®TR

ARBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Revenue from HARHRA

external customers 1,079,148 948,235 1,343,608
Inter-segment revenue PEER - - -
Interest income 40,531 3422 961
Interest expenses (185,346) - (861)
Share of (loss)/profit of

associates and

joint ventures (5,656) 1,281 -
Asset impairment loss - - -
Depreciation and ]

amortisation 7,683 569 202
Total profit/loss) b ' 690,938 381,585 166,531
Income tax expenses (71,623) (95,721) (41,633)
Net profit{oss) (B%) 619,315 285,864 124,898
Total of non-current assets AE (TaEeR

(except deferred tax BERRFEREE)

assets and financial a8

assets) 50,646 2213 670
Total assets ’ 33,529,980 16,207,237 6,174,287
Total liabilities 24,667,656 13,007,661 3,572,159
Long-term equity

investments on HRERE

associates and

joint ventures 700,744 533,905 -
Increase/(decrease) to RERERANMEHE

non-current assets other  EVEE

than long-term equity /(B8

investments 16,212 702 (431)

977,415 38,547 42,804 89,576 - 4,519,333
1,321 - - - (11,321) -
4,789 11321 49 403,679 (290,421) 174331
(1,507) (575) (3,668) (139,825) 290421 (41,361)
88,957 5,109 - - - 89,691
(48,004) - - - - (48,004)
1,51 2,409 10,837 - - B
(71,319) 25,397 (5171) 112,511 (22,448) 1,278,024
532 (6,349) - (63,152) m (270,235)
(10,787) 19,048 (5.171) 49,359 (14,731) 1,007,789
14,198 3,962,981 400,331 615,655 2932 5,069,626
22,218,952 7,531,900 510713 52,683,780 (75,833421) 63,083,422
19,020,315 4,304,468 497,929 46,289,437 (66,376,722) 44,982,903
904,662 160,228 - - - 2,299,539
19,466 474,272 (39) 3,890 - 514,072

The Company and most of its principal
subsidiaries are located in China. For the six
months ended 30 June 2014, no revenue is
generated from a single significant customer
or foreign customers.

As at 30 June, 2014, the Group’s non-current
assets that are located in other countries
amount to RMB8,268,000.

RARREFEFRAZHMURN
FE-EIF=T—MESA=T
HIEREABfRE AEE&EKRE
EMmBERNZHEA  LAKRKE
BE-HEXPHIRZRA

—ET-MFEANA=1TH XEH
MAREMERNFERDEERA
K #8,268,0007T °
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BE-F—

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(2).

Segment information for six
months ended 30 June 2013 and 31
December 2013 are as follows:

AY

/\.

St 25 e 35 Wi ik

For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

9758 =+ B LN 18 AR (B A5 5 B8] & BB s A BB FT)

PEER (&)

(2).

BE

—E-=ZHXA=TH

IEREAMER=-F—=

F=

A=+—H2#EER

Segment information for six months () BE==Z—=F<A=1+
ended 30 June 2013: HiEXERHESHER
Property development and sales
BHERZHEES
Investment
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others  properties Hotel Unallocated  Elimination Total
REM ADE
R RiE B Hify FiE  BEEK MeR HBEEH At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Revenue from external HIZHHA
customers 1,014,852 285414 3,128,040 390,908 23,725 46,567 - - 4,889,506
Inter-segment revenue AEBERHHA - - - 2,280 - - - (2,280) -
Interest income FISHA 29,617 9,070 7,504 182,356 2,763 65 366,557 (415,048) 182,884
Interest expenses FISER (172,295) = (13,909) (9,291) (315) (12,514) (473,984) 415,048 (267,260)
Share of (loss)/profit of HBARAE
associates and
joint ventures (1,396) (8,774) - 56,596 1,880 - - - 48,306
Asset impairment losses - - - 31,184 - - - - 31,184
Depreciation and HEEBNEHE
amortisation (2,706) 217) (225) (1,342) = (10,801) (2,902) - (18,193)
Total profit/(loss) 7B/ (BR)e8 260,088 41,202 522,059 (28,020) 210,506 (15,096) (31,847) 114,166 1,073,058
Income tax expenses FERER (49,676) (10,296) (131,341) 2,583 (52,627) = (25,900) (48,478)  (315,735)
Net profit/(loss) FHE/ (B8) 210,412 30,906 390,718 (25,437) 157,879 (15,096) (57,747) 65,688 757,323

For the six

months ended 30 June

2013, no revenue is generated from a
single significant customer or foreign

customers.

As at 31

December,

2013, the

Group non-current assets that are
located in other countries amount to

RMB323,000.

HtEt-T—=FxA=+
B k7@ A HRE - A& E
ERAEMBBERHRZH K
ANURKREE-—FER
FRRZZWA -

—F=F+ZA=+—
B A& E 7 H i B R
MIERDEERARE
323,0007T °
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—

6.

BIE7X A =+ B L1 A B (B A5 B B8] £ AR E L B AR For)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7s.

(2).

Segment information for six

PEBER (&)

(2. BE=—F—=FXA=1H

months ended 30 June 2013 and EAREAHER=-F—=
31 December 2013 are as follows: +=ZA=+—HB2#MER
, o=
(Continued) (4&)
(b) Segment information as at 31 b) =E—=F+ZA=1+-—
December 2013: HaBEE
Property development and sales
EHEREHEER
Investment
Beijing Tianjin Chengyu Others  properties Hotel Unallocated ~ Elimination Total
REM AOE
kR P-4 B Hith BiE EEER HelE HHEEH At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARETR AR®Tn ARETR
Total non-current assets ~ JERBEE
(Excluding financial (TEsREE
assets Deferred ETFEHREE)
tax assets) 42,095 2,018 894 8,173 3,488,709 410,413 613,772 (13,745) 4,552,329
Total assets 29,548,925 14,893,787 6,606,762 16,793,777 2,473,673 535,957 49,561,959 (64,224,152) 56,190,688
Total abilities 19,242,822 11,599,352 4,029,533 13,280,237 2,012,763 518,796 42,588,535 (53,309,834) 39,962,204
Long-term equity o
investments in AERER
associates and EEHME ®E
joint ventures 624,798 531,138 - 972,741 155,120 - - - 2,283,797
Increase/(decrease) to RERERE U
non-current assets I HEMIERD
other than long-term BRESRNE/
equity investrents (A& 41,458 1,269 97 4,507 (2,177,803) (100) 10,847 ~(2119,725)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

+.

(1).

The parent company and
subsidiaries

The general information and other related

AEBLTERRAERS

(1). BQFEMTFLH

RAMERFRLAEBERR

information of the subsidiaries is set out in MIFEM o
note 4.
(a) General information of the parent (a) BLAEELREBER

company:

Place of registration

A it

Nature of business

ERHE

Capital Group Beijing, The PRC

Infrastructure, financial securities,
industrial technology, commercial
trade, tourist hotel, etc.

ELES:! PRI R EMRe emESs TERE
EEIC i

The Company’s ultimate controlling RARMNEKRES T RE

party is Capital Group. ISR
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE=F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

+. BBIERRERS &)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1). The parent company and (1). BRAFAMFAT (&)
subsidiaries (Continued)
(b) Registered capital and changes in (b) BARTMEARHES
registered capital of the parent
company:
Current Current
31 December period period 30 June
2013 additions decreases 2014
—E-=F —E-IE
+=A=+-H KEEM EHD ~A=TH
Capital Group BElSE 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
(c) The proportions of equity interests (0 BRARHAEATNERIL
and voting rights in the Company 15 0 = R HE L 51
held by the parent company:
As at 30 June 2014 As at 31 December 2013
“E-MEXA=TA —Z-—=F+-fA=t+-H
Direct Indirect Voting Direct Indirect Voting
interest held interest held rights  interest held interest held rights
EEER BEEE  RRERSH EEER MR RRELG
% % % % % %
Capital Group BalEm 32.01 - 32.01 15.34 16.67 32.01
(2). Information of joint ventures and (2. EELENBELERS

associates

The general information of joint ventures and
associates is set out in note 5(10).

BELEMBEERBTRAME
F(10) °
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BE—F—FENA=+HIE A BE (B FFZ5) 2 BB ARKTFT)

7.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3).

(4).

Information of other related parties

Name of
related entities

Relationship
with the Company

Capital Development
Sunshine

Comprehensive
Reco Ziyang

Recosia
Reco Yanshan

Yangguang Xinye

Xingtai Jicheng

Tianjin Xingtai
Jifeng Real Estate
Development
Co., Ltd.
("Xintai Jifeng”)

Shouyong
Real Estate

Beijing Seven Star
Real Estate
Development
Co., Ltd.
(“Seven Star”)

Qinhuangdao
Real Estate

Promoter
Promoter

Minority interests of
subsidiaries

Minority interests of
subsidiaries

Minority interests of
subsidiaries

Under significant
influence by the same
key management
personnel and in
substance constitute of
a related party
Subsidiary of joint
venture of the company
Subsidiary of joint
venture of the company

Subsidiary of joint
venture of the company
Subsidiary of joint
venture of the company

Subsidiary of associate
of the company

Related party transactions

The Board considers all transactions with
related parties are on normal commercial
terms, and prices of related party transactions
were agreed by the Group and its related

parties.

t. BBTERRE

(3).

(4).

X5 (&)

H{th BA B 5 18R
)ik
£#8 A%
EEllER AREHERA
Griae AREHERA
ke ARBZEE
NEHDERRE
Recosia ARRZEE
NEHDERRE
Reco Yanshan ARAIZEE
NEH D ERRE
BrEx NSRS
RA—EREEEAER
EYN- mﬁf%t
BB
BREK ARBZAERH
i0RR/NE]
REAZHE ARBZAERH
BXERAH i0RR/NE]
(AT H8
[ERFL])
BXKEF ARBZAERH
i0RR/NE]
LRETLE ARBZAERH
P 1 EE A i RR/NE]
BRAA
(AT
[BFtE])
ZEREX VNNl =N
iRR/NE]
BEXS

KAREESREFTA LG
MR SHEFEIES R FEKR
X 5T E R MR ANEE R

15 78 — BUREE ©
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related party transactions (Continued)

(a)

Providing consulting services

+.

BEETERARRERS (&)

(4). BEXRZ (&)
(a) REBARKE

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2014 2013

BZE HE

—E-NF —ET—=F

ARA=+tHL NAZ=Z+HIE

<18 B Hi [ 7~ A B fE

Tianjin Xinming R FEA 3,424 -
Tianjin Xinging REFS - -
Xi'an Xinkai 78 %2 ¥ 5 10,034 8,377
Shenyang Xinzi BSHE - 8,855
Xingtai Jicheng PR H K - 15,792
Total A&t 13,458 33,024
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(2= FE—FENA =1 H U RERE (B FE )N 2 BEMBARETFT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED t+. BEBRIBERERERS (2)
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued) (4). BEXR5Z (#)
(b) (Receive)/Provide funding (b) (kg REES
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
Bz HE
—E—WF —T—=F

AA=Zt+HLE RA=tHIE
NEAHE 7~ 1E A H

Capital Jiaming ER S 51,039 (79,202)
Financial Street & BAEIE - =
Tianjin Xinming REFTEH 31,260 25,750
Tianjin Xinging REFS 53,360 (129,450)
Xi'an Xinkai 78 22 57 B (616,425) (240,650)
Shenyang Xinzi &S E 58,356 121,350
Shenyang Jitian &S E KR 480,280 -
Seven Star HFtE 1,091 —
Xingtai Jifeng FREE (1,248,001) -
Golden Net MR (148) (3,374)
Huzhou Rongcheng BN E8 38 115,433 (57,000)
Beijing Wanzhu It REE - (164,097)
Tonghua Qiangyu RERT - 486
International School RER 5,000 589
Capital Qinglv Culture BBl T k3t 20,000 =
Shouyong Real Estate BKEHE 120,473 —
Chaoyang Investment HIFEE - 866
King Future King Future 35 =
Speed Plus Speed Plus 8,058 -
Reco Yanshan Reco Yanshan (39,725) -
Total &t (959,914) (524,732)
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BE=F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED t+. BEBRITBERRERS &)
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued) (4). BABXZ (&)
(c) Commission fee () HEFEELEH
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
5= HZE
—ZE-NF —E—=4F
A~A=+HL NA=1THIE
ANE B R 7~ 18 A B
GoldenNet EapcEe 30,028 44,468

AEEZALPHRA/LRE
B—-LIBEANEREER
2R E KRB E
AT ERE -

The Group entrust GoldenNet as
exclusive sales agent of certain projects.
The commission fee payable was
charged by certain percentage based on
property sales price.

(d) Interest income (d) AEEFHBABRSBENE
SEHABRA

Six months Six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2014 2013

BZE HZE

—E-0OF —E—=%F

ARA=+tHL NAZ=ZF+HILE

<18 B Hi [ 7~ & A B fE

Beijing Wanzhu I REE - 1,682

Financial Street & AR 7,859 11,144

Capital Jiaming EElEE - 3,320

Qinhuangdao Real Estate ZE285E % 10,268 =

Reco Yanshan Reco Yanshan 39,725 -

Total

57,852

16,146
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BE—F—

7.

BYE7X A =+ B L1 A B (BB B8] £ AR E L B A BB For)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

+. BBIERRERS &)

(4). Related party transactions (Continued) 4). BEBXS (&)
() Guarantees (e) HER&E
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
~A=+H +=ZA=+—8H
Capital Group for the BEIEERART]
Company 4,000,000 4,000,000
In 2009, the parent company Capital $ ﬂﬁ’]ﬂ GRS
Group, provided irrevocable guarantee RZZEZTNFRAQAE
for the corporate bond amounted fTE’J/\E”ﬁ%‘LOO0,000,000
to RMB1,000,000,000 issued by the TL A AR 7 52 4 T AT e
Company. The guarantee maturity date igﬁﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁu R
is March 2015. ERIHPER T —4F
=R
In 2013, the parent company Capital P/ N/NES R RS E/NIST =B - E- S
Group, provided irrevocable guarantee R_ZE—=FR/ARAM
for the borrowing from Xiamen EFBKREFXERAAME
International Trust Co., Ltd, amounted EH A ER¥1,000,000,000
to RMB1,000,000,000. The guarantee EEHH{ﬁ G N |
maturity date is March 2018. ETEARJBER BER
AR —N\F=
o
In 2013, the parent company Capital PANYNESI R DR S/NIST =B -k S
Group provided irrevocable guarantee RZE—=FRARAHKR
for the long-term borrowings amounted REASREBROERA
to RMB2,000,000,000 borrowed from AR SAREBEANAR
China Life Insurance Company Limited, #2,000,000,0007T & Hi {&
Beijing Branch. The guarantee maturity RIEHTARENESE
date is December 2018. T:ﬂ% &OERINBAAC
Z-NF+ZRH-
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=
AA=+HB +t=ZHA=+—8H
The Company for RKRABR/TFAR
subsidiaries 13,853,332 9,978,763
Subsidiaries for FARE NG
subsidiaries 8,221,000 5,190,512
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For the six months ended 30 June 2014 (Amounts are presented in thousands of units of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated.)

BE—F—FENA =+ HIENEAABRE (BRI 2 EBARETFT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related party transactions (Continued)

(e)

()

Guarantees (Continued)

In November 2012, the Company
provided Keepwell Deed for the
corporate bond amounted to
RMB2,000,000,000 issued by its
wholly owned subsidiary Central Plaza.
IFC, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company is arranged to provide
guarantee for the corporate bond
above.

In April 2013, the Company provided
Keepwell Deed for the senior
perpetual securities amounted to
USD400,000,000 issued by its wholly-
owned subsidiary Central Plaza. IFC,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company is arranged to provide
guarantee for the equity instruments
above (note 5(27)(c)).

In February 2014, the Company
provided Keepwell Deed for the
medium-term notes amounted to
RMB3,250,000,000, issued by its
wholly owned subsidiary Central Plaza.
IFC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company is arranged to provide
guarantee for the medium-term notes
above (Note 5(27)(d)).

Key management compensation

+. BBIERRERS &)

B#XS (&)
() #H®&ER(E)

(4).

RRRIRZTE——F+—
ABARRIZEETAR
Central PlazaZ$1TH) A R
2,000,000,0007T A &) f& &
REETHHE AR
B2 2B FRARIFCAZD

AESFRHEIER

KABRRZE—=
AREARAIZEE

FlCentral PlazaZt

Fm
0
17

400,000,000 7T = & ok &

E R TIHE

2 B

ARRRIZEEFRAIFCH
s T RERMER (W

THE7))) °

RRAFR_ZF—WF_H

REARBZ2ET

2 A

Central PlazaZ$1TH) A R ¥
3,250,000,0007T * EAZ 4%

i RO

AR

AlZ 2B FRAEIFCRZT
HERREHER(HER

@7)d)) °

() BEREEASHMH

Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE HZE
—E2-lF —E—=F
~A=1+HIL NA=+HILE
ANE A B 7~ E A B
Remuneration of key A EIE A B
management personnel 13,141 12,071
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BE—F—

7.

BYE7X A =+ B L1 A B (BB B8] £ AR E L B A BB For)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4).

(5).

(9)

(h)

(a)

t. BBTERRE

X5 (&)

Related party transactions (Continued) (4). BHXZ (&)
In 2013, Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang (9) RZZE—=F " KBREE
Fund was established by Zhuhai EeEBRRAERERE
Henggin Fund Management Company BABRERLTHREEE
as general partner. The issuing scale BEFREES -KEEER
of Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang Fund E%%éﬁ?ﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ)\ﬁ
amounted to RMB810,000,000. #810,000,0007T ° K A
The Company holds 10% of the BELKEBEEAES 10%EI'J
intermediate units in Zhuhai Henggqin FREROE KEEER
Fund. Zhuhai Henggin Zizhufang Fund FTEERERLIRATNE
has been classified as joint ventures of S EZE (MR O0)(a)
the Company (note 5(10)(a)(|x)). The (iX)) e R=ZE—MFENA -
Group transferred 100% shares of AEERKFENRERE
Taihao Shengyuan to Zhuhai Henggin 100% RIEEE TIREREE
Zizhufang Fund in June 2014 (note 4(3) BEEES (MaEFEm(=)
(1). (1))
In 2014, the Group transferred it's (h)y R-ZT—WOF AEHK
100% equity and shareholder loans of HE# B H F 2 AlBantex
Bantex, a subsidiary of the Company, to 100%HX REFMAR R E 8
Reco Yanshan. Accordingly, 50% equity #aReco Yanshan ' Bantex
of Tiancheng Yongyuan held by Bantex ?—r ﬁ BY K 3K 5K JT50 % HY
were transferred to Reco Yanshan in the P 7 10 18 JE ¥ 5E 45 Reco
meantime (Note 4 (4)). Yanshan (i 5 PY (@) ) e
Related party balances (5). EAEE G REW - B FIREREE
Advances to suppliers (@) FENRIE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F%F
AA=+H +tZHA=+—H
GoldenNet T EE 44,033 19,298
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BE—F—

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5).

Related party balances (Continued)

(b)

(c)

9758 =+ B LN 18 AR (B A5 5 B8] & BB s A BB FT)

+. BBIERRERS &)

(5).

BARE 75 P - B Y FRIRBRER
(%)

Long-term receivables (note 5 (14)) (b) REEWR (MR
(14))
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-NF —ZF—=
AA=+tB +ZA=+—H
Financial Street T RVETEE 300,239 292,380
(i) As at 30 June 2014, the (i) R-ZZFE—WNFERNA
receivable includes principal and =+B - ZHRBEAK
interests from Financial Street, & B e B & R A
an associate of the Group. The TREBEENAS
receivable began to charge KF B - AT R
interest at the interest rate of BREBIZIRIR 1T A HA

bank borrowings with the same
period. Since the receivable
has no fixed maturity date and
the Group expected that the
receivable will not be collected
within one year, the receivable is
classified as long-term receivable.

Dividends receivables (note 5(5))

ERMEEE  EE
EEZRH AEER
At FREZXKE
A&FRIR I&tﬁﬁﬁﬂ
U FZE

() EYHEF (MER(G))

30 June 31 December

2014 2013

—E-—mF —E—=%F

ANA=+H +=-A=+—H

Tianjin Xinming RIZF A 9,825 9,825
Xi'an Xinkai 70 % 228,622 87,422
Total =¥ 238,447 97,247
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7. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5).

(d)

220

+. BBIERRERS &)

Related party balances (Continued) (5). BELEW BIRIBEHRE
(&)
Other receivables (note 5(3)(b)) (d) HMEERK (KWEREEB)
(b))
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=
RA=+tH +tZHA=+—H
Seven star BT+ E 1,091 —
International School R 4,967 -
Speed Plus Speed Plus 8,058 -
GoldenNet T B - 241
Huzhou Rongcheng AN S 68,000 —
King Future King Future 35 -
Xi'an Xinkai 78 22 5 B 425 -
Chaoyang Investment HAISILE 8,020 8,020
Qinhuangdao Real ZEBEEX()

Estate(i) 150,474 140,206
Shenyang Xinzi BIGHE 2,166 —
Shenyang Jitian BT R 466,280 —
Xingtai Jifeng FHrEE - 95,175
Total CEll 709,516 243,642

(i) The receivable includes the
principal of RMB101,000,000
and interests of RMB49,474,000
due from Qinhuangdao Real
Estate to the Group, with fixed
interest rate of 20%, no fixed
maturity date, unsecured and

unguaranteed.

Besides the receivable above, all the
other receivables are interest free,
unsecured and unguaranteed.

i) ZFRERKEER
RESEXREHN
fERAE RF L
HbfERAE R/ A
[ #101,000,000
T MER/RARE
49,474,0007T * F
K R20% @ & [E F
B BIERED
o

BR A £ R GRIA SN Hft
J& W R IR G A B
EEEMR BERER

5% -
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5). Related party balances (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Other payables (note 5(23))

+. BBIERRERS &)

(5).

BARE 75 P - B Y FRIRBRER

(%)

(e) EHMENAX(MWER

(23))

30 June 31 December
2014 2013

—E-mF 2=
RAA=+H +tZHA=+—H
Xingtai Jifeng HRHE 1,152,826 —
Capital Jiaming EEIES - 51,039
Tianjin Xinming RIEFEA 324,990 356,250
Xi'an Xinkai 78 22 % B 1,620,000 1,003,150
Reco Ziyang N 56,714 56,714
Shenyang Xinzi EIGEE 156,060 212,250
Tianjin Xinging REHE 440,090 493,450
Shenyang Jitian EEE R - 14,000
Capital Qinglv Culture B A EH IR X1t - 20,000
Financial Street Hotel BRI 377 377
Huzhou Rongcheng N S I - 47,433
International School R - 33
Shouyong Real Estate BKEXE - 120,473
GoldenNet ALK - 93
Total CEll 3,751,057 2,375,262

Above payables due to related parties
are interest free, unpledged and
unguaranteed, and have no fixed
maturity dates.

Accounts payable

it AN SRR G S R
ERRRERBL BE
B E B & i -

) EMRX

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-UF —F—=
~NB=Z+H +tZHA=+—H
GoldenNet & P4 24,301 24,224

The dividends payable of the Group is
disclosed in note 5(22).

(9) AEBEEMENFZ2REW
FHQ2)
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7.
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5). Related party balances (Continued)

(h) Interest payable

+. BBIERRERS &)

(5).

BARE 75 PR - FEAY RRIRBRER
(%)

(hy ENFE

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E—mF — =&

~B=+tH +=-—A=+—H

Reco Ziyang Nk L5

13,273 13,273

(i) Remuneration payable to Directors
(note 5(20))

(i) EANESEHMH(HER

(20))
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—2-NF —F=%

~B=+tH +=-—A=+—H

Remuneration payable to Z &
Directors

17,446 28,486
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8. COMMITMENTS

(1).

(2).

Capital commitments

(a)

Capital expenditures contracted for but
not yet necessary to be recognised on
the balance sheet by the Group at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

N, E#EBHE

(1). BEXRE®

(@ UWUTRREEAGXRA:
xxﬂﬁﬁﬁ$%ﬁﬁ7ﬁ"“#&
& R X A

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—EB-lF —E—=F
ANB=+H +ZHA=+—8H

Authorised but not BEHUERERD
contracted 15,473,610 13,514,746
Contracted but not paid B2 &KX +f 5,073,297 6,021,144

The Group’s shares of capital
commitment in relation to joint ventures

b) MNATRAKEEEAREDLE
B & BN HAGEP

are as follows: FT i B9 {0 58 -
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—2-NF —T=%
~NAB=Z+H +-HA=+—H

Authorised but not BHLERED

contracted 2,260,098 2,438,543
Contracted but not paid B2 4K X+ 367,348 488,337

Operating lease commitments

The future minimum lease payments due
under the signed irrevocable operating leases

(2. REHEERFESHE

RIBC BT T Al B R 2 1%
HEAR "EERKRRKEEX

contracts are summarised as follows: NHESERMT :

30 June 31 December
2014 2013

—E-NE —_F—=
AA=+H +tZH=+—H
Within 1 year —F AR 2,846 3,075
Between 1 and 2 years —Z 4% 2,125 3,269
Between 2 and 3 years —E =4 - 999
Total Bt 4,971 7,343
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8.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(3). Investment commitments

N. R#HEE (&)

(3). HINREAFEE

30 June 31 December
2014 2013

—E-NF —F—=
ANB=+H +ZA=+—8H
Xingtai Jifeng HREHE 50,000 —
Capital Qinglv Culture BEIFIRE 29,000 29,000
Total A&t 79,000 29,000

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
customers and has provided guarantees to secure
obligations of these customers for repayments.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of
mortgage facilities granted by certain banks
relating to the mortgage loans arranged for
certain purchasers of the Group’s properties. These
guarantees will be expired when relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various
banks by the purchasers.

As at 30 June 2014, outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB3,462,938,000 (31 December
2013: RMB3,198,457,000).

As at 30 June 2014, the company provided
guarantees for the borrowings and equity
instruments of the subsidiaries, which amounted
to RMB13,853,332,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB9,978,763,000). The subsidiaries provided
guarantees for the borrowings and the corporate
bond of subsidiaries, which amounted to
RMB8,221,000,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB5,190,512,000). Except for the above, the Group
has no other material external guarantee.

The Group believes that the guarantees above will
not have a significant impact on its financial position.

BB R

AEBERETYREMEE D ZHR
TRE UTHZEBETNERAEER
HIELR

AEENF D XL RIERITRE (HF I
BN ABEARBERENERER -

RERTERBAABEFERERNE
Ko AEED R ARTABEEPEN
RIS IR R BB (R - R A FE IR
BEREBFEEPMEXEEEME RS
3 3 % 5 EE & R F IR AERR

RZZE—NMESNA=FTH RBEEE
R& %A ANR®3,462,938,0007T (=
T—=F+-_A=+—H: AR¥
3,198,457,0007T) °

R-E—MNESNA=TH AQ2aKk
HFRARRTEREEZTAARK
13,853,332,000c (ZE—=F+—H
=+—H: AR#9,978,763,0007T ) A
FFRBEFARBRITERR ARG
A ANE#8,221,000,0007T (Z&E—=
+=—A=+—H: AR¥S5,190,512,000
TC) IR ERIN AEETFEEMER
HIMER

AEERR/ LR ERTISHAEE M
BRREESATZE-
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks, including market risk (primarily
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(1). Market risk

(a)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group's major operational activities
are carried out in Mainland China
and a majority of the transactions are
dominated in RMB. But the Group
is still subject to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities (majority of the Group’'s
foreign currency transactions and
balances are dominated in United States
dollars (“USD") and Hong Kong dollars
("HKD")) and net investment overseas.
The Group’s finance department
of headquarter is responsible for
monitoring the amount of assets and
liabilities, and transactions denominated
in foreign currencies. The management
of the Group may consider entering into
forward exchange contracts or currency
swap contracts to mitigate the foreign
exchange risk.

The group has certain investments in
overseas operations, whose net assets
are exposed to foreign exchange risk.
The Group’s finance department of
its headquarter monitors the overseas
investment scale to mitigate its
exposure to foreign exchange risk at the
extreme extend.

+. eMIEREERR

NE B R B KA Y ZE % R A
% misER (BREIMNERR M ZER
REMERRE) - FHBRBRMTEER
R AREMNEREREEAIFEIN
TR IS H A TR W RFER
EUAREERBRRNEBETNTZE -

(1). HHER
(@) HERR

REEBNHETELEMLNT
BEAR T2XBEUAR
KEE-EXNEECHER
MINEBEMA B RARK
B SNEE 3 5 (SNEE & E AN
BEMIMNMER SN ES
BEIR2RETMEE) A
FIRIMNE 2 FREMRATF
EIMNER R - ANEE AR
s EFI B B BT R E SN
BXZMINEEERBE
MR R - AR KRR E R K
T B B SMNE RLRR - At - AN
SEAREEURZFEHIN
EAAOXEEEBME N
77 7 2R 2 B AR A S E R B
B -

AEBERAE TRIMNEE
FREHFEEAZI
BT ERR KNEHEAH
M EFI A B EEEIMNR
BHRE  ARKIEERE
15 TED e ) 21N BEE LR
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

+. EWMIAERERR &)

(Continued)
(1). Market risk (Continued) (1). mEEE (&)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a) HERMR(E)
As at 30 June 2014 and 31 December RZE—MFENA=T
2013, the carrying amounts in RMB H )SZ T-—=%+_H
equivalent of the Group's assets and =+—HB XEBEEEH
liabilities denominated in foreign HNERBEENINE SR
currencies are summarized below: BEFNERAREN R
FIREATE :
30 June 2014
“E-WEAAZTH
Other foreign
usD HKD currency Total
ZnEH BEIER Httsi¥ER a3t
Cash at bank and on hand ~E¥ &% 79,808 11,330 46,767 137,905
Short-term borrowings 2 HfE K 292,851 6,350 - 299,201
Interest Payable FERTFIE 2,062 38 - 2,100
31 December 2013
—=f+-A=+—H
Other foreign
usb HKD currency Total
e BEIEE HEEE Bt
Cash at bank andonhand ~ E¥# &% 709,882 29,728 20,772 760,382
Financial assets held RHMERMEE
for trading 43,728 - = 43,728
Long-term borrowings REER 253,875 = = 253,875
Non-current liability due —F R
within one year FnBEE 288,993 - - 288,993
Short-term borrowings EEER 294,939 = = 294,939
Interest payable FERT 2 4,234 - - 4,234
As at 30 June 2014, for all USD E\A:E mMERNA=+
dominated financial assets and ffﬁ"$'§@ ¥ETT

liabilities, if RMB had increased/
decreased by 5% against USD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
increased/decreased by approximately
RMB53,776,000 (31 December 2013:
decrease/increase by approximately
RMB3,316,000).

uﬂéﬁﬂimiﬂﬁ
B WREARESEZITLFH

B ES% R R E
R 457 A 5 B 1

sk A F R AR
53,776,000 (=& — =
F+-—A=+—8: @D
s 1 N4 A R #3,316,000
JL) °
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

(Continued)

(1).

Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, for all HKD
dominated financial assets and
liabilities, if RMB had increased/
decreased by 5% against HKD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been
decreased/increased by approximately
RMB1,235,000 (31 December 2013:
decrease/increase by approximately
RMB1,115,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposed to interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of
the prevailing market interest rate on
borrowings which carry at prevailing
market interest rates. Borrowings
issued at floating interest rates expose
the Group to cashflow interest-risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The Group determines the
contracts proportions of fixed rate
and floating rate depending on the
market conditions. As at 30 June
2014, the Group's long-term interest
bearing borrowings were mainly RMB-
denominated with floating rates,
amounting to RMB10,646,057,000 (31
December 2013: RMB10,723,477,000).

Increases in interest rates will increase
the cost of new borrowing and the
interest expenses of to the Group’s
outstanding floating rate borrowings,
and therefore could have a material
adverse impact on the Group's
financial position. The Group's finance
department of its headquarters
continuously monitors the interest
rate position of the Group and makes
decisions with reference to the latest
market conditions. The management
of the Group may enter into interest
rate swap agreements to mitigate its
exposure to interest rate risk.

+. EMIAERERR &)

(1).

miZ R (&)

(a) MER (#F)
E/\:7 N B = ‘f’

ffﬁ/\$7m /%eﬂg F#ﬁ

é?ﬂ M%ﬂﬁﬁ
W%AEM£%%HE
ﬁﬁ@weﬁ@l%%
AN B N & B R 4
s I8 0 F A B 4 A R
1,235,000 (ZZE— =4
+=—A=+—8: @k
#an#A) AR #1,115,000
JC) °

(b) FIZERE
AEBMNFXRBREEE

TR EHETERERHS
EREE - MRS
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁlﬁmﬁ
* [& 5E F
%ﬁ@ﬁgl
AF@MYH
H#ﬁﬁmfﬁﬂa
%X%EIEHT&&E
) R4 [F) B9 FE L 1
:2 P_Tlﬂz/\ﬂ ‘f’E
AREBRBEBRBEHETE
BAREABRETLE
REFEBMESRE 5L
%ﬂ\E#ﬂo 646,057,000
T(ZZTE—=%+ =
HE+W*H,AE%
10,723,477,0007T ) ©

Zvil%*Wﬁ% P E
BE 1 62 B I R OK F o FI| &
HA?Mﬁgﬁﬁﬁ%

B RN N DA R 7N £ (B i) oK A

B LOF B K5 B A

EEBMFEZH W

KEIMWﬁ%\FEE

ANMTFEE ERES
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RETHEREBRE TR
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

(1.

(2).

Market risk (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 30 June 2014, if interest rates on
the floating rate borrowings increased/
decreased 5 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the
financial expenses of the Group would
increase/decrease by approximately
RMB53,230,000 (31 December 2013:
approximately RMB53,617,000).

(o) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
securities price risk because parts of
investments held by the Group are
classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. The management of the Group
monitors market conditions and price
fluctuations of securities investments.
Since the cost of available-for-sale
financial assets is low, the price risk of
the Group is low.

Credit risk

The Group manages its credit risk on a
classified basis. Credit risk mainly arises from
cash at bank (note 5(1)), accounts receivable
(note5(3)(a)), and other receivables (note5(3)
(b)).

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash at bank since
they are deposited at state-owned banks
and other medium or large size listed banks
and does not expect that there will be any
significant losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.

+. EMIAERERR &)

(1.

(2).

45 B ()

(b) FEEB (EF)
W-E-—mEXA=+
5 10 R 0A ST B R Bt
B1ERAIE LA TRE

BREE DS ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂl
ﬁﬁ%hTﬁ AEBAIR
TR RA B &8sk
/W #) A R #53,230,000
T(ZE—=ZF+ =
A= -I——EI AR
53,617,0007T) °

() EXRRK

AEBRA KRN EFIRE
HoRAHHESRERE
A B AR R B o

EEMmHIRRREFRE
M EMRKE AR A

ETMEEMNRAEIK

WEERERREK -

ERAR

AEBHERRRIZAS D BE
TERE-ERERAREIEZELRNR
TER(MERAN))  EBUEERR
(Bt REFL(3)(a) ) 0 EL Ath & Wk (B
EAE)b))F -

AEBRTEREIEEHRNEE
ﬁﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂhmimfﬁﬁ ViN
REETFEERNNEAR
AFEI;T?? 5 5E 4
B @zﬁ’]&ﬂiﬁ%ﬁé&
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the
credit risk exposure on accounts receivable,
and other receivables. The Group assesses
the credit quality and sets credit limits on
its customers by taking into account their
financial position, the availability of guarantee
from third parties, their credit history
and other factors such as current market
conditions. The credit history of the customers
is regularly monitored by the Group. In respect
of customers with a poor credit history, the
Group will use written payment reminders,
reduce or cancel credit periods, to ensure the
overall credit risk of the Group is limited to a
controllable range.

The Group has arranged bank financing for
certain purchasers of property units and
provided guarantees to secure obligations of
such purchasers for repayments (note 9). If a
purchaser fails on the payment of its mortgage
during the term of the guarantee, the bank
holding the mortgage may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding amount under the
loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under
such circumstances, the Group is able to sell
the property to recover any amounts paid by
the Group to the bank. In this regard, the
management considers that the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each
subsidiary of the Group and aggregated
by the Group’s finance department in its
headquarters. The Group's finance department
at its headquarters monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group’s short-term and long-term
liquidity requirements to ensure it has
sufficient cash and securities that are readily
convertible to cash to meet operational needs,
while maintaining sufficient headroom on
its undrawn committed borrowing facilities
from major financial institution so that the
Group does not breach borrowing limits or
covenants on any of its borrowing facilities to
meet the short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements.

+. EMIERERK &)

(2. ERERE#)

It SN - S 70 FE WRR 3K - E L FE AR
R 7K 5% 8] 3% T AR B UK DA
EARERMSO NEBEREH R
PRy BE AR - 158 = 75 B EUE
REVAIRENE - ERREEEER
EAMBA TR EFEEP
MEMRBEEYREMEEERR-
AEEEEHHEFEREE
TEE HREATEIRANE
PrAEEeRAERER  #ER
ERMXBUBERHEFT A - U
BRASENEEERERER
ZEVELE A o

AEECHBEREYEREML
BERITRAE Y HBEEEMER
EHRREEER (BEN) -BRE
BEEERFRIIMIEREH
RBERER RITRIBENE
RBEEAEEEERNREENSE
B2 DA B B SR 1T & M FE AT A
BERAR -FEWILBERT K&
BAERNKZMENERRTA
RIBERKBEREN 2S5 - Bt
ARARERERBAEENEE
2B B AR AR

(3). REE

AEEAZFRAREEHEB SN
BenEfRA- By B5alfas
EAETFRRRERERBNE
L EEEERSAEEEEH
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK
(Continued)

BHENBARETT)

+.

(3). Liquidity risk (Continued)

SRITERHERRE 2

(3). WEEB (&)

The financial assets and liabilities of the Group REEBEXRAB AEEZES2
at the balance sheet date are analysed by their BMEEMNERABBEARTEANS
maturity date below at their undiscounted RBEeRERINABI AT :
contractual cash flows:
30 June 2014
—E-NERA=TH
Between
Less than  Between 1 2 and Over
1year and 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—EHR —3=F —HEf BENE &t
Financial assets SREE
Cash ERES 11,673,497 - - - 11,673,497
Receivables e FRIE 4,446,153 - - - 4,446,153
Long-term receivables REEKR - 336,267 - - 336,267
Total At 16,119,650 336,267 - - 16,455,917
31 December 2013
—T—=Ff+-A=+-H
Between
Less than Between 1 2 and Over
Tyear  and 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FHR —H=F —ZHARE AENE A&t
Financial assets SREE
Cash EBEe 11,345,380 - - - 11,345,380
Receivables JEYRFRIE } 3,986,534 = = - 3,986,534
Non-current assets due —ERIBERHEE
within one year 777,572 - - - 777,572
Long-term receivables REEYR - 327,466 - - 327,466
Total At 16,109,486 327,466 - - 16,436,952
30 June 2014
“E-NEXA=TH
Between
Less than  Between 1 2 and Over
1year and 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—&£HR —3=F “HuE AENE &t
Financial liabilities SRAE
Short-term borrowings 12 HE 4,450,265 - - - 4,450,265
Payables FEf 3 8,756,372 - - - 8756372
Debentures payable A ES 338,093 247,240 5,347,063 - 5,932,396
Long-term borrowings RHEER 872,927 6,126,926 6,383,329 599,546 13,982,728
Current portion of —ERIANERDERE
non-current liabilities 4,605,308 - - - 4,605,308
Total At 19,022,965 6,374,166 11,730,392 599,546 37,727,069
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT ANDRISK +. €T ERHEER (&)

(Continued)
(3). Liquidity risk (Continued) (3). "RBERK (&)
31 December 2013
—F—=#+-A=+—-H
Between
Less than Between 1 2 and Over
1year  and 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FHR —3=F ZHnE AEHRE Ch
Financial liabilities SRHEE
Short-term borrowings 52 HME K 1,453,831 - - - 1,453,831
Payables BT FRIE 7,884,278 - - - 7,884,278
Debentures payable &S 150,292 2,103,530 - - 2253822
Long-term borrowings RHER 780,974 3,541,133 8,255,765 509,026 13,086,898
Current portion of —FERIBNFERDER
non-current liabilities 7,090,953 - - - 7,090,953
Total A&t 17,360,328 5,644,663 8,255,765 509,026 31,769,782
Bank and other borrowings are analysed by RITERRHEMEREZER ST
repayment terms as follows: (N
30 June 2014 31 December 2013
“E-MEARAZTH —E-=F+-A=+—H
Bank Other Bank Other
borrowings  borrowings borrowings borrowings
RITER HiE R RITER HitfE 5
Wholly repayable within five years &% — i85 B
ELFZA
5 11,825,657 2,838,985 12,520,577 3,919,044
Not wholly repayable within Ri&—HERA
five years ERFZEN
fig 5% 527,500 - 450,000 -
Total At 12,353,157 2,838,985 12,970,577 3,919,044
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11.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES T-.

The level of fair value measurement result, is
determined by the lowest level of the input value,
which is of great significance to the overall fair value
measurement.

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from

a

A

REEMGE

EBEEARMBNER AHRQ

ABEGERENSAAEEEENE
MMEFB 1 RAK B R R E

E-ER: HAAESRABEERD

5 ERBHBHRE -

F_RBA&: KRE-EBREWAEINEEE

BESREBEERXMEZEA
BEmBAE-

prices).
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not F=EBH: HBEEXEENTAH
based on observable market data (that is, g A\ (B °
unobservable inputs)
(1). Assets measured at fair value on an (1). BFENUAAEBETENE
ongoing basis B
As at 30 June, 2014, the financial assets RZZE—NNFASAAR=1+H HE
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis by WA AR EBEFENEER il
three levels are analysed below: =ERBRIN AT :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-EBR E_ER EF=ER &%
Assets — BE-
Available-for-sale financial assets - A &
SREE-
Available for sale equity instruments  BJ ft H & 25
ITH 73,381 - - 73,381
Investment properties — REMRE#E-
North region EibiE - - 1,942,937 1,942,937
Central region iR - - 528,000 528,000
South region EEE - - 521,000 521,000
Total Assets EEAG 73,381 - 2,991,937 3,065,318
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11. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (continued)

Assets measured at fair value on an
ongoing basis (Continued)
As at 31 December 2013, the financial assets

measured at fair value on an ongoing basis by
three levels are analysed below:

t-,

NAREEME (&)

RENUAREETENE
E#)
W=F—=#+-A=+-R
SEMAR R BEGBHEER
it = EERFIRT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—ER EZER EZER A&
Assets — BE—
Financial assets WAREERE
at fair value through BEZFEA
profit or loss - EHBEEN
Derivatives SHEE-
XoMERERE - 43,728 - 43,728
Available-for-sale AHEHE S
financial assets - BE-
Available for sale equity At E
instruments IA 99,258 - - 99,258
Investment properties — REUEHE-
North region iR - - 1,943,042 1,943,042
Central region EHiR - - 516,000 516,000
South region EFEME - - 504,876 504,876
Total Assets BERG 99,258 43,728 2,963,918 3,106,904

The Group recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers between level 1, 2
and 3 during the period.

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market
prices in active markets. The fair value of
financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. Specific valuation techniques
mainly include discounted cash flow analysis
and so on. The inputs used to develop those
valuation technigues mainly include risk-free
rate, benchmark interest rate and exchange
rate.

AEENEHZER HBEDN
FHELARERSBRZHEE
B - AHREE B 5
“EREE=ERENER-

HRETRTS LR ZNERT
B AER [ DACEOR BB T 45 (B
EERAABE  BRTHEERD
B ERGNERMIE AEEK
AEERMmETEE QA EE FI
ERNHEERLTIEAEERE
FRERE - RERMNE AR
EIZRRERRFIR  EERNK .
PEE R o
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11. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (continued)

(1). Assets measured at fair value on an

ongoing basis (Continued)

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties from an independent
professional valuer as a third party. The
valuations were based on income capitalisation
which largely used unobservable inputs such as

market rent, discount rate and so on.

The change of level 3 assets is below :

- RARAEBEME &)

(1.

FENUQIAEETENE
E(E)

HRBREMEHE ~EBET
SMER R B T B R A B EETTRY
fm-MEANIDEETEZREES
W R - ER B ABEER
BRERMSHEMTHEEXRSE-

ERE=BREEEBOT

Investment property

BREMREE
North region ~ Central region  South region Total
iR ZhiR ZEEiR G
As at 1 January 2014 —T-mE
—H—H 1,943,042 516,000 504,876 2,963,918
Purchase BE - - 9,211 9,211
Settlement HE (4,105) - - (4,105)
Gains or losses recognised FAERR
in profit or losses HMEHERX 4,000 12,000 6,913 22,913
As at 30 June 2014 —E-pmF
~NA=1H 1,942,937 528,000 521,000 2,991,937
Realised gains or losses STAEHBEEN
recognised in current BEERFIBR
profit or losses PN
— Other operating income —HtEBKA
(note5 (35(b))) (FERE5)b)) (4,788) - - (4,788)
Unrealised gains or losses STAEHERN
recognised in current RERNGK
profit or losses Bx
- Profit or losses from change -AREEE
in fair value b= 4,000 12,000 6,913 22,913
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11. FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (continued) T-.

Assets measured at fair value on an
ongoing basis (Continued)

The change of level 3 assets is below :

(Continued)

NAREEME (&)

BENUAAEEFENE
E(#&)
LRE=ZBRAEZHOT:
(%)

Investment property

REMREE
North region ~ Central region  South region Total
EibitR EhifE EEihE B
As at 1 January 2013 =%
—A—H 4,838,834 - - 4,838,834
Purchase EE 118,518 = = 118,518
Settlement HE - - - -
Transfer from investment AT 2 H)
properties measured at cost REFMEEA = 364,363 = 364,363
Gains or losses recognised FTAERH
in profit or losses GESER DS 53,482 140,637 - 194,119
As at 30 June 2013 “T-=F
NA=TH 5,010,834 505,000 - 5,515,834

As at 30 June 2014, the gains recognised in
profit or losses of assets in level 3 held by the

Group is RMB22,913,000.

The Group's finance department is in
charge of assets’ valuation and employ the
independent valuer to valuate the fair value of
investment properties. The finance department
verifies all valuation results, take charge of
relative accounting treatment and prepare
disclosure information of fair value according

to verified valuation results.

RIZE-—HFERA=TH £&
ENFEENE=EREEFTA
B2 _ZT-HWFERA=1THILRX
BAHEERNNE /AR
22,913,0007T °

AEEHMBIAMPABEEEENDG
BT RSEFEINBBELFG
P AEEREEFHEN AR
EBEETHG LAKESRA
ANEE B S ERFETT B LB

REEE WEARERENGE
BREHEADABEERNKE

1?% o
= /5
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11.

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (continued) T
(1). Assets measured at fair value on an
ongoing basis (Continued)
Information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs:
Investment  Fair value as at  Valuation
Properties 30 June 2014 techniques Title
—2-IF
~A=1+H
REMEHE AREE  HERE £18
North region 1,957,813 Income approach  Discount rate
EibinR Wz % i
Market rents
mHiEe
Central region 528,000 Income approach  Discount rate
Zdhiha Yoz % i &
Market rents
MHHE
South region 521,000 Income approach  Discount rate
EfiE Wz i
Market rents
Lk
(2). Assets measured at fair value not on

a

(1.

REEMEE (2

RENUAAREBETENE
E (&)
EREETABEHABNAR
EEENHRBESNT:

Unobservable inputs

TABR@AE

Relationship of
Range of unobservable inputs of

unobservable inputs  fair value

BE/NEFHE ZANEEZEHBE

6% to 8%  The higher discount rate
is, the lower fair value
6%%8% HMREMR DA
BEME

RMB40 to RMB625 Per  The higher market rent is,

square meter per month  the higher fair value
BYARBAARKIOTE Mol AAEBEYS

AR#6257

7% t0 8%  The higher discount rate
is, the lower fair value

71%%8% HREMS AR
BEBE

RMB34 to RMB68 Per  The higher market rent is,

square meter per month ~ the higher fair value
BYARBAARKUTE He#s AAEBEYRS

ARH68T

7.5% to 9% The higher discount rate
is, the lower fair value
75%%9% FREXYR QA
EBEHE

RMB53.8 to RMB310.9 per  The higher market rent is,
square meter per month  the higher fair value
BEAARGAARY38T Hedm AnBEESR

ZEARE31097

an ongoing basis

The non-current assets held for sale are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. As at 30 June 2014,
the non-current assets held for sale which
are stated at carrying amount by the Group
was RMB9,921,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB1,902,313,000).

(2).

EBFENUARBEETEN
BE

BEGFEMNIERBEE  LEM
BEEAAEBEREEEEZR
HENSEAE- N —NF
NAZT R AEENLERAEEE
FTENBEREEEAARK
9,921,000t (=ZE—=%+—A
=+—H: AR#1,902,313,000
JC) °
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NAREEME (&)

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATES (Continued)

t-,

Assets and liabilities not measured (3). TUAREBEFEEBREH
at fair value but disclosed on fair ARABENEENEE
value
Financial assets and liabilities measured at REBUERKATENSRE
amortized cost mainly include receivables, ENeREEXERR: BKK
short-term borrowings, payables, long-term B REBER BNFIE - REE
borrowings, debentures payables and long- FoEAEHFMERBEMN RS-
term payables.
Except for the financial assets and liabilities RTemEEMS#EENU
listed below, the carrying amount of financial S EAA AR BEFENS
assets and liabilities not measured at fair value MEEMEBENREEBEEAR
is a reasonable approximation of their fair BEMBER -
value:
30 June 2014 31 December 2013

—E-MEXA=TH “Z-—=#+-RA=+—H

Carrying Carrying

amount Fair value amount Fair value

REEE AREE FEEE ARfEE
Long-term borrowings RHER 8,183,100 8,502,469 5,948,100 6,079,972
Debentures payable ERES 5,193,650 5,293,299 1,977,532 2,025,823
Total Ch 13,376,750 13,795,768 7,925,632 8,105,795

The fair value of long-term borrowings and
debentures payables that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation
techniques, such as discounted contracted
cash flow analysis, by using discount rate
which is comparable credit rate and almost the
same cash flows in the same situation in the
market. The fair value belongs to Level 3.

EHRERARTNFEERETSH
BNES  AA R B ENRKER
CRERRTS LAFANLER
FMAEAER GRS T IREZFE
RIRERENFFEITITIREHN
REBRETEAABE BRE=

Bk
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12.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group
monitors capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by net
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including “Short-term borrowings”, “Long-term
borrowings”and “Notes payable” as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet) less Cash at bank and
on hand. Net capital is ‘equity’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

As at 30 June 2014, the group’s strategy was to
maintain the net gearing ratio within 80%. The net
gearing ratios at 30 June 2014 and 31 December
2013 were as follows:

_I_

EXERE

AEBEEARNEERRNBERR T RE
AEBEREMIFELE (e ARRIEHR
B » 3 {50 H At 7 25 4E BA & M 1 - (RIS 4
FRENERAEBAREERKAE -

RTHEFIFERENGEE AEBE A
THEINBBERNOEMNERE WK
BB BT R EEENRE

B e

BRETRAEMAR —5 AEEF A
FERNBBLREEREBE R R RER
RREFFREGIAFE R E - B FHE
RBEFR(BREEER RHEFRM
BNESE)REERES FEARA
HEERBERTAAIIRH IR R

o AR K
o
Af 4l
I |
<
i
ot

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—EF-mEF —T-=F
AA=t+E +=A=+—~
Total borrowings, including BEF Ed
Short-term borrowings g HIfE 8,767,445 8,112,351
Long-term borrowings KHIER 11,639,800 10,739,313
Debentures payable e &% 5,193,650 1,977,532
Total B 25,600,895 20,829,196
Less: Cash at bank and BB Ee
on hand (11,673,497) (11,339,807)
Net borrowings (E -] 13,927,398 9,489,389
Shareholders’ equity % 28 1 25 18,100,519 16,228,484
Net gearing ratio FEERMBLX 76.94% 58.47%
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13. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET t=. EEEEBXRBEEE

DATE

(i) In 2014, The Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Yongyuan Jintai
to acquire Yongyuan Jintai's 100% equity
interests in Xingtai Jifeng. The transaction
was completed in July 2014, and is a business
combination involving enterprises not under
common control.

(ii) In July 2014, the Group provided a total
amount of AUD15,100,000 for development
of a residential project in Sydney, Australia.

NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM T,
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R-F—MF AEERXTE
FTRBBEE R WEBXT
EEFENHARET LHN100%H
RE-ZXHER T —HOFL
A5 BB RIER — 45T
bERAH-

R-ZE—NFELH AEBREH
15,100,000/ 7¢ A 72 A 2 — T8 i1
RIBAFEREMEEIER -

RAMBHRREBREB M

. (1). HMEWR
(1). Other receivables

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-MF —EB—=F
~B=+tH +=-A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (i) [&UxT 2 al & 5K 2 () 20,775,982 14,789,694
Amounts due from joint ventures FEIA & A &) KK 9,111 103,195
Amounts due from associates JFE Lk Bt 25 N ) 4 SRR 2,591 =
Guarantee funds IREE® 10,026 10,026
Others HAth 33,893 278,608
Total B 20,831,603 15,181,523
Less: provisions for bad debts OB AR (24,000) (24,000)
Other receivables — net bk 20,807,603 15,157,523
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14. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM +1A. AT KEHRRETEEH HizE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1).

Other receivables (Continued)

(i)

As at 30 June 2014, RMB66,662,000 (31
December 2013: RMB1,993,528,000) is
the loan from the Company to subsidiary
with interest rate of 6.60%, unsecured
and unguaranteed. RMB241,821,000
(31 December 2013: nil) is the loan
from the Company to subsidiary with
the interest rate at 15% below PBOC
benchmark lending rate for six months,
unsecured and unguaranteed. Other
receivables due from subsidiaries except
for the loans above are interest free,
unsecured and unguaranteed and have
no fixed maturity date.

(%)

(1.

Hib UK ()

(i)

RZE—WERNA=+
H ARARIEFBSFA
AINRBEHREASAREK
66,662,000 (=& — =
F+-_A=+—"H: AR
#1,993,528,0007T) ' 4F
F & 56.60% » £ 15 1 &
ER: ARREFIHD T
RAINFIBEHRBEAARE
241,821,000 (— T —=
F+-_A=+—H £&)-
FEAEELFHARBITE
EERFETIE15% &
IR BELR BRI 2 INEY
H i fE U TR A & RFKIE
BB - EE A E
R -BETERDH-
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14. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM @M. AT K HERFETEEH M
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) (%)
Other receivables (Continued) (1). HEiEWR (&)
The Company has not recognised or written ARARBEZZT—NFA=T
off bad debt provision for other receivables for LE7]E A BRI R FT e IR S Az SE B
the six months ended 30 June 2014. BIERER-
The analysis of other receivables and the H A 8 WK % 4B FE B 3 R E R R
related provisions are as follows: HARKENEREDTAT
30 June 2014 31 December 2013
—g-mEAA=+A —g—=zt-f=1-p
% of total % of the % of total % of the
Amount balance Provision provision Amount balance Provision provision
SE  EEEREA  BEEE  HELR S8 (EEMH  EEEE RN
% % % %
Within 1 year —EHR 20,799,405 100 - - 15,148,725 100 - -
110 2 years —5=F - - - - 8,020 = = =
2 to 3 years —3=F 8,020 - - - 178 - - -
Over 3 years = E 24,178 - (24,000) 99 24,600 - (24,000) 98
Total At 20,831,603 100 (24,000) - 15,181,523 100 (24,000) -
Long-term equity investments (2). RUEBRERE
30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E2-NF —F—=
~B=+tH +=-HA=+—8H
Subsidiaries (a) F 2 Fl(a)
— unlisted companies —JELETAF] 3,181,514 3,171,514
Joint ventures (b) & Z 1% (b)
— unlisted companies —JEETAF 417,157 421,384
Associates (c) B 2 1> 2 (0)
— unlisted companies —JEETAF 167,146 162,069
Total Bt 3,765,817 3,754,967

There is no restriction on sale of the long-
term equity investment of the Company and
collection of the investment income.

RRB A FERPIREZHE MK
25 [ [ ) B AR il o
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14. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2).

Long-term equity investments
(Continued)

TH REMBHREREREE M

(%)

(2).

RIRERE (&

Subsidiaries (@) T2AH
Attributable Attributable 31 December 30 June
interest held vote held 2013 Additions Disposals 2014
—g-= —Z-|mE
HR A ®ABLH +=A=+-B AHBEM AHERED ~A=t+A
S.C. R 100% 100% 734,095 - - 734,095
Rongjin Company kNG 59.5% 59.5% 21,968 - - 21,968
Central Company FIRAR 75% 75% 79,433 - - 79,433
Central Plaza Xinrong FRER 75% 75% 90,437 - - 90,437
IFC IFC 100% 100% 20,480 - - 20,480
Central Plaza Central Plaza 100% 100% 39,466 - - 39,466
Jindu Company Bk & 100% 100% 369,970 - - 369,970
Beijing Xinzi IR E 100% 100% 642,625 - - 642,625
Anhua Shiji REH L 55% 55% 136,303 = - 136,303
Shangboya ie) T 100% 100% 30,000 - - 30,000
Shangbodi 8 3t 51% 51% 15,300 - - 15,300
Jiangsu Capital LEEE 60% 60% 60,375 - - 60,375
Capital Chengdu HEIR S 100% 100% 150,000 - - 150,000
Sunshine City Bk 50% 60% 82,766 = - 82,766
Wusxi Xindong EHTR 100% 100% 100,000 - - 100,000

Capital (Chengdu) Investment & &l (F(#) % &

Co., Ltd. ERERAA 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Capital (Tianjin) Real Estate ~ EH&| (K12)E%

Management Co., Ltd. EBBERAA 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Beijing Ruiyuan Fengxiang ~ JtRIRTEHES

Real Estate Development Co., BR8]

Ltd. 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Ruiyuan Fengji RTEE 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
Chuangxin Jianye BIFTREE 100% 100% 50,000 - - 50,000
Beijing Xinyuan Chengye T REBEBESA

Consultant Co., Ltd BRAA 100% 100% 1,000 - = 1,000
Capital Nanjing Investment ~ HEIFRIRAEE

Co., Ltd. BRAA 100% 100% 5,000 - - 5,000
Capital Guoxin HEEE 100% 100% 100,000 - - 100,000
Haikou Capital Xinye BOBERTRIRE

Investment Co., Ltd. BRAR 100% 100% 10,000 - - 10,000
BECL BERE 100% 100% 67,296 - - 67,296
Shanghai Zhengheng LBEE 100% 100% - 10,000 - 10,000
Beijing Chuangyuan Botao 3t REIR &S

Architectural Design & BELER

Consulting Co., Ltd. BRATA 100% 100% 5,000 - = 5,000
Beijing Xinyuan Huafu LRHTEERE

Investment Co., Ltd. ERERAA 100% 100% 5,000 - = 5,000
Beijing Hengyuan Yinxing IRETHRERE

Investment Co., Ltd. ERERAA 100% 100% 5,000 - = 5,000
Beijing Donggi Jin zhao ERREER

Infrastructure Investment HERRMIRE

Co., Ltd. ARAT 100% 100% 30,000 - - 30,000
Beijing Zhongzhi Dingfu TRRESE 100% 100% 100,000 - - 100,000
Specific Assets REEAEE

Management Plan 9% N/A @R 190,000 - - 190,000
Total At 3,171,514 10,000 - 3,181,514
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14. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM +1A. AT M EHRRETEEH HizE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) (4%)

(2). Long-term equity investments 2. RERERSE (&)

(Continued)
(b) Joint ventures (b) HEEHHE
Long-term equity investment in EETLENRIERER

joint ventures

Change in the period

AHERALE
Increase or Share of other Impairment
Accounting Investment 31 December Decrease Share of ~comprehensive  Cash dividend  Other equity 30 June Equity Voting  Provision for provided in
Method costs 2013 ininvestment net profit income declared movement 2014 interest held rightsheld ~ impairment  current period
-%§-z% EL L) = i )
= EMAHD ELT:) Riesra B 01 -3 AR iHRRE
BERE RERA =t-H k& EAA Ld:3 HRAR 25 =18 BRES  RRELA HERE £
% %
Befjng Wanzhu Eqm\/ method AR% 20,646 - 2760 - - - 23,406 30 30
e £ 303 25,500,000
Tonghua Qiangyu Eqm\/ method AR% 5,540 - (465) - - - 5,075 40 |
RERF R 4,000,000
Kunshan Chuangbo Equity method AR% 160,586 - (7,330) - - - 153,356 164 40
Fund 162,970,000
AL RS 33
Zhuhai Henggin Fund ~ Equity method AR% 3934 - - - - - 3934 40 i
Management 4,000,000
(omaany
’ iy .
Zhuhai Henggin Fund ~ Equity method AR% 230,678 - 808 - - - 231,486 824 i
240,000,000
HEREEE 33
421,384 = (4.227) - - - 417,157
. . . : [ POy =
The main financial Information of joint BELENEEMBKER
ventures is disclosed in note 5(10)a). 2 B R (10)a) °
(c) Associates () Hpesipsf
Long-term equity investment in HBEPENRBRER
associates &
Change in the period
AHERRLE
Increase or Share of other Impairment
Accounting Investment 31 December Decrease Share of  comprehensive  Cash dividend  Other equity 30 June Equity Voting ~ Provision for  provided in
Method costs 2013 ininvestment net profit income declared movement 2014 interest held rights held ~ impairment  current period
= St ELT] Z8-RBE 148
= EMEED ELL] Afbie G4 EfyEE A HERE
1903 BERE =t-H b FHE i i 25 =tA RREA  xRERLH RERRE L
% %
Golden Net Equity method ARE 6,949 - (33 - - - 6,916 14 14
L] L33 700,000
Yuangguangyuan Equity method ARE 155,120 - 5,110 - - - 160,230 35 35
oy 303 25,267,000
162,069 = 5077 = = = 167,146
5 5 5 5 oY \
The main financial Information of %E%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ'}}% 8 7%
associates is disclosed in note 5(10)(b). SE2 R WFER0)(D) e
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM 10N, AT EHRRETEEH MzE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14.

(3). Taxes payable

(%)

(3). EXHE

30 June 31 December
2014 2013
—E-NF —F=%
~B=+tH +=-—A=+—H
Income tax payable JEZFISHE 13,530 -
Land appreciation tax payable JE AZ £ b IR (E A 20 20
Business tax payable JERZE X 2,288 42,784
Individual income tax payable J& ZZ B A P15 %52 13,048 776
Others =i} 1,912 7,058
Total a5t 30,798 50,638
(4). Revenue and cost of sales (4). BEWAFMEEREX
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
Bz BHE
—E—mF =
ANA=THLE NA=+HIE
18 B Hi 7~ & A HARE
Revenue from main EEEBHWA )
operations (a) 48,423 46,598
Cost of sales from main F & EFEK AN (a)
operations (a) - 78
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14. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM +1A. AT M EHRRETEEH HizE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) (%)
(4). Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) (4). EXWAMEERE (£&)
(@) Revenue and cost of sales from main (a) FTEEBWAMETEEL
operations R A
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2014 30 June 2013
BZ-_Z—MmF Hz-_Z-=F
ANEZtTHAEAHE NA=ZTBIEAEA M
Main Main Main Main
operating operating operating operating
revenue costs revenue costs
FEEBEBA FEEBERKR FEEBRA FEEBRK
Consulting services A 48,423 - 46,598 78
(5). Investment income (5). ®REWR
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2014 2013
BZE H=E
—E-NF — =%
AESt+ELE  AA=TALE
A~E A B E 7~ [ A HA
Share of (loss)/profit of BRESEZFARDEN
investees under equity WIREBAFIBER
method -] 850 (484)
Gain from disposal of BEFAREALN
subsidiaries 1B W s 240,000 =
Dividend income from AtHEeMEE
available-for-sale % F1) U =
financial assets - 772
Others HAith 11,908 17,270
Total &&t 252,758 17,558
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14. NOTES TO THE COMPANY INTERIM +1A. AT KEHRRETEEH HizE

15.

16.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(5). Investment income (Continued)

The Company has no significant limitation on
realisation of investment income.

Investment income from listed investments
and non-listed investments for the six
months ended 30 June 2014 amount to nil
and RMB252,758,000 respectively (2013:
RMB772,000 and RMB10,179,000).

NET CURRENT ASSETS

(&

)

(5).

rREWS (&)

ARB T FERERZEDNE
NS

$/ _J@j:— IEEE/\H
=t ERNEAREEER LT
BREMIFELFTHERENKE
H&/\"E\JE}\EMTE%HAE
#252,758,000T (=& — =
F:ARKT72, oowﬁu/\ﬁfﬂ%
10,179,0007T) °

-I_£ /‘%/)ILEEE

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-ME —T-=F —E-mE —E—=F

~A +7H ~A +=A

=+A =+—H =+H =+—H

Consolidated ~ Consolidated Company Company

&t abt AT A

Current assets MBEE 55,265,533 48,882,031 22,275,620 16,019,518
Less: Current liabilities B OREAE (26,881,141)  (26,465,407)  (18,679,460)  (12,103,148)
Net current assets FRBEE 28,384,392 22,416,624 3,596,160 3,916,370

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

T REERARBAER

30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December

2014 2013 2014 2013

—Z-|mE —T-=F “E-EF —E-=F

~A +=A ~A T=H

=t+H =+—H =1+H =+—H

Consolidated = Consolidated Company Company

& =X AF NG

Total assets BES 63,083,422 56,190,688 26,551,849 20,325,210
Less: Current liabilities R mBAE (26,881,141) = (26,465,407)  (18,679,460)  (12,103,148)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDER 36,202,281 29,725,281 7,872,389 8,222,062
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Yuk Keung (Chairman)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Xiaoguang (Chairman)
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STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Xiaoguang (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Jun
Mr. Wang Hong

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Liu Yongzheng
Mr. Fan Shubin
Mr. Jiang Hebin

SECRETARY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Weimin

COMPANY SECRETARY
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Tang Jun
Mr. Lee Sing Yeung, Simon

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 501,

No. 1, Yingbinzhong Road,
Huairou District,

Beijing, PRC

BEIJING HEADQUARTERS

F17, Red Goldage,
No. 2, Guang Ning Bo Street,
Beijing, PRC

HONG KONG OFFICE

Suites 2906-08, AIA Central,
1 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.bjcapitalland.com

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Development Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

China Construction Bank

Bank of Communications

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Merchants Bank

Bank of China

Ping An Bank

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Note: The financial statements section in this Report has been prepared
in both Chinese and English. For any discrepancies, the Chinese
version shall prevail.
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